
Town of Mount Desert 
Selectboard 

Agenda 
 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, March 20, 2023 

Location: Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor; Meetings 
will continue to be offered via Zoom see final page for connection 
details.  
Per Maine CDC, COVID transmission rate is MEDIUM; masks are 
not required, but are recommended for those at risk of severe illness 

 
I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Public please hold comments until the Selectboard Chairman opens the agenda items 
for public comment.  When addressing the Board, state your FULL NAME (both in 
person and on Zoom).  It is suggested that you enter your full name as your ID on 
Zoom. 
 

II. Minutes 
A. Approval of minutes from February 27, 2023 meeting 

 
III. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 

None presented 
 

IV. Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.  
Board members may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.) 
None presented 

 
V. Selectboard’s Reports 

 
 

VI. Unfinished Business 
A. Discussion of Short-term Rental Ordinance (Noel Musson) 
B. Stanley Lane Streetlight update Captain by David Kerns 
C. Update on MRC's solid waste processing facility in Hampden by MRC member Tony 

Smith 
 

VII. New Business 
A. Consideration of Stone/Matheson Steamboat Wharf Utility Location Permit 
B. Discussion and consideration of an underground installation for the new electrical 

service lines to the town office building as an alternative to an aerial installation and, 
if approved, authorize the Fire Chief to sign and execute the change order using 
project contingency funds to pay for said change order. The new electrical service 
line installation is part of the NEH fire station expansion project 

C. Consideration to release up to $22,000.00 from the Fire Equipment Reserve account, 
# 4040300-24471, and authorize the Fire Chief to use such funds for the purpose of 
purchasing structural firefighting gear 

D. Consider amending sections 5.2.4 and 5.3 of the non-union personnel policy as 
shown in redlined version following memo from Jake Wright, Finance Director 

 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda March 20, 2023 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

New Business continued 
 

E. Review and Sign Ordinance Certifications for May 1 and 2, 2023 Annual Town 
Meeting 

F. Review and Sign Warrant for May 1 and 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting 
 

VIII. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s discretion via majority vote to do so under Other 
Business or out of order.) 
 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 
 

 
IX. Treasurer’s Warrants 

A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 
Town Invoices AP#2360 03/21/2023 $784,423.03 
Total   $784,423.03 

 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 

below: 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2358 

 
03/08/2023 

 
$3,279.53 

 AP#2359 03/15/2023 $45,524.42 
Town Payroll PR#2322 03/17/2023 $147,446.74 
Total   $196,250.69 

 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 

Warrants as shown below: 
School Invoices AP#  $0 
School Payroll PR#19 03/17/2023 $93,500.47 
Voided 
Disbursements 

 
V# 

 
 

 
$0 

Total   $93,500.47 
 

Grand Total   $1,074,174.19 
 

X. Adjournment 
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Monday, April 3, 2023 in the Meeting 
Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor 
 
  



Selectboard Meeting Agenda March 20, 2023 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  You can call in 
through any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.  You will 
need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09 

 
Meeting ID: 248 566 175 

Password: 919872 
 

One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (Chicago) 

+16468769923,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (New York) 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
Zoom security now requires a password on all zoom meetings, so the recurring BS meeting now 
has a password. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09




MINUTES 

  





Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 27, 2023 
Page 1 
 

Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 1 

Special Meeting Minutes 2 

February 27, 2023 3 
 4 
Board Members Present:  Chair John Macauley, Geoffrey Wood, Rick Mooers, Martha 5 
Dudman 6 
 7 
Board member Wendy Littlefield was not in attendance. 8 
 9 
Town Officials Present:  Town Manager Durlin Lunt, Tax Assessor Kyle Avila, Finance 10 
Director Jake Wright, Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk, Public Works Director Brian Henkel 11 
 12 
Members of the Public were also present. 13 
 14 

I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 15 
Chair Macauley called the Meeting to order at 6:30PM.   16 
 17 

II. Selectmen’s Reports 18 
There were no Selectmen’s Reports presented. 19 
 20 

III. Unfinished Business 21 
A. Presentation of Service Groups/Non-profit Agency Funding Requests (M-Z) 22 

Budget FY 2024 23 
Downeast Community Partners – Sharon Catus presented.  Downeast Community Partners 24 
is requesting $3,187.00.  The amount equals 5% of the $63,000.00 provided in services to the 25 
Town of Mount Desert.  Downeast Community Partners spans Hancock and Washington 26 
Counties.   27 
 28 
Warrant Committee Member Katrina Carter noted the amount is a 48% increase.  The 29 
increase is approximately 5% across all towns, but that figure varies, depending on the 30 
services used per town.   31 
 32 
Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce – Sue Spelhof presented.  The Chamber of 33 
Commerce operates the Town’s visitor center.  6400 people visited the center last year.  34 
Additionally, the Chamber assists with the Christmas festival and fundraisers.  The Chamber 35 
serves 131 businesses.  The Chamber is asking for $28,500.00, an increase of $1,000.00 from 36 
last year.  The funds will be used for seasonal help. 37 
 38 
Mr. Wood noted the Town finances 50% of the Chamber’s cost, plus provides a free 39 
building.  The dues received are less than the Town provides.  Ms. Spelhof explained the 40 
Chamber tries to keep the dues affordable.  The visitor’s center is staffed six days a week in 41 
the summer and two days a week in the off-season.   42 
 43 
Mount Desert Island Campfire Coalition – Anne-Marie Hart presented.  The program 44 
provides heating assistance to needy families.  Last year 67 households were assisted, 13 of 45 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 27, 2023 
Page 2 
 
those households in Mount Desert.  97 households have been assisted so far this year.  There 1 
are no administrative fees; 100% of the funds received go to heating assistance. 2 
 3 
Ms. Carter noticed there was virtually no financial information presented as requested.  Ms. 4 
Hart explained that the fiscal parent of the program is the Harbor House and there are no 5 
administrative costs.  This results in very little financial information. 6 
 7 
Mount Desert Island Historical Society – Lisa Murray presented.  The Historical Society 8 
operates two campuses; the school and the Somesville Museum.  They care for historic 9 
collections and host the 3rd grade classroom program.  The society offers historic publications 10 
on broader island history.   11 
 12 
The Historical Society is requesting $15,500.00.  This is a significant increase.  The funds 13 
will be used to maintain the Somesville bridge and museum.  Welch Painting provided the 14 
cost estimate presented.  The Society will pay for replacing windows on the museum 15 
building.  Additionally, the funds requested will also provide wi-fi to the area and a port-a-16 
potty for the summer season.   17 
 18 
Ms. Carter noted the 3rd grade program is now open to all 3rd graders on the island; will the 19 
Historical Society expand their fundraising to reach out to other Towns?  Ms. Murray 20 
reported that they would not expand to fundraising in other Towns at this time.  There are 21 
other, similar organizations in other towns and they would be hesitant about encroaching.  22 
They do supplement their finances through grants as well.   23 
 24 
Mount Desert Nursery School – Sarah Hinckley presented.  60% of the families served by 25 
the Nursery School are in Mount Desert.  Other towns served are Southwest Harbor and Bar 26 
Harbor.  The school is asking for funding to assist with necessary capital improvements, door 27 
replacement being the primary project.  Additionally, food cost has increased.   28 
 29 
Mr. Wood asked if this cost could be offset by tuition.  Ms. Hinckley noted the employee 30 
salaries are dependent on tuition.   31 
 32 
Warrant Committee member Carmen Sanford noted the school has 22 volunteers; perhaps 33 
they could help offset the cost of the door replacement?  Ms. Hinckley agreed those 34 
volunteers would likely help with the work.   35 
 36 
Some fundraising activities are planned for this year.  Additionally, they have applied for 37 
grants.   38 
 39 
Mr. Wood asked if the school’s request was based on estimates received for the work.  Ms. 40 
Hinckley explained the school was unable to get an estimate.   41 
 42 
Mount Desert Nursing Association – Angela Balacco presented.  The Nursing Association 43 
is requesting $35,000.00.  This amount is unchanged from last year’s request.  She pointed 44 
out that Bar Harbor received a 60% request increase.  The funds go for offsetting costs; 45 
Medicare pays the organization .66 on the dollar.  The Nursing Association is expanding into 46 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 27, 2023 
Page 3 
 
Trenton and Lemoine.  They engage in fundraising events, and they rely on donors.  The 1 
Nursing Association has a loan closet for adaptive equipment that is otherwise expensive to 2 
procure.  65 of their patients are from Mount Desert.   3 
 4 
Warrant Committee member Jaime Blaine noted the net income included in their financials 5 
was a negative number.  It was explained that the Nursing Association is doing some 6 
financial cleanup.  Mistakes were made in past years when the organization was using a 7 
patchwork of temporary employees.  This year they have succeeded in resolving some bad 8 
debt.  A new system has been implemented to ensure the organization is collecting what is 9 
due in a timely manner.   10 
 11 
Northeast Harbor VIS – Jerry Suminsby presented.  The VIS is requesting $5,000.00.  This 12 
has not changed since last year.  The funds go to keeping clear the vistas on Sargent Drive 13 
and on the corner of Peabody Drive.  A tree service is now required for the work.  Yearly 14 
expenses run about $10,000.00 to $30,000.00 based on the work needed.  The organization 15 
has some endowments. 16 
 17 
Pretty Marsh Community Corporation – Ellie Panco presented.  The organization is 18 
requesting $2,500.00 to have a structural assessment of the building done.   19 
 20 
Seal Harbor VIS – Christopher Willis presented.  The VIS is responsible for Seal Harbor 21 
Beach and the Village Green.  They have three employees, one full time.  Much of the 22 
necessary funds are covered by private donations.  They are asking for $55,000.00, which is 23 
unchanged from last year. 24 
 25 
SPCA of Hancock County – Rhiannon Lewis presented.  The SPCA is 100% funded by the 26 
community; they receive no state or federal funds.  They assist with pet adoption and receive 27 
pet surrenders.  They offer spay and neuter clinics, micro chipping and nail clipping service.  28 
They have a pet food pantry as well.  They are requesting $2,000.00 this year.   29 
 30 
Ms. Carter asked if requests to other towns have also increased.  Ms. Lewis noted they 31 
requested this amount from Mount Desert last year, but were approved for $1,000.00.  They 32 
do not receive support from all Towns.   33 
 34 
WIC Nutrition Program – No one was available to present. 35 
 36 

B. DRAFT Warrant articles for review and votes 37 
 38 
Article 3. To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to speak during the 2023 39 
Annual Town Meeting. 40 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, recommending for passage Article 3 titled 41 
“To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to speak during the 2023 Annual Town 42 
Meeting” as presented. 43 
Motion approved 4-0. 44 
 45 
Article 5. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Town of 46 
Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted? 47 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 27, 2023 
Page 4 
 
Clerk Woolfolk reminded the Board the only change to the Ordinance was the number of days required 1 
for residency, changing from 180 to 183.   2 
 3 
MOTION:  Ms. Dudman moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 5 titled 4 
“Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” as presented. 5 
Motion approved 4-0. 6 
 7 
Article 31. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Board of 8 
Selectmen, to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the Neighborhood House Club, Inc. for 9 
management and maintenance of the municipal swimming pool, for a term of one (1) year 10 
beginning July 1, 2023 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its sole 11 
discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 12 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 31 titled 13 
“To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Board of Selectmen, to 14 
negotiate and enter into an agreement with the Neighborhood House Club, Inc. for management and 15 
maintenance of the municipal swimming pool, for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 2023 under 16 
such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its sole discretion, deems to be in the best 17 
interests of the Town.” as presented. 18 
Motion approved 4-0. 19 
 20 
Article 33. Shall the voters of the Town of Mount Desert authorize the Selectboard to negotiate 21 
and complete the sale of the 2013 ambulance received by the Town by gift of the Northeast Harbor 22 
Ambulance Service (“NEHAS”) on or about April 26th, 2022 by returning it to NEHAS for $1 23 
pursuant to the terms of the gift instrument by which NEHAS donated it to the Town? 24 
MOTION: Mr. Mooers moved, with Ms. Dudman seconding, recommending for passage Article 33 titled 25 
“Shall the voters of the Town of Mount Desert authorize the Selectboard to negotiate and complete the 26 
sale of the 2013 ambulance received by the Town by gift of the Northeast Harbor Ambulance Service 27 
(“NEHAS”) on or about April 26th, 2022 by returning it to NEHAS for $1 pursuant to the terms of the 28 
gift instrument by which NEHAS donated it to the Town?” as presented. 29 
Motion approved 4-0. 30 
 31 
Article 36. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will amend the policy adopted 32 
March 1986 and amended May 4, 2010 and May 3, 2016 and entitled Town of Mount Desert 33 
Investment Policy as described and deleted through strikethrough markings. 34 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 36 titled 35 
“To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will amend the policy adopted March 1986 and 36 
amended May 4, 2010 and May 3, 2016 and entitled Town of Mount Desert Investment Policy as 37 
described and deleted through strikethrough markings.” As presented. 38 
Motion approved 3-0-1 (Dudman in Abstention). 39 
 40 
Article 37. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to establish a new Debt 41 
Service Operating Reserve Account. The Selectboard shall be authorized to use funds appropriated 42 
to the Debt Service Operating Reserve Account to meet the goals of minimizing year to year 43 
fluctuations in debt service expense and utilizing pro-rata allocation of net interest/dividends within 44 
the Town’s reserve investment portfolio to subsidize future debt service payments. Said reserve 45 
may not be used for debt service attributable to enterprise fund(s). 46 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 37 titled 47 
“To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to establish a new Debt Service 48 
Operating Reserve Account. The Selectboard shall be authorized to use funds appropriated to the Debt 49 
Service Operating Reserve Account to meet the goals of minimizing year to year fluctuations in debt 50 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 27, 2023 
Page 5 
 
service expense and utilizing pro-rata allocation of net interest/dividends within the Town’s reserve 1 
investment portfolio to subsidize future debt service payments. Said reserve may not be used for debt 2 
service attributable to enterprise fund(s).” as presented. 3 
Motion approved 3-0-1 (Dudman in Abstention). 4 
 5 
Article 57. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the 6 
Selectboard to transfer up to two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) from the Capital 7 
Gains Reserve Account #400-24202 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 tax commitment. The exact amount, 8 
as limited by the aforementioned maximum value, shall be determined by the Selectboard’s timely 9 
assessment of current and expected market conditions. 10 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, recommending for passage Article 57 titled 11 
“To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to transfer 12 
up to two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) from the Capital Gains Reserve Account #400-13 
24202 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 tax commitment. The exact amount, as limited by the aforementioned 14 
maximum value, shall be determined by the Selectboard’s timely assessment of current and expected 15 
market conditions.” As presented. 16 
Motion approved 4-0. 17 
 18 
Article 59. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the overdraft 19 
that occurred in Public Works for the year ended June 30,2022, in the amount of $42,183.37. Said 20 
overage was primarily caused by expenditures in Department 515, Waste Management exceeding 21 
budgeted expectations by $48,215.62 and Department 520, Buildings & Grounds exceeding 22 
budgeted expectations by $18,125.51. The overdraft was charged to the Undesignated Fund 23 
Balance. Total appropriations for departments 501, 515, 520, 525, and 530 Highways, Waste 24 
Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and Environmental Sustainability for the 25 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 were $2,729,726 and total expenditures recognized in said fiscal 26 
year amount to $2,771,909.37. 27 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 59 titled 28 
“To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the overdraft that occurred in 29 
Public Works for the year ended June 30,2022, in the amount of $42,183.37. Said overage was primarily 30 
caused by expenditures in Department 515, Waste Management exceeding budgeted expectations by 31 
$48,215.62 and Department 520, Buildings & Grounds exceeding budgeted expectations by $18,125.51. 32 
The overdraft was charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance. Total appropriations for departments 501, 33 
515, 520, 525, and 530 Highways, Waste Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 34 
Environmental Sustainability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 were $2,729,726 and total 35 
expenditures recognized in said fiscal year amount to $2,771,909.37.” as presented. 36 
Motion approved 4-0. 37 
 38 
Article 61. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to amend 39 
appropriations for department 801 Debt Service within the general operating fund for the fiscal 40 
year ending June 30, 2023 from $1,736,705 to $1,746,000. The difference in original and revised 41 
appropriations will be charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance, subject to actual variance(s) in 42 
audited activity. Such amendment in appropriations is necessitated primarily by the difference in 43 
interest expense budgeted for and actually incurred for Bond Series 2018 Road Projects. 44 
MOTION:  Mr. Wood moved, with Mr. Mooers seconding, recommending for passage Article 61, titled 45 
“To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to amend appropriations for department 46 
801 Debt Service within the general operating fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 from 47 
$1,736,705 to $1,746,000. The difference in original and revised appropriations will be charged to the 48 
Undesignated Fund Balance, subject to actual variance(s) in audited activity. Such amendment in 49 
appropriations is necessitated primarily by the difference in interest expense budgeted for and actually 50 



Town of Mount Desert Selectboard 
Minutes of February 27, 2023 
Page 6 
 
incurred for Bond Series 2018 Road Projects.” as presented. 1 
Motion approved 4-0. 2 
 3 
Article 72. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 4 
appropriate for Department 801 Debt Service for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.  5 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 72 titled 6 
“To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for 7 
Department 801 Debt Service for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.” As presented. 8 
Motion approved 4-0. 9 
 10 
Article 74. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and 11 
appropriate for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 2023 – 2024 Town 12 
Budget. 13 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, recommending for passage Article 74 titled 14 
“To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for 15 
Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.” As presented. 16 
Motion approved 4-0. 17 
 18 

IV. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s 19 
discretion via majority vote to do so under Other Business or out of order.) 20 

A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 21 
There was no Other Business. 22 
 23 

V. Adjournment 24 
MOTION:  Mr. Mooers moved, with Mr. Wood seconding, to adjourn. 25 
Motion approved 4-0. 26 
 27 
The Meeting adjourned at 7:28PM. 28 
 29 
 30 
Respectfully Submitted, 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
Geoffrey Wood35 

 



 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  





MEMO 

 

To:  Durlin Lunt, Jr., Town Manager 

From: Tony Smith, Member, MRC Board of Directors 

Re: Update on the MRC-owned Municipal Solid Waste Processing Facility located in 

Hampden, Maine 

Date: March 16, 2023 

 

On March 8, 2023, representatives of the MRC and the State’s Environment & Natural 

Resources Committee met to discuss the history, status and needs of the referenced subject and 

its relevancy to the MRC membership area. A PowerPoint (PPT) presentation was provided to 

those in attendance, a copy of which is enclosed with this memo. Also included is a brief of the 

information used in conjunction with the slides in the PPT presentation. This information gives a 

very good, concise summary of where we were and where we are now.  

 

The PPT slides are not numbered. To be able to cross-reference the notes to the slides, I have 

included them by their numerical order in the brief as they appear in the PPT just ahead of the 

discussion points associated with them.   

 

I will be available Monday to participate in the meeting. 

 

 

 
Enc. 

cc. Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 

 



MRC ENR Committee Briefing/3-8-23 1 

MRC Environment & Natural Resources Committee Briefing 

March 8, 2023 

 
The following is information that was presented by representatives of the MRC to the State’s 
Environment & Natural Resources Committee on March 8, 2023. This written material was 
presented in conjunction with a PowerPoint presentation, a copy of which is enclosed. The 
PowerPoint slides are not numbered so I have identified them as shown below along with the 
title of each slide.  
  
1. Slide 1: Municipal Waste Solutions, Hampden, ME 

2. Advanced Recycling and Waste Processing for Central, Northern, and Central Maine  

3. Slide 2: Introduction and history 

o Karen Fussell, MRC President 
o Mike Carroll, MRC Executive Director 

4. Good morning, thank you so much for having us here.  My name is Karen Fussell.  I am the 
President of the Municipal Review Committee Board of Directors.  With me today is MRC’s 
Executive Director Mike Carroll.   

5. Our plan today is for me to take about 15 or 20 minutes to provide a broad overview of the 
situation with the $80 million advanced recycling and waste processing facility in Hampden 
and then bring in Mike, who knows more about the facility than anyone, to help answer any 
specific questions you may have.   

6. We are here today to introduce you to our organization and educate you on the Hampden 
facility’s critical role in waste management and landfill diversion in central, eastern, and 
northern Maine.  

7. We will explain why the plant was developed in the first place, how it recycles and 
repurposes waste, why it closed in May of 2020, and how the factors that led to its closure 
no longer exist.   We’ll tell you about the efforts to restart the facility and the negative 
environmental and economic implications if the plant is not re-opened. 

8. But most importantly, we are here to ask for your help.  As you will hear, MRC is finally in 
the driver’s seat with regard to the future of the facility, but our efforts to secure private 
sector funding to restart it have not yet succeeded and we are running out of time to return 
its 180,000 tons per year of waste processing capacity to a part of the state that desperately 
needs it.   

9. We are not looking for a handout.  Rather, we are looking for assistance in securing a loan, 
which we will be able to pay back with interest once the plant is up and running.   



MRC ENR Committee Briefing/3-8-23 2 

Slide 3: Municipal Review Committee 
 
10. First, let me tell you who we are. 

11. The Municipal Review Committee is a nonprofit that manages waste disposal for 115 towns 
and cities stretching from Lincoln County to Aroostook and Washington Counties.  We’ve 
provided a copy of our member map in your packet.  

12. Since its inception 32 years ago, MRC's mission has been to provide long term, affordable, 
environmentally sound disposal of our members’ waste. 

13. A few of you may remember the circumstances back in the early nineties that led to MRC’s 
formation.  PERC, the privately developed waste to energy incinerator in Orrington, had 
opened in 1988, but quickly found itself in financial distress, declaring the need for higher 
tip fees to remain solvent.  Towns and cities, who all had individual 30-year contracts with 
PERC, realized they could be much more effective working together, and MRC was formed.   

14. PERC operated successfully for many years with MRC support, buoyed financially by a 
favorable power sales agreement worth over $10 million annually.  As the 2018 expiration 
date of the power purchase arrangement and our members’ waste contracts approached, 
MRC looked to the future.   

15. Slide 4: History of the Hampden Facility 

16. MRC’s goal was to move our region to the next generation of waste management and 
higher on Maine’s solid waste hierarchy—to a model that would substantially increase 
recycling and diversion from landfills.   One that would rely on less waste and be more 
appropriately sized to our needs. 

17. PERC’s private partners, however, did not share this vision and were not interested in 
looking at new ways to operate, preferring instead to pursue government subsidies and tip 
fee increases to support the status quo.  

18. This led MRC to undertake a solicitation process for alternative waste processing 
technologies that resulted in the construction of the facility in Hampden.   

19. Slide 5: Process schematic 

20. The $80 million plant is designed to divert 70-80% of incoming waste from landfill by 
removing recyclables from MSW at the front end, creating pulp and other commodities out 
of fiber waste and other residuals, and converting organics into biogas.   

21. This rough schematic gives you a sense of the set up, but photos of the facility and its 
equipment show you its real heft and scale.   



MRC ENR Committee Briefing/3-8-23 3 

22. Slide 6: Here is the 144,000 sq ft building.  You can see the admin offices in the lower right 
and the truck scales and anaerobic digestion tanks to the left.   

23. Slide 7: Front end – Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) 

24. Inside, the front end MRF uses optical sorters and other mechanical processes to separate 
the waste into various commodity streams.  

25. Slide 8: Tip Floor 

26. Tip floor where the MSW is dumped upon delivery to the facility.  

27. Slide 9: Mechanical Separation 

28. Material separation by mechanical means for processing. 

29. Slide 10: Baled recyclables 

30. Baled recyclables: plastics on the left and cardboard on the right. 

31. Slide 11: Trailer load of pulp 

32. Waste fiber like diapers, paper towels, and food covered pizza boxes too contaminated for 
traditional recycling get sent to the pulper.  Here you can see the end product.   

33. Slide 12: Pulp & Plastic Fuel Briquettes 

34. Pulp (on the left) produced from soiled paper and cardboard and plastic fuel briquettes (on 
the right) made from recovered saran wrap and garbage bag type materials.  

35. Slide 13: Organic slurry & Anaerobic digestion tanks 

36. Wash water laden with organics is sent to the anaerobic digester and converted into biogas.   

37. Slide 14: Air scrubbers and digestion tanks & Biogas flare 

38. A recent tour of the plant showing air scrubbers, anaerobic digestion tanks and a biogas 
flare. 

39. Slide 15: Why did the plant close? 

40. The facility began accepting waste from MRC members in 2019 and operated at a 
commercial level for seven months before shutting down in May 2020. During that time, the 
plant passed its performance tests and demonstrated this new waste processing concept 
could work.  In these startup months it produced diversion rates of over 50%--keep in mind 
that the State average is around 30%—and demonstrated it was capable of much higher.   



MRC ENR Committee Briefing/3-8-23 4 

41. The plant was on the cusp of moving to higher diversion levels when the owners ran out of 
money.  There were four primary factors that led them there: 

1. Construction of the facility took longer and cost more than anticipated. 

2. The drastic drop in recycling markets brought on by China’s National Sword program. 

3. Lack of a MDEP permit to sell the pulp the facility produced, which meant the pulp was a 
cost rather than an income source—and pulp makes up about a third of what the plant 
produces. 

4. The final nail in the coffin was the inability of the owners to close on a $10 million loan 
to implement a targeted profit improvement plan, pay some creditors, and have 
sufficient working capital until the PIP was complete.  The onset of COVID and concerns 
about management caused the bondholders to pull out of the deal at the 11th hour. 

42. In the end, the owners were undercapitalized and did not have the appropriate cash 
reserves to weather these issues. 

43. So, in the summer of 2020, the senior creditor—the bondholders, who were owed $52 
million—placed the Hampden facility in receivership for the purpose of finding a new 
owner.  It is an understatement to say that the bondholders did not feel the sense of 
urgency we did, and the process took two very long years to complete.   

44.  Slide 16: MRC takes over 

45. Even though we didn’t own it, MRC secured and took care of the facility during this period.  
It was only last August (TS: 2022) that MRC finally gained ownership of the plant.   

46. Overall, MRC and its members have invested over $13 million in the Hampden facility.  This 
includes purchase of the land, development of the road and utilities, maintaining the plant 
these last three years so it could be reopened, and the $1.5 million cost to purchase the 
facility from the bondholders.   

47. On the plus side, we now own processing equipment that operated for seven months that is 
assessed by the Town of Hampden at $27 million, a 144,000 sq foot building assessed at $11 
million, and land assessed at $300,000, but that we estimate is worth closer to $2 million 
since it is now developed for industrial use with road access and utilities.  

48. Our problem is that we are quickly running out of time to access the $20 million we 
estimate will be needed to restart the plant.  Our hope had been to find private sector 
funding; however, to date that has not succeeded, and if MRC does not have a defined path 
within the next 2-3 months, we will be forced to sell the facility to someone who will not 
use it to process waste and our 115 member communities will need to seek other 
arrangements for waste disposal.   



MRC ENR Committee Briefing/3-8-23 5 

Slide 17: We don’t want this (landfilling) 
 
49. The problem is that those other arrangements mean landfilling for most, if not all, of our 

115 members’ 110,000 tons of waste for the foreseeable future.  The alternatives to 
landfill—in our region and across the state—are limited.  PERC, the incinerator in our area, 
no longer has the capacity to accommodate our volume of waste and they themselves have 
not processed waste since November.  The State’s other incinerators—ecomaine in 
Westbrook and MMWAC in Auburn—are also at capacity.   

50. Slide 18: What is the difference now? 

51. MRC is confident the Hampden facility will work and will make money once it is up and 
running. Multiple independent engineering reviews have confirmed this.  And the factors 
that led to the plant’s closure no longer exist.   

52. For one, the facility is no longer saddled with $80 million in debt that needs to be repaid, 
with interest.   

53. Two, the recycling markets have rebounded.   

54. Three, the facility now has the DEP permit to sell the pulp, so 30% of the plant’s product will 
be a revenue item rather than an expense.   

55. Four, MRC has the expertise needed and has identified well qualified operators to restart 
and run the facility.  

56. Lastly, MRC understands the restart financing needs to include sufficient working capital to 
get through the 18-24 months it will take the facility to achieve profitability.   

57. Slide 19: The search for funding 

58. Because we believe in this facility—seen it in action and know that it works— MRC has been 
doing everything in its power to get it reopened.  While we have talked with numerous 
state and federal agencies, commercial lenders, and even our own members about funding, 
our focus from the outset has been to seek private investment rather than rely on 
governmental support.   

59. We are just wrapping up our fifth solicitation process seeking proposals to restart the plant.  
During the first three, the bondholders were in control but they were prone to inaction and 
the plant was weighed down by a complex legal ownership structure, significant debt, and a 
long list of creditors.   

60. Since MRC bought it out of receivership in August and cleared it of most of its liabilities, we 
have conducted two solicitations.  After the first one last summer, MRC entered into an 
exclusive agreement with Revere Capital Advisors, a New York private investment firm, to 
partner with the MRC and reopen the plant.  Although the firm expended significant effort 



MRC ENR Committee Briefing/3-8-23 6 

and resources to pursue the partnership, they missed multiple closing deadlines and, 
ultimately, could not provide proof they had access to the full amount of funding needed to 
restart the facility.  Revere’s exclusivity lapsed at the end of January, and MRC immediately 
began another round of solicitation.   

61. Our board meets later (TS: March 8, 2023) today to evaluate whether any of the latest 
proposals received are viable.  However, even if the board votes to explore a partnership 
with another entity, MRC must simultaneously pursue an alternate source of funding in case 
the private sector option does not yield results.  MRC is down to the end of its resources 
and if a path to restart funding is not clear by early summer, we will be forced to liquidate 
the facility.  Our time is running perilously short.   

62.  Slide 20: MRC’s loan access challenge 

63. As I stated at the beginning, MRC is not in need of a handout.  Our projections show the 
facility will be able to repay principal and interest on a loan.  Our challenge, however, is 
getting access to one.   

64. We all know that lenders require collateral to secure a loan.  They need to have a way to 
recoup their funds if the borrower cannot repay them.  This is true whether you are dealing 
with a commercial bank or a federal or state loan program such as through USDA Rural 
Development, the Finance Authority of Maine, or the Maine Municipal Bond Bank.   

65. The way lenders confirm that your proposed collateral provides sufficient coverage in the 
case of the loan default is through an appraisal.  However, this has proven to be a major 
roadblock for us.   

66. For one, an appraisal of a facility like ours would be expensive—in the hundreds of 
thousands.  Two, such an appraisal would take a significant amount of time, which we don’t 
have—upwards of 8 months--in part because there are very few people in the US that 
would be qualified to conduct such an appraisal due to the facility’s uniqueness.   

67. And because the facility is unique and not operating, there is uncertainty over the value an 
appraisal might confirm.  The bondholders sold it to MRC for $1.5 million.  They were owed 
$52 million.  Would they have done that if they could have gotten substantially more money 
selling it another way?   

68. The value is undoubtedly higher now that the facility and the land are owned by the same 
entity (the MRC), but is it fully enough to collateralize a $20 million loan?  Probably not.   

69. When the plant was operating, an appraisal would have included a fairly straight forward 
cash flow analysis with appropriate Present Value calculations, and assumptions about the 
existence of markets the plant can support with the products it makes.  But with the plant 
not running, a lender cannot reasonably rely on future revenue from operation to support a 
loan.  



MRC ENR Committee Briefing/3-8-23 7 

70. MRC has discussed seeking an appraisal several times over the last three years, however, 
with our extremely limited resources, we could not justify that outlay given the uncertainty 
of the outcome and the length of time involved.   

71. Slide 21: Restart funding 

72. An alternative to securing a loan using the facility as collateral is to obtain the pledge of a 
government to guarantee payment of the loan.   

73. This approach has a number of advantages, including the fact that it requires no cash 
appropriation up front.  The guarantee simply acts as a backstop down the road in the 
unlikely event that some portion of the debt not be paid back.  A governmental full faith 
and credit pledge would also encourage favorable loan rates because it is considered very 
secure.   

74. The MRC has considered asking its members to collectively provide this credit backing; 
however, like the issue of the appraisal, practically speaking, it has not been viable.   

75. Between the legislative and voter approval processes required by each community, not to 
mention the education and outreach on the issue that would be needed, such an 
undertaking would require a minimum of 6 months.   

76. More importantly, it was not possible to pursue a member ownership model at the same 
time as we were working with private investors.   

77. So, we find ourselves at a critical juncture and here today seeking support for a solution.  
Could the state help MRC access a loan for $20 million?   

78. This chart shows the rough breakdown of funds and the timeframe in which we expect they 
would be needed.   

79. There is a need to stem the flow of waste to landfills in the northern half of the state, and 
we have a facility in Hampden poised to address that need.   

80. In closing, I would just like to say that MRC and its volunteer board has never worked harder 
for its members and the future of waste disposal in our region than we have over the last 
three years.  We would not be fighting for this plant if there were an easier or better long 
term solution to our region’s waste problem.  We stand behind it because we know the 
technology works and can provide recycling and waste processing that will be cost-effective 
for our members and help the state achieve its solid waste diversion goals. 

81. Slide 22: Thank you for your time  

82. Questions?   

 



M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
W

a
st

e
 S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

H
a
m

p
d
e
n
, 

M
E

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 R

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a

n
d
 W

a
st

e
 P

ro
c
e
ss

in
g
 

fo
r 

C
e
n
tr

a
l,

 N
o
rt

h
e
rn

 a
n
d
 E

a
st

e
rn

 M
a
in

e



K
a
re

n
 F

u
ss

e
ll
, 

M
R
C
 P

re
si

d
e
n
t

M
ik

e
 C

a
rr

o
ll
, 

M
R
C
 E

x
e
c
u
ti

v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r


W

h
o
 i
s 

th
e
 M

R
C
?


O

ri
g
in

 o
f 

th
e
 H

a
m

p
d
e
n
 f

a
c
il
it

y


H

o
w

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
t 

re
c
y
c
le

s


W

h
y
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
t 

c
lo

se
d


E
ff

o
rt

s 
to

 r
e
st

a
rt

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
t


C
o
n
se

q
u
e
n
c
e
s 

sh
o
u
ld

 p
la

n
t 

n
o
t 

re
o
p
e
n


M

R
C
’s

 p
la

n



M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l
R

e
v
ie

w
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

E
n
su

ri
n
g
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

, 
lo

n
g
 t

e
rm

, 
a
n
d

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

ll
y
 s

o
u
n
d
 d

is
p
o
sa

l 
o
f 

M
S
W


F
o
rm

e
d
 b

y
 M

a
in

e
 t

o
w

n
s 

in
 1

9
9
1


B
o
rn

 o
u
t 

o
f 

P
E
R
C
’s

 s
ta

rt
u
p
 c

ri
si

s


R
e
p
re

se
n
ts

 1
1
5
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s 

fr
o
m

 W
is

c
a
ss

e
t 

to
 S

m
y
rn

a
 t

o
 J

o
n
e
sb

o
ro


O

n
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e


V
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

b
o
a
rd

 o
f 

d
ir

e
c
to

rs


N

o
n
p
ro

fi
t



H
is

to
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 H

a
m

p
d
e
n
 F

a
c
il
it

y

2
0
1
0
: 

 M
R
C
 a

n
d
 P

E
R
C
 b

e
g
in

 d
is

c
u
ss

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
si

o
n
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 2

0
1
8
. 

M
R
C
 b

e
g
in

s 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
e
m

e
rg

in
g
 t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y.

2
0
1
1
: 

 P
E
R
C
 o

w
n
e
r 

fl
o
a
ts

 p
ro

p
o
sa

l 
fo

r 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

e
x
te

n
si

o
n
 a

t 
o
v
e
r 

$
1
0
0
 p

e
r 

to
n
.

M
R
C
 r

e
q
u
e
st

s 
a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s.

2
0
1
3
: 

 M
R
C
 s

o
li
c
it

s 
p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 f

o
r 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e
 w

a
st

e
 p

ro
c
e
ss

in
g
 t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s.
P
E
R
C
 o

w
n
e
r 

d
e
c
li
n
e
s 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

.

2
0
1
4
: 

 M
R
C
 r

e
v
ie

w
s 

1
5
 p

ro
p
o
sa

ls
, 

v
is

it
s 

5
 f

a
c
il
it

ie
s.

 

2
0
1
5
: 

 M
R
C
 a

n
d
 F

ib
e
ri

g
h
t 

si
g
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

2
0
1
6
: 

 F
ib

e
ri

g
h
t 

c
lo

se
s 

o
n
 f

in
a
n
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 b

e
g
in

s 
c
o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
.







F
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
 –

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 F
a
c
il
it

y
 (

M
R
F
)



T
ip

 f
lo

o
r



M
e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
se

p
a
ra

ti
o
n



B
a
le

d
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s



Tr
a
il
e
r 

lo
a
d
 o

f 
p
u
lp



P
u

lp
P

la
st

ic
 F

u
el

 B
ri

q
u

et
te

s



O
rg

a
n
ic

 s
lu

rr
y

A
n
a
e
ro

b
ic

 d
ig

e
st

io
n
 t

a
n
k
s



A
ir

 s
c
ru

b
b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 d

ig
e
st

io
n
 t

a
n
k
s

B
io

g
a
s 

fl
a
re



W
h
y

d
id

th
e

p
la

n
t

c
lo

se
?


C
o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
 d

e
la

y
s 

a
n
d
 c

o
st

 o
v
e
rr

u
n
s


C
o
ll
a
p
se

o
f

w
o
rl

d
re

c
y
c
li
n
g

m
a
rk

e
ts


L
a
c
k
 o

f 
M

D
E
P
 p

e
rm

it
 t

o
 s

e
ll
 p

u
lp


K
e
y
 l
o
a
n
 p

u
ll
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
st

 m
in

u
te


L
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
a
sh

 r
e
se

rv
e
s 

to
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s



M
R
C
 t

a
k
e
s 

o
v
e
r

M
R
C
 

se
c
u
re

s 
fa

c
il
it

y

M
R
C
 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

in
v
e
st

m
e
n
t 

to
 d

a
te

 
$
1
3
m

A
ss

e
ts

*
$
2
7
m

 e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

$
1
1
m

 b
u
il
d
in

g
$
3
0
0
k
 l
a
n
d

*T
o
w

n
 o

f 
H

a
m

p
d
e
n
 a

ss
e
ss

e
d
 v

a
lu

e
s



W
e
 d

o
n
’t

 w
a
n
t 

th
is



W
h
a
t 

is
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

n
o
w

? 

F
a
c
to

rs
 L

e
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 C

lo
su

re
N

o
w

C
o
n
st

ru
c
ti

o
n
 c

o
st

 o
v
e
rr

u
n
s/

 

h
ig

h
 d

e
b
t 

lo
a
d

N
o
 e

q
u
it

y
 o

r 
b
o
n
d
h
o
ld

e
r 

d
e
b
t/

 

ju
st

 6
 l
ie

n
s 

(s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
)

C
o
ll
a
p
se

d
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 m

a
rk

e
ts

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 m

a
rk

e
ts

 r
e
e
st

a
b
li
sh

e
d

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
M

D
E
P
 p

e
rm

it
M

D
E
P
 p

e
rm

it
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

P
o
o
r 

o
v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

/
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
fa

c
il
it

y
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r

M
R
C
 h

a
s 

th
e
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 

ta
k
e
 a

c
ti

v
e
 r

o
le

 i
n
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t



T
h
e
 s

e
a
rc

h
 f

o
r 

fu
n
d
in

g


P
ri

v
a
te

 i
n
v
e
st

m
e
n
t 

fo
c
u
s 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

su
p
p
o
rt


5
 s

o
li
c
it

a
ti

o
n
 p

ro
c
e
ss

e
s 

si
n
c
e
 2

0
2
0


3

w
h
il
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

p
la

n
t 

w
a
s 

in
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
rs

h
ip


2

si
n
c
e

M
R
C

g
a
in

e
d

c
o
n
tr

o
l
in

A
u
g
u
st

2
0
2
2


L
o
a
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 i
f 

p
ri

v
a
te

 o
p
ti

o
n

n
o
t

su
c
c
e
ss

fu
l



M
R
C
’s

 l
o
a
n
 a

c
c
e
ss

 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e


N

e
e
d
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 l
o
a
n
 –

c
o
ll
a
te

ra
l 

v
s.

 l
o
a
n
 g

u
a
ra

n
te

e


A
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
o
f 

H
a
m

p
d
e
n
 f

a
c
il
it

y
 a

ss
e
t 

is
 p

ro
b
le

m
a
ti

c


H

ig
h
 c

o
st

 (
e
st

. 
u
p
 t

o
 $

2
5
0
k
)


L
o
n
g
 t

im
e

to
c
o
m

p
le

te
(e

st
.

6
-8

 m
o
n
th

s)


U

n
iq

u
e
 f

a
c
il
it

y
 (

fe
w

 a
p
p
ra

is
e
rs

, 
n
o
 e

a
sy

 c
o
m

p
s)


V
a
lu

e
u
n
li
k
e
ly

 t
o
 m

a
tc

h
 l
o
a
n
 n

e
e
d


G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
ta

l 
c
re

d
it

 p
le

d
g
e
 t

o
 g

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 a

 l
o
a
n


N

o
 c

a
sh

 f
ro

m
 g

u
a
ra

n
to

r 
re

q
u
ir

e
d
 u

p
 f

ro
n
t


A
c
ts

a
s

b
a
c
k
st

o
p

if
p
o
rt

io
n

o
f

d
e
b
t

re
p
a
y
m

e
n
t

is
n
o
t

fu
lf

il
le

d


V
a
lu

e
o
f

fa
c
il
it

y
w

o
u
ld

 l
o
w

e
r

p
o
te

n
ti

a
l
li
a
b
il
it

y


W

o
u
ld

e
n
a
b
le

 M
R
C

to
a
c
c
e
ss

 l
o
a
n
 a

t 
a
 f

a
v
o
ra

b
le

 r
a
te



R
e
st

a
rt

 f
u
n
d
in

g

A
m

o
u
n
t 

U
se

$
 

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
st

s–
d
e
si

g
n
/
e
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
/
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t,

 p
e
rm

it
ti

n
g
, 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 a

c
q
u
is

it
io

n

$
  
  
4
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

R
e
st

a
rt

 c
o
st

s–
la

b
o
r 

a
n
d
 o

u
ts

id
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 

C
O

D
 +

 i
n
it

ia
l 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

, 
re

n
ta

ls
, 

u
ti

li
ti

e
s,

 e
tc

$
  
  
8
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

P
ro

fi
t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 c

a
p
it

a
l 
u
p
g
ra

d
e
s

$
 

4
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

C
a
sh

 f
lo

w
 t

o
 c

o
v
e
r 

lo
ss

e
s 

u
n
ti

l 
p
ro

fi
ta

b
il
it

y

$
  
  
3
,0

0
0
,0

0
0
 

C
o
n
ti

n
g
e
n
c
y

$
2
0
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

M
o
n
th

s 
1
 –

6

$
1
2
 m

il
li
o
n

E
st

im
a
te

d
 T

im
in

g

M
o
n
th

s 
6
 –

1
2

$
4
 m

il
li
o
n

M
o
n
th

s 
1
2
 –

2
4

$
4
 m

il
li
o
n



T
h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
r 

ti
m

e
!

Q
u
e
st

io
n
s?

w
w

w
.m

rc
m

a
in

e
.o

rg

e
x
e
c
d
ir

e
c
to

r@
m

rc
m

a
in

e
.o

rg

k
fu

ss
e
ll
@

b
re

w
e
rm

a
in

e
.g

o
v



 

NEW BUSINESS 

  





 

To: Board of Selectmen 

From: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 

Re: Stone/Matheson Steamboat Wharf Utility Location Permit 

Date: March 16, 2023 

 

G.F. Johnston & Associates (Engineer) have submitted a Utility Location Permit Application (Application) 

on behalf of Finley B Matheson Et Al and Las Piedras LLC. The Application is to relocate existing power 

and communications lines from their current overhead location to an underground location within the 

Steamboat Wharf Road Right of Way as described within the letter, Application, and design plans from 

G.F. Johnston & Associates dated February 24, 2023 and included with Agenda Item VIII A on the Town 

of Mount Desert Board of Selectmen Agenda dated March 20, 2023. The Town requires Utility Location 

Permits when locating utilities within Town Rights-of-Way. The Permit application process allows the 

Town to assess the proposed utility work to ensure conformance with Town standards. 

The Engineer has met and discussed this Application with Public Works on multiple occasions and has 

provided adequate information in the Application. Public Works recommends approval of the Permit. 

Cc: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

 Ben Jacobs, Highways Superintendent 

Claire Wolfolk, Town Clerk 

Memorandum 



G.F. Johnston & Associates 
Civil Engineers and 

 Land Use Consultants
12 Apple Lane,  P.O. Box 197 Southwest Harbor, Maine 04679 

207-244-1200 Phone /Fax

February 24th, 2023 
Board of Selectman 
Brian Henkel-Public Works Director 
21 Sea Street 
PO Box 248 
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662 

RE: Stone/Matheson Steamboat Wharf Utility Location Permit 
       LUO Section 3.4  
       Roadside Distribution Less than 34.5 kva 

Dear Mr. Chairman, Members of the Board and Mr. Henkel: 

We have attached a completed utility location permit application for your review. The project is 
the relocation of the existing overhead power and communication lines to below grade along the 
applicants’ west property lines. The properties are south of the Town’s lift station on Steamboat 
Wharf  Road and extend to the north side of the Yacht Club. The applicant’s properties sit high 
above the road.  The power and communication lines are even with the eye when looking out to 
the Harbor from the owners’ residences. The proposal is to bury approximately 400 feet of 
power lines from Matheson’s north line to the Stones south line. The power lines would rise up 
above grade at an existing pole on the east side of Steamboat Wharf Road opposite the Yacht 
Club. There are no individual services connections between the two properties, thus no need for 
intermediate structures. The buried lines will be encased in concrete and will be continuous 
without interruption from pole to pole below grade. Once the lines are below grade the poles and 
wires can be removed. We have coordinated fully with the power and communication  providers 
in the area ( Versant Consolidated and  Spectrum). We have met them several times onsite and 
solicited their feed back in developing the attached plan. There is an existing pole along the route 
that is planned to be removed which contains a streetlamp. The lamp will be reset on a black 
lamp pole (not a power pole) at a similar height as it exists today.  

The end result of the project will be the removal of the visual nuisances but also the vehicle and 
plowing challenges the poles create in this stretch of Steamboat Wharf Road. The timing of this 
project is planned such that the conduits may be installed this winter prior to the paving planned 
in the spring. We will be available at the next regularly scheduled Board of Selectman meeting to 
answer any questions you may have. We thank you in advance for the time you will spend in 
consideration of this request. 

Sincerely, 

Greg Johnston P.E. 
Registered Civil Engineer 
G.F. Johnston & Associates 



Utility location Permit Application Town Use: Permit Number

Town of Mount Desert

Property Owner (Applicant) Information:

Name

Phone Cell E-mail

Local Street Address

Village

Town State Zip Code

Permit Applicant Information if Not Owner e.g. Agent for Owner:

Name

Phone Cell E-mail

Local Street Address

Village

Town State Zip Code

Proposed Installation (sketch next page)

Work to be undertaken in Village of

Street Name

Type of Work (sewer, water, cable, l-net, etc.,.)

Minimum Depth of Cover Over Asset

Maximum Pressure (PSI, if applicable)

GPSCoordinates (Optional): Latitude (decimal) Longitude (decimal)

Starting Point

Ending Point

Expected Constructien Schedule Start Completion

location Description: On (street name) , beginning at a

point approximately (a distance, including units) feet/miles

(north, south, east, west) from (a reference point e.g. pole with
number, intersection, hydrant, etc. ) and extending in a (north, south, east, west )
direction for a distance of (a distance, including units)

feet/miles.

Bysigning this for Utility Location Permit Application, the undersigned hereby certifies/understands: a) that he/she is a duly authorized

agent/representative of the entity identified above ("Applicant"); b) that, to the best of their knowledge, the information provided herein is

true and accurate; c) they are responsible for contacting all other utilities in the area, Dig Safe and all entities that might have assets in the

proposed excavation area; d) should the Town decide that it needs the location approved by the permit for its own assets, the Applicant shall

move, adjust or relocate the asset described herein at the Applicants own cost and: e) that the Applicant will maintain its facilities in

accordance with the Town of Mount Deserts applicable ordinances and all other atplicable laws.

Signature Date
-

Printed Name
I

Revised 1-17 -12/T

1

Seal Harbor 

Underground Power and Communication Line
Steamboat Wharf Road 

(Agent) 

44 degree 17'38" N 68 degree 14'16" W
44 degree 17'35" N  68 degree 14'14" W

April 2023 June 1, 2023

Steamboat Wharf Road
950 feet

of fountain, 60' south of Library

36" 

N/A

 south 

south
400 feet

to a point east of Yacht Club on Steamboat Wharf Road

Gregory F. Johston
2/24/23

352-205-3859

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
  

ceuser
Typewritten Text
mathesonlucie@aol.com

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
ME

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
G. F. Johnston & Associates, Consulting Civil Engineers

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
207-244-1200

ceuser
Typewritten Text
207-460-6153

ceuser
Typewritten Text
greg@gfjcivilconsult.com

ceuser
Typewritten Text
Southwest Harbor,                                                                         ME 

ceuser
Typewritten Text
PO Box 197

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
  04679

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
Seal Harbor

ceuser
Typewritten Text
Mailing Address: P. O. Box 1045Mount Dora, Florida 32756

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
                                                                                                                    04675                               

ceuser
Typewritten Text
,  

ceuser
Typewritten Text

offic
Typewritten Text
Finley B Matheson Et Al, Trustee Michael and Anne Matheson

offic
Typewritten Text
7 New County Road



Utility location Permit Application Town Use: Permit Number

Town of Mount Desert

Property Owner (Applicant) Information:

Name

Phone Cell E-mail

Local Street Address

Village

Town State Zip Code

Permit Applicant Information if Not Owner e.g. Agent for Owner:

Name

Phone Cell E-mail

Local Street Address

Village

Town State Zip Code

Proposed Installation (sketch next page)

Work to be undertaken in Village of

Street Name

Type of Work (sewer, water, cable, l-net, etc.,.)

Minimum Depth of Cover Over Asset

Maximum Pressure (PSI, if applicable)

GPSCoordinates (Optional): Latitude (decimal) Longitude (decimal)

Starting Point

Ending Point

Expected Constructien Schedule Start Completion

location Description: On (street name) , beginning at a

point approximately (a distance, including units) feet/miles

(north, south, east, west) from (a reference point e.g. pole with
number, intersection, hydrant, etc. ) and extending in a (north, south, east, west )
direction for a distance of (a distance, including units)

feet/miles.

Bysigning this for Utility Location Permit Application, the undersigned hereby certifies/understands: a) that he/she is a duly authorized

agent/representative of the entity identified above ("Applicant"); b) that, to the best of their knowledge, the information provided herein is

true and accurate; c) they are responsible for contacting all other utilities in the area, Dig Safe and all entities that might have assets in the

proposed excavation area; d) should the Town decide that it needs the location approved by the permit for its own assets, the Applicant shall

move, adjust or relocate the asset described herein at the Applicants own cost and: e) that the Applicant will maintain its facilities in

accordance with the Town of Mount Deserts applicable ordinances and all other atplicable laws.

Signature Date
-

Printed Name
I

Revised 1-17 -12/T

1

Seal Harbor 

Underground Power and Communication Line
Steamboat Wharf Road 

(Agent) 

44 degree 17'38" N 68 degree 14'16" W
44 degree 17'35" N  68 degree 14'14" W

April 2023 June 1, 2023

Steamboat Wharf Road
950 feet

of fountain, 60' south of Library

36" 

N/A

 south 

south
400 feet

to a point east of Yacht Club on Steamboat Wharf Road

Gregory F. Johston
2/24/23

1-917-282-7354 jessie@softpowerhealth.com

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
  

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
ME

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
G. F. Johnston & Associates, Consulting Civil Engineers

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
207-244-1200

ceuser
Typewritten Text
207-460-6153

ceuser
Typewritten Text
greg@gfjcivilconsult.com

ceuser
Typewritten Text
Southwest Harbor,                                                                         ME 

ceuser
Typewritten Text
PO Box 197

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
  04679

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
Seal Harbor

ceuser
Typewritten Text
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 166 Seal Harbor

ceuser
Typewritten Text

ceuser
Typewritten Text
Mount Desert                                                                                                                       04675                               

ceuser
Typewritten Text
,  

ceuser
Typewritten Text

offic
Typewritten Text
Las Piedras LLC, C/O Jessie Stone

offic
Typewritten Text
9 New County Road



Utility Location Permit Application: Sketch Plan

Town of Mount Desert

Permit Number:

(Town Use Only)

The purpose of the sketch is to show the location of the proposed opening in relation to the public right-of-way. It is

not necessary to sketch to scale but accurate locations relative to reference points such as fire hydrants, utility poles

or intersections is required. All start and end point, reference points, offset distances and lengths must be accurately

indicated. A separate sheet or formal plan sheet is a suitable substitute for the sketch plan. (Note: Traveled way is

paved surface; shoulders include grass, pavement or gravel; RJW is the roadway right-of-way. Please contact Town

officials for the width per street).

s-0::

TRAV~LWAY*----~·i
~~---+------SHOUuDERS*------~--~i-

:~
I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

Revised 1-17-12

RlW1MDtH
--+-I~

* Show These Distances

Where Appl icabl e

1 rod = 16.50'

2 rod road 33 ft
ROW

all conduits within public 
way , 2 rod road

existing 10" 
w.m

ex.8"
pvc 
san.sewer

Referenced attached
sketch for further detail.

20' paved road

shoulders 0-2 feet

offic
Line

offic
Line

offic
Line

offic
Line

offic
Line

offic
Typewritten Text
EAST

offic
Typewritten Text
WEST

offic
Typewritten Text
NORTH

offic
Typewritten Text
SOUTH

offic
Typewritten Text
NEW UGELE/COMMBELOW PAVEDROAD

offic
Line





PEASLEY, ROBERT 
 

9:40 AM (21 minutes ago)  
to me, JASON 

 
 

Greg your plan reflects what we discussed and agreed upon in the field when we last 
met. 
Good luck with your meetings with the town on your project. 

From: Greg Johnston <gfjcivilconsult@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 11:57 AM 
To: PEASLEY, ROBERT <robert.peasley@versantpower.com>; FITZGERALD, JASON 
<jason.fitzgerald@versantpower.com> 
Subject: Steamboat Wharf, Matheson Stone 

mailto:gfjcivilconsult@gmail.com
mailto:robert.peasley@versantpower.com
mailto:jason.fitzgerald@versantpower.com


 

G.F. Johnston & Associates 
Consulting Civil Engineers 

 
 

Matheson/ Stone Pole Removal Photos 
Steamboat Wharf moving North to South 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Existing Pole at Matheson Library Line to 
remain 

Pole to be removed in Fore ground 

 

 
Pole with Light to be removed in background 

Light to remain on standard 20’ mounted black 
lamp post 

 

 

 
Pole to be Riser Pole and remain 

Service to Yacht club remain 
 



 

G.F. Johnston & Associates 
Consulting Civil Engineers 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Transformer from Matheson Deck 

 
 

 
Lines and Poles from Stone Residence 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Lines and poles near Matheson Stone Line Transformer and pole at Stone South line to 
remain 

 





 

Town of Mount Desert 
Michael Bender, Fire Chief 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone 207-276-5111  Fax 207-276-5732 
Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

firechief@mtdesert.org 
  

Memo 
To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager  
From: Mike Bender, Fire Chief 
CC:  
Date: March 16, 2023 
Re: Burying Town Office Electrical Service Lines 

 

I had a resident asked if we could get a proposal to install the new 3-phase electrical service lines 
that come into the town office building underground versus the usual overhead attachments. 
There was concern that the sight of 3 electrical cables crossing over Sea Street from north to 
south as they enter the town office would be unsightly for those navigating Sea Street, especially 
heading east looking down towards the marina area.  

I told the individual I would get a cost estimate for this change order (CO) and bring the matter to 
the Board of Selectmen for discussion and if approved, seek authorization to use project 
contingency funds for the work. Estimated costs for this CO is $23,872.00.  

This CO will have no impact on the overall project except for using contingency funds. At this 
point in construction, it is my opinion that there are sufficient funds in the contingency line to cover 
the costs if BOS wishes to approve this.   

I would request that you ask the BOS for direction with this and if approved, authorization to sign 
the CO.    

 

 

 

Thank you.   

 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org


 

 

Main Office 
63 Dublin Street Ste 4 
Machias, ME 04654 

Ellsworth Office 
210 Main Street 
Ellsworth, ME 04605 

207.497.2312 
 

 
 
 

 
Justin T. King, President 

CHANGE PROPOSAL 
Date: 
1/24/2023 

Change Proposal No.: 
11 

Project: 
Mount Desert Fire Station #1 Renovation   
 

Location: 

Mount Desert, Maine  

Contractor: 

  King Construction Services, Inc. 

Description of Change Proposal: Underground Electrical  
1. Request from town, to run the electrical service underground from the existing service pole across the street 

on Sea Street.   
RF Jordan- Traffic Control, Saw Cut and Removal of existing asphalt, Excavation and Backfill for new Electrical 
Service, Concrete Encasement, and Asphalt Restoration.                                                                                     $15,980.00 
MCM Electric- Extend electrical across the street to pole underground. Delete new pole.                              $5,722.00                                                                                                                  

The following change order proposal is for the additional material and labor cost for the requested changes to the 
contract documents. 

Description Price 

Subtotal Subcontractor $21,702.00 

Subcontractor Markup (10%) $2,170.00 

Subtotal Subcontractor including markup $23,872.00 

  

KCS $0.00 

Subtotal Contractor $0.00 

Contractor Markup (15%) $0.00 

Subtotal Contractor including markup $0.00 

  

Total cop amount $23,872.00 





PROPOSAL
Date

1/24/2023
Proposal Number

2023-11A
TO

Casey Eaglin
King Construction Services, Inc.

MCM Electric, Inc.

Job Name / Location

NEH Fire Station #1

x

Sales Tax (6.0%)

Job Phone

497-2312
Customer Fax

49 Hall Quarry Road
Mt. Desert, ME  04660

Tel: (207) 244-7454
Fax: (207) 244-0241

e-Mail: Mike@mcmelectric.com Send via:            U.S.Mail            e-Mail            Fax

 WE hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby
accepted.  You are authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment will be as

outlined above.

Signature

Signature

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a profes-
sional manner according to standard practices.  Any alterations or deviation from
the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written

orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate.  All agree-
ments are contingent upon delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire and

other necessary insurance.  Our workers are fully covered by required insurance.

Date of Acceptance

Authorized
Signature

NOTE: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within            days.

OFFER OF PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

30

DescriptionItem Total

Proposal #2023-11:  to extend new underground across Sea Street 8,922.00
To delete line Item J:  all materials and labor needed to set pole -3,200.00

NOT INCLUDED:  concrete to go over conduits if necessary

$5,722.00$0.00



 

Town of Mount Desert 
Michael Bender, Fire Chief, Emergency 

Management Director 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
Telephone 207-276-5111  Fax 207-276-5732 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 
firechief@mtdesert.org 

  

Memo 
To: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager  
From: Mike Bender, Fire Chief 
CC:  
Date: March 16, 2023 
Re: Authorization to Release Funds from Account #4040300-24471(Fire Equipment Reserve) 

 

I would like to request consideration from the Board of Selectman to release an amount not to 
exceed $22,000.00 from account #4040300-24471(Fire Equipment Reserve), and 
authorization to use such funds for the purpose of purchasing 5 sets of structural firefighting 
gear from Bergeron Protective Clothing. Each ensemble will include pants, coat, boots, 
protective hood, and 2 pair’s gloves. The unencumbered balance of the Fire Equipment 
Reserve as of January 31, 2023, is $486,574.66. 

Most of this new gear order is for the recently hired full-time staff with one set for per diem 
firefighters who have been filling open shifts. This did not go out to bid because it is the same 
brand of gear we have now and I would like to have all our structural firefighting gear to be 
consistent in fit, color and especially safety features.   

 

 

 

      Thank you.   

 

 

 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org


 

Selectboard, 

 

In reviewing personnel policy language, sections 5.2.4 and 5.3 were identified for proposed language 
change, as shown in the subsequent pages. The proposed amendment to section 5.2.4 aims to ensure 
consistent application for rate changes associated with promotions and compensate employees for the 
additional job duties and responsibilities that come with the promotion. The proposed amendment to 
section 5.3 serves to differentiate more appropriately between new-hire probation and the probation 
associated with promotions or job transfers of existing employees. This is accomplished by specifying 
that the degree and nature of change in position will determine the need for such probation. 

 

Thank you, 

 

 

Jake Wright 

Finance Director 

 

 

Town of Mount Desert 
Jake Wright, Finance Director 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 
Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232 

Web Address www.mtdesert.org 
financedirector@mtdesert.org 

 
 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org


CURRENT 
 
5.2.1 PROMOTIONS 
 
5.2.1  Promotion  All full-time promotional positions will be filled by the competitive 
selection process.  The Town shall always seek the best-matched person for the 
particular job.  Where Town employee and outside applicants have equal 
qualifications; the Town employee will be given preference.  Department heads shall 
have the authority to recommend promotions, subject to the approval of the Town 
Manager.  Promotion shall mean when a Town employee moves to a position in a 
higher pay range and/or increased responsibilities. 
 
5.2.2  If an employee is advanced to a position of increased responsibility, his/her 
compensation level may advance to the entry level of the new position to which the 
employee was promoted as approved by the Town Manager. 
 
5.2.3  Advancement from one salary grade to a higher salary grade shall be 
considered a promotional increase, granted for the assumption of significant additional 
responsibilities and subject to a satisfactory performance review rendered by the 
employee's department head. 
 
5.2.4  When an employee is promoted to a higher-rated position, he or she  may enter 
it at the minimum rate for the position, or his or her present rate, whichever is higher or 
a mutually agreed rate between the Town and the employee. 
 
5.2.5  Reclassification  On occasion, the title or rank given to a particular position is 
not appropriate for the tasks being performed.  In these cases, a reclassification may 
be necessary. A reclassification shall mean the change of title or rank of a position 
with no change or no substantive change in job duties (job description).  This may or 
may not involve a pay change. 
 
5.3  NEW HIRE PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
 
The first six months of employment of a new employee is considered an evaluation 
period as a requirement for full or part-time employment. It is intended to assist both 
the supervisor and the employee in discussing specifics of the job, how they are 
executed and to allow the employee to become proficient in their execution as well 
as establishing and developing important relationships between both parties. 
 
This probationary period gives new employees time to find out if they are pleased 
with their surroundings and are adaptable to the work assigned. This period gives 
the town administration time to determine whether the employee is capable of 
performing the duties assigned and meets the requirements of the job classification. 
If the employee is not adaptable or acceptable for the work assigned, a 
recommendation shall be made by the supervisor to the town manager that the 
employee’s employment with the town shall be terminated. Consideration may be 



given to an extension of the probationary period based on a recommendation for an 
extension provided by the supervisor to the town manager with a description of the 
reasons why an extension is warranted.  
 
Employees who are promoted or move into another job in the Town will begin and 
complete a new probationary period in the new position. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PROPOSED 
5.2.1  PROMOTIONS 
 
5.2.1  Promotion  All full-time promotional positions will be filled by the competitive 
selection process.  The Town shall always seek the best-matched person for the 
particular job.  Where Town employee and outside applicants have equal 
qualifications; the Town employee will be given preference.  Department heads shall 
have the authority to recommend promotions, subject to the approval of the Town 
Manager.  Promotion shall mean when a Town employee moves to a position in a 
higher pay range and/or increased responsibilities. 
 
5.2.2  If an employee is advanced to a position of increased responsibility, his/her 
compensation level may advance to the entry level of the new position to which the 
employee was promoted as approved by the Town Manager. 
 
5.2.3  Advancement from one salary grade to a higher salary grade shall be 
considered a promotional increase, granted for the assumption of significant additional 
responsibilities and subject to a satisfactory performance review rendered by the 
employee's department head. 
 
5.2.4  When an employee is promoted to a higher-rated position, he or she  may enter 
it at the minimum rate for the position, or his or her present rate, whichever is higher or 
a mutually agreed rate between the Town and the employee. said employee shall be 
entitled to compensation commensurate with the new position and the employee’s 
years of service to the Town.  
 
5.2.5  Reclassification  On occasion, the title or rank given to a particular position is 
not appropriate for the tasks being performed.  In these cases, a reclassification may 
be necessary. A reclassification shall mean the change of title or rank of a position 
with no change or no substantive change in job duties (job description).  This may or 
may not involve a pay change. 
5.3  NEW HIRE PROBATIONARY PERIOD 
 
The first six months of employment of a new employee is considered an evaluation 
period as a requirement for full or part-time employment. It is intended to assist both 
the supervisor and the employee in discussing specifics of the job, how they are 
executed and to allow the employee to become proficient in their execution as well 
as establishing and developing important relationships between both parties. 
 
This probationary period gives new employees time to find out if they are pleased 
with their surroundings and are adaptable to the work assigned. This period gives 
the town administration time to determine whether the employee is capable of 
performing the duties assigned and meets the requirements of the job classification. 
If the employee is not adaptable or acceptable for the work assigned, a 
recommendation shall be made by the supervisor to the town manager that the 
employee’s employment with the town shall be terminated. Consideration may be 



given to an extension of the probationary period based on a recommendation for an 
extension provided by the supervisor to the town manager with a description of the 
reasons why an extension is warranted.  
 
Upon promotion or transfer to a different position within the Town, employees may 
be subject to a new probationary period in accordance with the nature of the 
alteration in responsibilities, duties, and/or work scope. Employees who are 
promoted or move into another job in the Town will begin and complete a new 
probationary period in the new position.  

 



Town ofMount Desert
Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248

Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232
E-mail townclerk(mtdeseaorg Web Address www.mtdesert.org

MEMO

DATE: March 16, 2023

TO: Board of Selectmen

FROM: Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk

RE: Warrant for Special Town Meeting and
Municipal Officer’ s Certification of Official Text of Proposed Ordinances

Maine law requires that a majority ofthe full number ofmunicipal officers sign the Town Meeting
warrant in a public meeting. I will have a complete warrant for you to sign at Monday night.

Maine law also requires that the Municipal Officers certify to the Town Clerk the official text of any
amended or new ordinances presented at Town Meeting. In turn, the Town Clerk must keep the certified
copies on file and make them available for public inspection and must make copies available for
distribution to the voters from the time they are certified. Furthermore, copies of the proposed ordinances
must be made available at the Town Meeting. I will have the certificates with the official text for you to
sign Monday night.

MEMO BOS warrant signing.docx



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert, which is to be
presented to the voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of

_____________

2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



SOLID WASTE ORDINANCE
of the

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

ENACTED MAY 6, 2014
Revised and Enacted May 8, 2018

Amended May 2, 2023

SECTION 1: AUTHORITY

This Ordinance is created under the authority granted to the Town of Mount Desert
(hereinafter the “Town”) by Title 38 M.R.S.A., § 1 30 1 et seq. (the Maine
Hazardous Waste, Septage and Solid Waste Management Act) and the Town’s
home rule authority pursuant to the Maine Constitution and 30-A M.R.S. § 3001 et.
seq.

SECTION 2: PURPOSE

2. 1 . To protect the health, safety and general well-being of the citizens of the
Town.

2.2. To enhance and maintain the quality of the environment, conserve natural
resources and prevent water and air pollution by providing a comprehensive,
rational and effective means of regulating the disposal of solid waste.

2.3 To recognize that the use of single use plastic bags typically provided by
vendors is not an environmentally sound use of resources and residents of and
visitors to the Town are striving to use alternate means such as reusable cloth bags
and other reusable items to collect and transport their goods.

2.4. To encourage and expand solid waste recycling and waste reduction.

2.5. To control solid waste in the Town by establishing limitations, prohibiting
certain acts generating solid waste and to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance.

2.6. To control the costs of solid waste management to the taxpayers of the Town.



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

SECTION 3: DEFINITIONS

3.1. Terms used in this Ordinance that are defined in 38 M.R.S.A. §1303-C as may
be amended from time to time, shall have the meaning prescribed in § 1 3 03 -C and
that meaning shall be controlling, notwithstanding any contrary definition in the
Ordinance or in any dictionary. The §1303-C definitions are set forth in Appendix
A to this Ordinance; Appendix A shall be updated regularly (at least annually).
Any word not otherwise defined shall have its customary dictionary meaning.

This Ordinance provides the following definitions:

Acceptable Waste - solid waste (as defined herein) that is capable ofprocessing at
the Town’s designated processing facility and/or otherwise handled by the Town’s
solid waste collection service.

Authorized Individual - means any person, partnership, corporation or other entity
that either owns, rents, leases (on a permanent or temporary basis) a dwelling or
operates a commercial establishment in Town.

Agricultural Solid Wastes - wastes produced from the raising ofplants and animals
for food, including manure, plant stalks, hulls and leaves.

Ah -
residue, including cinders and fly ash from the burning of solid fuels for

cooking and heating, and from on-site incineration of refuse materials.

Bulky Objects - abandoned vehicles, stoves and refrigerators, large furniture, tree
trunks, stumps and brush.

Commercial Solid Wastes - wastes that originate in wholesale, retail, or service
establishments, such as office buildings, stores, markets, theaters, hotels and
warehouses.

Construction and Demolition Debris (CDD) - solid waste resulting from
construction, remodeling, repair, and demolition of structures, and as specifically
defined in 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix A attached).

EMR - Eastern Maine Recycling located in Southwest Harbor, Maine, is a licensed
solid waste transfer station that also provides solid waste recycling services.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 2 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

Fiberight dba Coastal Resources of Maine, LLC - Fiberight is a licensed facility
located in Hampden, Maine, licensed by the Maine DEP for solid waste
processing.

Garbage - every accumulation of waste (animal, vegetable, and/or other matter)
that results from the preparation, processing, consumption, dealing in, handling,
packing, canning, storage, transportation, decay or decomposition of meats, fish,
fowl, birds, fruits, grains or other animal or vegetable matter (including but not by
way of limitation, used food containers and all putrescible or easily decomposable
waste animal or vegetable matter that is likely to attract flies or rodents), except (in
all cases) any matter included in the definition of bulky waste, construction and
demolition debris, dead animals, hazardous waste, rubbish or stable matter.

Green Wood - land clearing debris that is reasonably free of soil material and rock
and bark, shavings, slash, and plant and vegetable matter from gardens and
landscapes.

Hazardous Waste/ Universal Waste — shall be as defined by 38 M.R.S. §1303-C
(Appendix A attached).

Industrial Waste - wastes generally discarded from industrial operations or derived
from manufacturing processes but not including a) hazardous waste or b) special
waste which by reason of its composition, characteristics or other properties is not
ordinarily acceptable for disposal at sites licensed for disposal ofmunicipal solid
waste. Excluded special waste shall include, but not be limited to friable asbestos
and oil-contaminated soil.

Municipal Wastes - the combined residential and commercial wastes generated
within the Town.

Non-Resident - a person who does not reside in or pay property taxes to the Town.

Refuse — a broad term and is synonymous with “solid waste” and shall be defined
as any of a wide variety of solid materials as well as some liquids in containers,
which are discarded or rejected as being spent, useless, worthless, or in excess.

Resident - a person who resides in or occupies a residential property and/or pays
property taxes to the Town.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 3 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

Residential Waste - waste generated in houses, apartments and other dwelling
units, including paper, cardboard, beverage and food cans, plastics, food wastes,
and glass containers.

Sewerage Treatment Wastes - screenings, grease, scum and grit from the Town of
Mount Desert Publicly Owned Treatment Works.

Solid Waste—waste as defined in 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix A attached).

Special Wastes- waste as defined in 38 MRSA 1303-C (see Appendix A attached)

Tipping Fee - the fee charged to the Town by a facility such as EMR or, Fiberight,
etc. for transport or disposal of solid waste.

Unacceptable Waste - solid waste of a type that municipalities are authorized to
regulate under 38 MRS § 1305, as amended, and that are prohibited at EMR (for
transport to the Town’s designated acceptable waste processing facility) or at that
designated waste processing facility.

Wood Waste - means brush, lumber, bark, wood chips, shavings, slabs, edgings,
slash, sawdust, and wood from production rejects that are not mixed with other
solid or liquid waste. For the purpose ofthis definition, “lumber” is entirely made
ofwood and is free from metal, plastics, and coatings. Wood Waste does not
include painted wood or pressure treated wood. These would be included with
Construction and Demolition Debris, as defined. Wood Waste also does not
include Green Wood, as defined.

SECTION 4: REGULATED ACTIVITY

4. 1 . The accumulation, collection, transportation and disposal of acceptable wastes
and unacceptable wastes generated within the Town shall be regulated in the
following manner:

4.1.1 All acceptable waste generated within the Town shall be deposited roadside
at locations designated by the Town in appropriate containers and collected by the
Town or appropriate licensed commercial hauler.

4.1.2 All unacceptable waste, including hazardous waste, special waste, universal
waste, CDD waste, hot loads, and certain wood wastes, shall be subject to the

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 4 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

Materials Disposal Restrictions set forth in Section 4.3 below and shall be handled
by licensed firms and deposited at licensed facilities out of Town consistent with
Section 4.2 below. Violations ofthis Section 4 shall be subject to enforcement
under Section 8 and related provisions of this Ordinance.

4.2. General Requirements

4.2. 1 . All solid waste shall be handled and disposed in accordance with this
Ordinance.

4.2.2. The Board of Selectmen shall have the authority to restrict or modify the
disposal of all types and volumes of solid waste, if deemed in the best interests of
the Town.

4.2.3. No person, partnership or corporation, shall dispose ofany refuse on any
public property or roads except as allowed by this ordinance.

4.3. Materials Disposal Restrictions

The following waste materials or containers ofwaste materials as described below
shall not be handled or disposed within the boundaries of the Town:

4.3. 1 . Materials classified as hazardous waste in 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix
A attached) unless:

. Within a Town sanctioned public collection event or effort, if handled by a
person or firm licensed to handle and transport hazardous waste and if
disposed at a facility licensed for hazardous waste disposal outside the
Town; or

. Handled and transported by a commercial entity licensed to handle and
transport hazardous waste if taken to a licensed facility outside the Town.

4.3.2. Materials classified as universal waste by 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix
A attached) unless:

• Within a Town sanctioned public collection event or effort, if handled by a
person or firm licensed to handle and transport universal waste and if
disposed at a facility licensed for universal waste disposal outside the Town;
or

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 5 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

. Handled and transported by a commercial entity licensed to handle and
transport universal waste iftaken to a licensed facility outside the Town.

4.3.3. Ash at a combustible temperature or other hot loads.

4.3.4. Trees, limbs oftrees, or tree trunks more than 4 inches in diameter and/or 3
feet in length or stumps except by a commercial entity licensed to handle and
transport woody waste and disposed at a licensed wood waste facility outside the
Town

4.3.5. All Commercial Demolition Debris as defined herein, except by a
commercial entity licensed to handle such CDD waste if disposed at a licensed
facility outside the Town.

4.3.6. All Special Waste as defined herein, except by a commercial entity licensed
to handle Special Waste if disposed at a licensed facility for disposal of Special
Waste outside the Town

4.3.7. All Green Wood and Wood Waste as defined herein, except by a commercial
entity licensed to handle such Wood Waste if disposed at a licensed facility outside
the Town.

SECTION 5: HANDLING AND DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE

Authorized Individuals (including Residents) shall handle and dispose of
acceptable solid waste by only one ofthe following methods:

5 . 1 . Town-provided collection service:

Materials disposed at curbside are limited to solid waste acceptable to the Town’s
contracted transfer station or solid waste processing facility. Materials must be
placed in secured bags, secured containers and/or secured receptacles adequate to
prevent loss of control of the solid waste. Those disposing of the solid waste are
responsible for picking up and cleaning up of unsecured solid waste regardless of
the cause.

Curbside solid waste collection occurs by summer and winter schedules
promulgated by the Town. Solid waste must be at curbside by 7 AM on the
scheduled day to ensure pick up.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 6 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

5.2. Authorized Individuals at the Town ofMount Desert area designated at EMR.

5.3. Hire a Private Hauler.

Authorized Individuals may contract at their cost with a private hauler for disposal
of acceptable solid waste. All waste collected by private haulers shall be delivered
to EMR and credited to the Town’s guaranteed annual tonnage.

5.4 Town Sponsored Solid Waste Disposal at EMR

Authorized Individuals have a Town sponsored solid waste disposal account at
EMR allowing up to two thousand (2,000) pounds of solid waste annually per
Town physical address delivered by the Authorized Individual or their private
licensed hauler. Authorized Individuals shall be responsible for all costs
associated with a private hauler. This allowance provides for the disposal of all
solid waste; particularly green wood, bulky objects allowed by EMR and CDD

(construction and demolition debris) except special, hazardous and universal waste.
This allowance may expire at such time the inhabitants ofthe Town choose to
eliminate the practice.

SECTION 6: FEES

Authority: The Town Meeting may establish fees for solid waste disposal to
promote recycling and improve the efficiency of the management of solid waste
and to support the cost of solid waste collection and disposal.

SECTION 7: LICENSES

7. 1 No person, firm or corporation shall transport on a commercial basis any
acceptable waste for disposal outside the Town without obtaining a license to
transport such waste within the Town from the Town Manager. The license shall
be in effect for 24 (twenty-four) months from date of issue and must be renewed on
or before its expiration date.

7.2. Any person, firm or corporation required by this Ordinance to obtain an annual
license shall make application to the Town Manager. A nonrefundable license
application fee as determined by the Board of Selectmen shall accompany each
application. The fee structure shall be reviewed every two (2) years by the Town

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 7 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

Manager or designee with a recommendation being made by the Town Manager or
designee to the Board of Selectmen as to its appropriateness or if it should be
changed. The existing fee or any changes to it shall go into effect July 1 of each
new fiscal year. A copy ofthe application form is available from the Town Office.

7.3. The application shall contain all information required by it, including, but not
limited to, a description ofthe activity/activities engaged in, e.g., collection and
transport of acceptable, recyclable/storable and/or unacceptable waste; types and
estimated amount(s) of waste handled in each service area and; a description of the
facility/facilities operated and used. The applicant’s signature on the application
verifies the applicant’s intended compliance with this Ordinance. Incomplete
applications will not be processed.

7.4. Licenses shall not be transferable.

7.5. All licenses shall expire two (2) years from the date ofissue unless revoked or
suspended sooner in accordance with the provisions ofthis Ordinance.

7.6. In the event that the Town Manager denies a license application, the applicant
shall be notified ofthe reasons for the denial ofthe license. The applicant may
appeal the Town Manager’s decisions to the Board of Selectmen.

7.7. Suspension and Revocation

Any license issued may be suspended or revoked by the Town Manager for cause,
including the foil owing reasons:

a. Violation ofthis Ordinance;
b. Violation of any provision of any state or local law, ordinance, code or
regulation which relates directly to the provisions of this Ordinance;
c. Violation of any license condition(s); and
d. Falsehoods, misrepresentations or omissions in the license application.

Suspension or revocation of a license may be appealed to the Board of Selectmen.

SECTION 8: VIOLATIONS & PENALTIES

8.1. Disposal generally prohibited; disposal of rubbish, garbage, solid waste and
debris on public or private property:

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 8 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

No person shall throw or place or cause to be thrown or placed upon any premises
located within the limits ofthe Town any rubbish, garbage, solid waste or debris of
any kind, except in full conformance with this Ordinance, nor shall any owner or
occupant of any such premises suffer any such rubbish, garbage, solid waste or
debris to remain on said premises after receiving notice from the Chief of Police or
Code Enforcement Officer or their designees. Any person or persons so failing to
remove any such rubbish, garbage, solid waste or debris for a period of seven days
after receipt of said notice shall be subject to enforcement.

8.2 Limited Exemption:

Disposal ofrubbish, garbage, solid waste and debris during the Spring Clean-up
Week shall not constitute a violation of this Ordinance and shall not be subj ect to
enforcement.

8.3. Any person, including, but not limited to, a landowner, the landowner’s agent
or a contractor, who violates any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be
subject to enforcement and liable to the remedies, fines, and civil penalties as
stated below in Sections 8.4, 8.5 and 8.6.

8.4. Monetary penalties may be assessed on a per-day basis and are civil penalties.
The minimum penalty for a specific violation is S 1 00, and the maximum penalty is
$2,500.

8.5. Municipal Costs of Enforcement: In addition to the foregoing penalty
provisions, any person violating any provision ofthis ordinance shall be liable to
reimburse the Town for costs of enforcement including reasonable attorney fees
and court costs. The Town is also authorized to seek and obtain equitable relief.

8.6. Violations ofthis ordinance shall also be enforced under the provisions of the
Maine anti-littering statute at 17 M.R.S. § 2264-A, 2264-B, and 2264-C, as may
be amended from time to time. A copy of those laws is attached as Appendix B
and shall be updated as those laws are amended.

SECTION 9: SPECIAL COLLECTION EFFORTS

9.1. The Board of Selectmen or designee may authorize seasonal or other solid
waste collection efforts in addition to those described in this ordinance. Such

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 9 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

events shall be advertised by the Town so as to inform as many residents as
practical.

SECTION 10: SEVERABILITY

If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance shall be held invalid
for any reason, the remainder of that section and all other sections shall continue in
full force and effect.

SECTION 11: EFFECTIVE DATE SUNSET

This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of enactment for a period not
to exceed 15 years, unless amended or repealed prior to the expiration of this 15
year period.

SECTION 12: AMENDMENT

This Ordinance may be amended in the same manner as any other Ordinance of the
Town.

ADOPTED by Annual Town Meeting this 8th day of May2018.

Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk

Attest: A true copy

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 10 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Appendix A

38 M.R.S.A. § 1303-C

§ 1303-C. Definitions
Effective: July 1 , 2012
As used in this chapter or in chapter 24,-i unless the context otherwise indicates, the
following terms have the following meanings.

1. Repealed. Laws 1995, c. 656, § A-19.

1-A. Biomedical waste. “Biomedical waste” means waste that may contain human
pathogens of sufficient virulence and in sufficient concentrations that exposure to it
by a susceptible human host could result in disease or that may contain cytotoxic
chemicals used in medical treatment.

1-B. Repealed. L. 2005, c. 612, § A-21, eff. Jan. 1, 2007.

1-c. Bypass. “Bypass” means any solid waste that is destined for disposal,
processing or beneficial use at a solid waste facility but that cannot be disposed of,
processed or beneficially used at that facility because ofthe facility’s malfunction,
insufficient capacity, inability to process or burn, downtime or any other
comparable reason.

2. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 890, § B-225.

2-A. Class I liquid. “Class I liquid” means any liquid having a flash point below
1000 Fahrenheit.

2-B. Class II liquid. “Class II liquid” means any liquid having a flash point at or
above 100° Fahrenheit and below 140° Fahrenheit.

3. Closing reserve fund. “Closing reserve fund” means a fund created for the
purpose of financing the closing and maintenance after closing of a waste facility.

4. Commercial hazardous waste facility. “Commercial hazardous waste facility”
means:

A. A waste facility that handles hazardous wastes generated off the site of the
facility; or

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 11 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

B. A facility that, in the handling of a waste generated off the site, generates
hazardous waste.

5. Commercial landfill facility. “Commercial landfill facility” means a
commercial solid waste facility that is used for the burial of solid waste.

6. Commercial solid waste disposal facility. “Commercial solid waste disposal
facility” means a solid waste disposal facility except as follows:

A. Deleted. Laws 2007, c. 338, § 2.

A-i. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, eff. Jan. 1, 2007.

A-2. A solid waste facility that is owned by a public waste disposal corporation
under section 1 304-B, subsection 5:

(1) As long as the public waste disposal corporation controls the decisions
regarding the type and source of waste that is accepted, handled, treated and
disposed of at the facility; and

(2) If the facility is a solid waste landfill, the facility accepts only waste that is
generated within the State unless the commissioner finds that the acceptance of
waste that is not generated within the State provides a substantial public benefit
pursuant to section 1 3 1 0-AA, subsection 1 -A;

B. Deleted. Laws 2007, c. 338, § 2.

B-i. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, eff. Jan. 1, 2007.

B-2. A solid waste facility that is owned by a municipality under section 1305:

(i) As long as the municipality controls the decisions regarding the type and source
of waste that is accepted, handled, treated and disposed of at the facility; and

(2) If the facility is a solid waste landfill, the facility accepts only waste that is
generated within the State unless:

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 12 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

(a) The commissioner finds that the acceptance ofwaste that is not generated
within the State provides a substantial public benefit pursuant to section 1 3 1 O-AA,
subsection 1-A; and

(b) Acceptance of waste that is not generated within the State is approved by a
maj ority of the voters of the municipality by referendum election;

C. Deleted. Laws 2007, c. 338, § 2.

c-i. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, eff. Jan. 1, 2007.

C-2. A solid waste facility that is owned by a refuse disposal district under chapter
17:

(1) As long as the refuse disposal district controls the decisions regarding the type
and source of waste that is accepted, handled, treated and disposed of at the
facility; and

(2) If the facility is a solid waste landfill, the facility accepts only waste that is
generated within the State unless the commissioner finds that the acceptance of
waste that is not generated within the State provides a substantial public benefit
pursuant to section 1 3 1 0-AA, subsection 1 -A;

B. Beginning January 1 , 2007, a solid waste facility owned and controlled by the
Department of Administrative and Financial Services, Bureau of General Services
under chapter 24;

D-1. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, eff. Jan. 1, 2007.

E. A solid waste facility owned and controlled by a single entity that:

(1) Generates at least 85% ofthe solid waste disposed ofat a facility, except that
the facility may accept from other sources, on a nonprofit basis, an amount of solid
waste that is no more than 15% of all solid waste accepted on an annual basis; or

(2) Is an owner of a manufacturing facility that has, since January 1, 2006,
generated at least 85% of the solid waste disposed of at the solid waste facility,
except that one or more integrated industrial processes of the manufacturing
facility are no longer in common ownership, and those integrated industrial

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 13 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

processes will continue to generate waste that will continue to be disposed of at the
solid waste facility. This exemption only applies if the source and type of waste
disposed of at the solid waste facility remains the same as that previously disposed
ofby the single entity.

For the purposes of this paragraph, “single entity” means an individual,
partnership, corporation or limited liability corporation that is not engaged
primarily in the business of treating or disposing of solid waste or special waste.
This paragraph does not apply if an individual partner, shareholder, member or
other ownership interest in the single entity disposes of waste in the solid waste
facility. A waste facility receiving ash resulting from the combustion of municipal
solid waste or refuse-derived fuel is not exempt from this subsection solely by
operation of this paragraph.

For purposes of this paragraph, “integrated industrial processes” means
manufacturing processes, equipment or components, including, but not limited to,
energy generating facilities, that when used in combination produce one or more
manufactured products for sale; or

F. A private corporation that accepts material-separated, refuse-derived fuel as a
supplemental fuel and does not burn waste other than its own.

For purposes of this subsection, “waste that is generated within the State” includes
residue and bypass generated by incineration, processing and recycling facilities
within the State or waste whether generated within the State or outside of the State
if it is used for daily cover, frost protection or stability or is generated within 30
miles ofthe solid waste disposal facility.

7. Repealed. Laws 1999, c. 525, § 2, eff. June 17, 1999.

A. to F. Repealed. Laws 1999, c. 525, § 2, eff. June 17, 1999.

8. Construction and demolition debris. “Construction and demolition debris”
means debris resulting from construction, remodeling, repair, and demolition of
structures. It excludes asbestos and other special wastes.

9. Contingency reserve fund. “Contingency reserve fund” means a fund
maintained for the purpose of meeting unexpected contingencies in the operation
of a waste facility.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 14 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

10. Conveyance. “Conveyance” means any aircraft, watercraft, vehicle or other
machine used for transportation on land, water or in the air.

11. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 890, § B-225.

12. Disposal. “Disposal” means the discharge, deposit, dumping, spilling, leaking
or placing of hazardous, biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, refuse-derived fuel,
sludge or septage into or on land, air or water and the incineration of solid waste,
refuse-derived fuel, sludge or septage so that the hazardous, biomedical or solid
waste, waste oil, refuse-derived fuel, sludge or septage or a constituent of the
hazardous, biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, refuse-derived fuel, sludge or
septage may enter the environment or be emitted into the air, or discharged into
waters, including ground waters.

13. Generation. “Generation” means the act or process ofproducing hazardous,
biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, sludge or septage.

13-A. Repealed. Laws 1991, c. 520, § 4.

14. Handle. “Handle” means to store, transfer, collect, separate, salvage, process,
recycle, reduce, recover, incinerate, dispose of or treat.

15. Hazardous waste. “Hazardous waste” means a waste substance or material, in
any physical state, designated as hazardous by the board under section 1 3 1 9-0. It
does not include waste resulting from normal household or agricultural activities.
The fact that a hazardous waste or part or constituent may have value or other use
or may be sold or exchanged does not exclude it from this definition.

15-A. Hazardous waste incinerator. “Hazardous waste incinerator” means an
enclosed device using controlled flame combustion to thermally break down
hazardous waste.

15-B. Host community. “Host community” means any town, township or city that
is the geographic site of a solid waste disposal facility or any immediately
contiguous town, township or city if such town, township or city can demonstrate
to the department that it incurs a direct financial impact related to any necessary
development or maintenance of infrastructure or to any necessary provision of
services as a result of the location or operation of that solid waste disposal facility.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town MeeUng Page 15 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

16. Incineration facility. “Incineration facility” means a facility where municipal
solid waste or refuse-derived fuel is disposed of through combustion, including
combustion for the generation ofheat, steam or electricity.

17. Inert fill. “Inert fill” means clean soil material, rocks, bricks, and cured
concrete, which are not mixed with other waste, and which are not derived from an
ore mining activity.

18. Land clearing debris. “Land clearing debris” means solid wastes resulting
from the clearing of land and consisting solely of brush, stumps, soil material and
rocks.

19. Manifest. “Manifest” means the form used for identifying the quantity,
composition and the origin, routing and destination of hazardous waste during its
transport.

1 9-A. Material-separated, refuse-derived fuel. “Material-separated, refuse-
derived fuel” means a binder-enhanced, pelletized, solid fuel product made from
the combustible fraction of a municipal solid waste stream that has been processed
to remove the recyclable material before combustion. The product may not contain
more than 6% by weight ofplastic, metal, glass or food waste. In addition, the
production of material-separated, refuse-derived fuel may not exceed 40% by
weight of the total municipal solid waste stream from which it was derived.

19-B. Primary sand and gravel recharge area. “Primary sand and gravel
recharge area” has the same meaning as in section 562-A, subsection 1 6-B.

19-C. Repealed. Laws 201 1, c. 655, § GG-8, eff. July 1, 2012.

20. Recyclable. “Recyclable” means possessing physical and economic
characteristics that allow a material to be recycled.

21. Recycle. “Recycle” means to recover, separate, collect and reprocess waste
materials for sale or reuse other than use as a fuel for the generation of heat, steam
or electricity.

22. Recycling. “Recycling” means the collection, separation, recovery and sale or
reuse of materials that would otherwise be disposed of or processed as waste or the

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 16 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

mechanized separation and treatment of waste, other than through combustion, and
the creation and recovery of reusable materials other than as a fuel for the
generation of electricity.

23. Refuse-derived fuel. “Refuse-derived fuel” means municipal solid waste
which has been processed prior to combustion to increase the heat input value of
the waste.

24. Regional association. “Regional association” means 2 or more municipalities
that have formed a relationship to manage the solid waste generated within the
participating municipalities and for which those municipalities are responsible. The
relationship must be formed by one or more ofthe following methods:

A. Creation of a refuse disposal district under chapter 1 7;

B. Creation of a nonprofit corporation that consists exclusively of municipalities
and is organized under Title 13, chapter 8 1 or Title 13-B, for the purpose, among
other permissible purposes, of owning, constructing or operating a solid waste
disposal facility, including a public waste disposal corporation under section 1304-
B, or whose members contract for the disposal of solid waste with a solid waste
disposal facility, including, but not limited to, a qualifying facility as defined in
Title 35-A, section 3303;

C. Creation of ajoint exercise ofpowers agreement under Title 30-A, chapter
115; or

D. Contractual commitment.

For the purposes of this chapter, a regional association and the entities described in
paragraphs B and C may include counties and quasi-municipal corporations as
members provided the counties or quasi-municipal corporations, when acting by
themselves within their own jurisdictions, are capable of exercising all of the
powers of the regional association.

25. Residue. “Residue” means waste remaining after the handling, processing,
incineration or recycling of solid waste including, without limitation, front end
waste and ash from incineration facilities.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 17 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

25-A. Responsible party. For the purposes of subchapter II-A only, “responsible
party” means any or all ofthe following persons:

A. The owner or operator of an uncontrolled tire stockpile; and

B. Any person who owned or operated an uncontrolled tire stockpile from the time
any tire arrived at that stockpile.

26. Resource recovery. For the purposes of section 1 304-B only, “resource
recovery” means the recovery of materials or substances that still have useful
physical or chemical properties after serving a specific purpose and can be reused
or recycled for the same or other purposes.

27. Septage. “Septage” means waste, refuse, effluent, sludge and any other
materials from septic tanks, cesspools or any other similar facilities.

27-A. Significant ground water aquifer. “Significant ground water aquifer” has
the same meaning as in section 562-A, subsection 19-A.

28. Site. “Site” means the same or geographically contiguous property which may
be divided by a public or private right-of-way, provided that the entrance and exit
between the properties is at a crossroads intersection and access is by crossing as
opposed to going along the right-of-way. Noncontiguous properties owned by the
same person but connected by a right-of-way which he controls and to which the
public does not have access is also considered site property.

28-A. Sludge. “Sludge” means nonhazardous solid, semisolid or liquid waste
generated from a municipal, commercial or industrial wastewater treatment plant,
water supply treatment plant or wet process air pollution control facility or any
other waste having similar characteristics and effect. The term does not include
industrial discharges that are point sources subject to permits under the federal
Clean Water Act, 33 United States Code, Section 1342 (1999).

29. Solid waste. “Solid waste” means useless, unwanted or discarded solid
material with insufficient liquid content to be free-flowing, including, but not
limited to, rubbish, garbage, refuse-derived fuel, scrap materials, junk, refuse, inert
fill material and landscape refuse, but does not include hazardous waste,
biomedical waste, septage or agricultural wastes. The fact that a solid waste or

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 18 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

constituent ofthewaste may have value or other use or may be sold or exchanged
does not exclude it from this definition.

30. Solid waste disposal facility. “Solid waste disposal facility” means a solid
waste facility for the incineration or landfilling of solid waste or refuse-derived
fuel. Facilities that burn material-separated, refuse-derived fuel, either alone or in
combination with fuels other than municipal solid waste or refuse-derived fuels,
are not solid waste disposal facilities.

31. Solid waste facility. “Solid waste facility” means a waste facility used for the
handling of solid waste, except that the following facilities are not included:

A. A waste facility that employs controlled combustion to dispose of waste
generated exclusively by an institutional, commercial or industrial establishment
that owns the facility;

B. Lime kilns; wood chip, bark and hogged fuel boilers; kraft recovery boilers and
sulfite process recovery boilers, which combust solid waste generated exclusively
at the facility; and

C. An industrial boiler that combusts mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office
paper to generate heat, steam or electricity if:

(1) The mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office paper would otherwise be
placed in a landfill;

(2) The market value ofthe mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office paper as a
raw material for the manufacture of a product with recycled content is less than its
value to the facility owner as a fuel supplement;

(3) The mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office paper is combusted as a
substitute for, or supplement to, fossil or biomass fuels that constitute the primary
fuels combusted in the industrial boiler; and

(4) The boiler combusts no other forms of solid waste except as provided in this
subsection.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 19 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

32. Solid waste landfill. “Solid waste landfill” means a waste disposal facility for
the disposal of solid waste on or in land. This term does not include land spreading
sites used in programs approved by the department.

32-A. Solid waste processing facility. “Solid waste processing facility” means a
land area, structure, equipment, machine, device, system or combination thereof,
other than an incineration facility that is operated to reduce the volume or change
the chemical or physical characteristics of solid waste. “Solid waste processing
facility” includes but is not limited to a facility that employs shredding, baling,
mechanical and magnetic separation or composting or other stabilization technique
to reduce or otherwise change the nature of solid waste.

33. Source separation. “Source separation” means the preparation of materials for
recycling by separation from wastes at the point of generation.

34. Special waste. “Special waste” means any solid waste generated by sources
other than domestic and typical commercial establishments that exists in such an
unusual quantity or in such a chemical or physical state, or any combination
thereof, that may disrupt or impair effective waste management or threaten the
public health, human safety or the environment and requires special handling,
transportation and disposal procedures. Special waste includes, but is not limited
to:

A. Oil, coal, wood and multifuel boiler and incinerator ash;

B. Industrial and industrial process waste;

C. Waste water treatment plant sludge, paper mill sludge and other sludge waste;

D. Debris and residuals from nonhazardous chemical spills and cleanup of those
spills;

E. Contaminated soils and dredge spoils;

F. Asbestos and asbestos-containing waste;

G. Sand blast grit and nonliquid paint waste;

H. Deleted. Laws 1989, c. 869, § A-5.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 20 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

I. High and low pH waste;

J. Spent filter media and residue; and

K. Other waste designated by the board, by rule.

35. State waste management and recycling plan. “State waste management and
recycling plan” means the plan adopted by the former Maine Waste Management
Agency pursuant to chapter 24, subchapter 2, subsequent plans developed by the
former State Planning Office pursuant to Title 5, former section 3305, subsection
1 , paragraph N and the department pursuant to section 2 1 22 and may also be
referred to as “state plan.”

36. Storage. “Storage” means the containment of hazardous wastes, either on a
temporary basis or for a period of years, in such a manner as not to constitute
disposal of the hazardous wastes.

37. Substantially expand. “Substantially expand” means the expansion of an
existing licensed hazardous waste facility by more than 25%, as measured by
volume of waste or affected land area, from the date of its initial licensed
operation.

38. Transport. “Transport” means the movement of hazardous or solid waste,
waste oil, sludge or septage from the point of generation to any intermediate points
and finally to the point of ultimate disposition. Movement of hazardous waste on
the site where it is generated or on the site of a licensed waste facility for
hazardous waste is not “transport.” Movement of waste oil on the site where it is
generated or on the site of a licensed waste oil dealer’s facility is not “transport.”

39. Treatment. “Treatment” means any process, including but not limited to
incineration, designed to change the character or composition of any hazardous
waste, waste oil or biomedical waste so as to render the waste less hazardous or
infectious.

39-A. Uncontrolled tire stockpile. “Uncontrolled tire stockpile” means an area or
location, whether or not licensed, where used motor vehicle tires are or were
handled, stored or disposed of in such a manner as to present a significant fire
hazard or a threat to public health or to the quality of a classified body of surface

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 21 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

water or a significant sand and gravel aquifer or fractured bedrock aquifer as
defined in section 1 3 1 0-N, subsection 2-A.

39-B. Used oil. “Used oil” means waste oil, as defined in subsection 42.

39-C. Used oil collection center. “Used oil collection center” means a site or
facility where used oil is accepted from the public and collected or stored in an
aboveground tank for recycling.

40. Waste facility. “Waste facility” means any land area, structure, location,
equipment or combination of them, including dumps, used for handling hazardous,
biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, sludge or septage. A land area or structure
does not become a waste facility solely because:

A. It is used by its owner for disposing of septage from the owner’s residence;

B. It is used to store for 90 days or less hazardous wastes generated on the same
premises;

C. It is used by individual homeowners or lessees to open burn leaves, brush,
deadwood and tree cuttings accrued from normal maintenance oftheir residential
property, when such burning is permitted under section 599, subsection 3; or

D. It is used by its residential owner to burn highly combustible domestic,
household trash such as paper, cardboard cartons or wood boxes, when such
burning is permitted under section 599, subsection 3.

41. Waste management. “Waste management” means purposeful, systematic and
unified control of the handling and transportation of hazardous, biomedical or solid
waste, waste oil, sludge or septage.

42. Waste oil. “Waste oil” means a petroleum-based or synthetic oil that, through
use or handling, has become unsuitable for its original purpose due to the presence
of impurities or loss of original properties. Waste oil that exhibits hazardous wastes
characteristics, or has been contaminated with hazardous wastes in excess of
quantities normally occurring in waste oil, is subject to the provisions of this
chapter dealing with hazardous wastes.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 22 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

43. Waste oil dealer. “Waste oil dealer” means any person in the business of
transporting or handling more than 1 ,000 gallons of waste oil for the purpose of
resale in a calendar month. A person who collects or stores waste oil on the site of
generation, whether or not for the purpose of resale, is not a waste oil dealer.

44. Waste reduction. “Waste reduction” means an action that reduces waste at the
point of generation and may also be referred to as “source reduction.”

45. Waste resulting from agricultural activities. “Waste resulting from
agricultural activities” means wastes which result from agricultural activities
defined in section 361-A, subsection 1-B, which are returned to the soils as
fertilizers and includes waste pesticides when generated by a farmer in his own
use, provided that he triple rinses each emptied pesticide container in accordance
with departmental rules and disposes ofthe pesticide residues in a manner
consistent with the disposal instructions on the pesticide label.

46. Wood wastes. “Wood wastes” means brush, stumps, lumber, bark, woodchips,
shavings, slabs, edgings, slash and sawdust, which are not mixed with other waste.

47. Yard wastes. “Yard wastes” means grass clippings, leaves and other vegetal
matter other than wood wastes and land clearing debris.

Credits
1989, c. 585, § E, 4; 1989, c. 794, § 2; 1989, c. 869, § A-3 to A-5; 1989, c. 878, §
H-7, eff. April 20, 1990; 1989, c. 890, § B-225; 1989, c. 929, § 5; 1991, c. 72, §
1, 2, eff. May 6, 1991; 1991, c. 220, § 6-10, eff. May 31, 1991; 1991, c. 321;
1991, c. 492, § 1, 2; 1991, c. 517, § A-i, eff. June 28, 1991; 1991, c. 520, § 4;
1993, c. 355, § 46, 47, eff. June 16, 1993; 1993, c. 378, § 4, eff. June 16, 1993;
1993, c. 383, § 33, 34; 1993, c. 424, § 1, 2; R.R.1993, c. 1, § 131; 1993, c. 732,
§ A-7, A-8, eff. April 20, 1994; 1995, c. 462, § A-76, A-90, eff. July 3, 1995;
i995, c. 465, § A-i2, eff. July 3, 1995; 1995, c. 573, § 1, 2; 1995, c. 625, § C-5,
eff. April 8, 1996; 1995, c. 656, § A-19 to A-2i; R.R.i995, c. 2, § iii; 1997, c.
393, § B-9, eff. June 5, 1997; 1997, c. 602, § 1, eff. March 17, 1998; 1999, c. 334,
§ 10; 1999, c. 393, § 1; 1999, c. 525, § 1, 2, eff. June 17, 1999; 2001, c. 247, § 1;
2005, c. 612, § 1, 2; 2007, c. 338, § 1, 2; 2007, c. 406, § 1; 2007, c. 414, § 1;
2007, c. 583, § 1; 2011, c. 206, § 20, eff. June 3, 2011; 2011, c. 655, § GG-7 to
GG-9, eff. July 1, 2012.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 23 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Notes of Decisions (4)

Footnotes.

38 M.R.S.A. § 2101 et seq.

38 M.R.S.A. § 1701 et seq.

13 M.R.S.A. § 901 et seq.

30-A M.R.S.A. § 2201 et seq.

38 M.R.S.A. § 1316 et seq.

38 M.R.S.A. § 2121 et seq.

38 M. R. S. A. § 1303-C, ME ST T. 38 § 1303-C
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 24 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

Appendix B

17 M.R.S.A. Ch. 80, Refs & Annos

Chapter 80, Litter Control, was enacted by Laws 1 97 1 , c. 405, § 1.

17 M.R.S.A. § 2261

§ 2261. Title

Currentness

This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the “Maine Litter Control Act.”

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1.

Notes of Decisions (2)

17 M. R. S. A. § 2261, ME ST T. 17 § 2261
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular
Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2262

§ 2262. Purposes

Currentness

n

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 25 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

It is declared and recognized that the proliferation and accumulation of litter
discarded throughout this State endangers the free utilization and enjoyment of a
clean and healthful environment by the people and constitutes a public health hazard;
and recognizing that there has been a collective failure on the part of government,
business and the public to accept, plan for and accomplish effective litter control,
there is enacted the “Maine Litter Control Act.”

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2262, ME ST T. 17 § 2262
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 201 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2263

§ 2263. Definitions

Currentness

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise indicates, the following terms
have the following meanings.

1. “Disposable package” or “container” means any and all packages or containers
used for the purpose of containing a product sold or held out for sale for human or
animal consumption.

1-A. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 878, § B-12, eff. April 20, 1990.

1-B. Department. “Department” means the Department of Agriculture,
Conservation and Forestry.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 26 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

1-c. Commercial purpose. “Commercial purpose” means for the purpose of
economic gain.

1-D. Abandoned ice-fishing shack. “Abandoned ice-fishing shack” means a
temporary structure used for ice fishing and left on property not owned by the person
owning the structure without permission of the landowner for more than 1 5 days
after the inland waters on which the shack or structure was located are closed to ice
fishing.

2. Litter. “Litter” means all waste materials including, but not limited to, bottles,
glass, crockery, cans, scrap metal, junk, paper, garbage, rubbish, offal, except waste
parts or remains resulting from the normal field dressing of lawfully harvested wild
game or the lawful use of waste parts or remains of wild game as bait, feathers,
except feathers from live birds while being transported, abandoned ice-fishing
shacks, old automobiles or parts of automobiles or similar refuse, or disposable
packages or containers thrown or deposited as prohibited in this chapter, but not
including the wastes of the primary processes of mining, logging, sawmilling,
farming or manufacturing.

3. “Litter receptacle” means a container of suitable size which is clearly identified
with a sign, symbol or other device as a place where the public may dispose of litter.

4. Vehicle. “Vehicle” means every vehicle which is self-propelled and designed for
carrying persons or property or which is used for the transportation of persons,
except motorcycles, farm implements and snowmobiles.

4-A. Commercial vehicle. “Commercial vehicle” means a vehicle owned or used
by a business, corporation, association, partnership, or the sole proprietorship of any
entity conducting business for a commercial purpose.

5. “Person” means any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation or
organization of any kind whatsoever.

6. “Public place” means any area that is used or held out for use by the public whether
or not owned or operated by public or private interests.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 27 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

7. “Trailer” means any vehicle without motive power, designed for carrying persons
or property and for being drawn by a motor vehicle.

8. “Watercraft” means any type ofvessel, boat or craft used or capable ofbeing used
as a means oftransportation on water.

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1; 1973, c. 194; 1973, c. 235, § 1; 1975, c. 739, § 3 to 6; 1989, c.
820, § 2, 3, eff. April 10, 1990; 1989, c. 878, § B-12, eff. April 20, 1990; 1993, c.
144, § 3, 4; 1995, c. 667, § A-37, eff. April 11, 1996; 2001, c. 667, § A-33, eff.
April 11, 2002.

Notes ofDecisions (1)

l7M.R. S.A.2263,MESTT. l72263
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 20 1 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2263-A

§ 2263-A. Littering

Currentness

1. Prohibited acts. A person may not throw, drop, deposit, discard, dump or
otherwise dispose of litter in any manner or amount:

A. In or on public highway, road, street, alley, public right-of-way or other public
lands, except in a container or receptacle or on property that is designated for

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 28 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

disposal of garbage and refuse by the State or its agencies or political
subdivisions;

B. In freshwater lake, river, stream, tidal or coastal water or on ice over the water.
When any litter is thrown or discarded from a watercraft, a person is in violation
ofthis section ifthat person is:

(1) The operator of the watercraft, unless it is a watercraft being used for the
carriage ofpassengers for hire; or

(2) The person actually disposing ofthe litter.

This paragraph does not prohibit persons who fish, lobster or otherwise harvest
from the water from returning to the water harvested products, bait and similar
materials that naturally originate in the water;

C. In or on any private property, unless:

(1) Prior consent ofthe owner has been given; and

(2) The litter is not a public nuisance or in violation of any state law or local
rule;

B. From a trailer or vehicle that is constructed, loaded or uncovered in such a
way that the load may drop, sift, leak or otherwise escape. This paragraph applies
to vehicles or trailers carrying trash, rubbish or other materials that may be
construed as “litter”; or

E. From a vehicle. When any litter is thrown or discarded from a vehicle, a person
is in violation of this section if that person is:

(1) The operator of the vehicle, unless it is a vehicle being used for the
carriage of passengers for hire; or

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 29 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

(2) The person actually disposing of the litter.

In addition to any penalty under section 2264-A, violation of this subsection is a
traffic infraction under Title 29-A, chapter 23, subchapter’

A record ofa violation ofthis subsection must be forwarded to the Secretary of State
who, in accordance with Title 29-A, section 2607, shall add the violation to the
department’s point system. The violation is counted in determining an individual’s
total points under the point system of the Department of the Secretary of State,
Bureau of Motor Vehicles.

2. Commercial purpose presumed. For the purposes of this chapter, if a person
dumps litter from a commercial vehicle, that person is presumed to have dumped the
litter for a commercial purpose.

Credits
2003, c. 452, § 1-32, eff. July 1, 2004.

Footnotes

29-A M.R.S.A. § 2601, et seq.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2263-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2263-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular
Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264

§ 2264. Repealed. Laws 2003, c. 452, § 1-33, eff. July 1, 2004

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 30 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264, ME ST T. 17 § 2264
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 20 1 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264-A

§ 2264-A. Penalties

Effective: September 28, 2011

Currentness

Unless otherwise indicated, a person who disposes of litter in violation of this
chapter commits a civil violation for which the following fines apply.

1. Disposal of 15 pounds or less or 27 cubic feet or less of litter. A person who
disposes of 1 5 pounds or less or 27 cubic feet or less oflitter commits a civil violation
for which a fine of not less than $ 1 00 and not more than $500 may be adjudged.

1-A. Disposal of 15 pounds or less or 27 cubic feet or less of litter; subsequent
offenses. A person who violates subsection 1 after having previously violated
subsection 1 commits a civil violation for which a fine of not less than $500 and not
more than $1,000 may be adjudged.

2. Disposal of more than 15 pounds or more than 27 cubic feet of litter. A person
who disposes of more than 15 pounds or more than 27 cubic feet of litter commits a
civil violation for which the court:

A. Shall impose a fine of not less than $500;

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 31 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

B. Shall require the person to pay a party sustaining damages arising out of a
violation ofthis subsection treble the actual damages or $200, whichever amount
is greater, plus the injured party’s court costs and attorney’s fees ifaction results
in a civil proceeding;

C. Shall require the person to perform not less than 100 hours ofpublic service
relating to the removal of litter or to the restoration of an area polluted by litter
disposed of in violation of this section. The court shall consult with the
Commissioner of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife to determine if there is an
opportunity for public service that may improve landowner and sportsman
relations;

D. When practical, shall require the person to remove the litter dumped in
violation ofthis subsection;

E. May suspend the person’s motor vehicle operator’s license for a period of not
less than 30 days or more than one year, except as provided in paragraph F.
Notwithstanding paragraph F, the court shall suspend all licenses and permits
issued under Title 1 2, Part 1 3 , subpart 4 and recreational vehicle registrations
and certificates issued to that person under Title 1 2, Part 1 3 , subpart 6 for a period
of not less than 30 days or more than one year; and

F. May suspend any license, permit, registration or certification issued by a state
agency or municipality to the person. A professional license, permit, registration
or certification required for that person to operate or establish a business or
necessary for the person’s primary source ofemployment may not be suspended
unless the items dumped were related to the person’s profession or occupation.

2-A. Disposal of more than 15 pounds or more than 27 cubic feet of litter;
subsequent offenses. A person who violates subsection 2 after having previously
violated subsection 2 commits a civil violation for which the penalty provisions
under subsection 2 apply except for subsection 2, paragraph A, and a fine of not less
than $2,000 must be adjudged.

3. Disposal of more than 500 pounds or more than 100 cubic feet of litter for a

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 32 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

commercial purpose. A person who disposes ofmore than 500 pounds or more than
1 00 cubic feet of litter for a commercial purpose is subj ect to the penalties under
Title 38, section 349.

Credits
1989, c. 820, § 5, eff. April 10, 1990; 1993, c. 140, § 1; 2003, c. 452, § 1-34 to I-
37, eff. July 1, 2004; 2011, c. 208, § 4.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2264-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 20 1 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264-B

§ 2264-B. Penalty options

Effective: September 28, 2011

Currentness

In addition to the fines imposed in section 2264-A, subsections 1 and 1-A, the court
may order a person adjudicated to have violated section 2264-A, subsection 1 or
subsection 1-A to:

1. Removal of litter. Remove the litter dumped in violation of section 2264-A;

2. Cost of cleanup. Pay the owner of the property treble the owner’s cost of clean
up or removal of the litter;

3. Damages. Pay the person sustaining damages arising out of a violation of this

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 33 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

subsection treble the actual damages or $200, whichever amount is greater, plus the
injured party’s court costs and attorney’s fees ifaction results in a civil proceeding;

4. Public service. Perform public service relating to the removal of litter, or to the
restoration of an area polluted by litter, dumped in violation of section 2264-A; and

5. License suspension. Surrender the person’s motor vehicle operator’s license, a
license or permit issued to that person under Title 1 2, Part 1 3 , subpart 4 or a
recreational vehicle registration or certificate issued to that person under Title 12,
Part 13, subpart 6 for a period not exceeding 30 days. The court may suspend an
operator’s license for any violation of section 2264-A, subsection 1 or subsection 1-
A that involves the use of a motor vehicle.

Credits
1989, c. 820, § 5, eff. April 10, 1990; 2003, c. 452, § 1-38, 1-39, eff. July 1, 2004;
2007, c. 651, § 21, eff. April 18, 2008; 2009, c. 424, § 1; 2011, c. 208, § 5,6.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264-B, ME ST T. 17 § 2264-B
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 20 1 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264-C

§ 2264-C. Forfeiture

Currentness

All conveyances, including aircraft, watercraft, vehicles, vessels, containers or
cranes that are used, or attempted to be used, to dump more than 1,000 pounds or
more than 100 cubic feet of litter in violation of section 2264-A are subj ect to
forfeiture as provided in Title 15, chapter 517.1

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 34 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

Credits
1989, C. 820, § 5, eff. April 10, 1990; 2003, c. 452, § 1-40, eff. July 1, 2004.

Footnotes

15 M.R.S.A. § 5821 et seq.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264-C, ME ST T. 17 § 2264-C
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 201 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2265

§ 2265. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 820, § 6, eff. April 10, 1990

Currentness

17M.R. S. A. § 2265, ME STT. l72265
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 2013 Second Regular
Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2266

§ 2266. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 820, § 7, eff. April 10, 1990

Currentness

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 35 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

17 M. R. S. A. § 2266, ME ST T. 17 § 2266
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 20 1 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2267

§ 2267. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 820, § 8, eff. April 10, 1990

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2267, ME ST T. 17 § 2267
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 20 1 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2267-A

§ 2267-A. Submerged motor vehicles, snowmobile and watercraft in waters of
the State

Effective: September 12, 2009

Currentness

The following provisions apply when a motor vehicle is submerged or partially
submerged in waters of the State or when a snowmobile or watercraft is submerged
in the inland waters of the State.

1. Definition. When used in this section the term “motor vehicle” means any self
propelled vehicle designed to carry persons or property or used to transport persons,

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 36 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

except snowmobiles and watercraft. The term “watercraft,” when used in this
section, means any type of craft placed on the inland waters of the State, whether
used as a means oftransportation or for other purposes.

2. Notice of submerged vehicle, snowmobile or watercraft to be given to
department. The owner of any motor vehicle that becomes submerged or partially
submerged in the waters of the State shall immediately, by the fastest means of
communication, notify the Commissioner of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife of the
event and the location of the vehicle. The owner of a snowmobile or watercraft that
becomes submerged in the inland waters of the State for more than 24 hours shall
notify the commissioner as provided in this subsection.

The commissioner shall, upon receiving notice of a submerged or partially
submerged vehicle in the waters of the State or a submerged snowmobile or
watercraft in the inland waters of the State, notify the Chief of the State Police, the
Commissioner of Environmental Protection and any municipality or public utility
that regulates the uses of the waters as a source of public water supply pursuant to
Title 22, sections 2641 to 2648.

3. Owner legally liable to remove vehicle, snowmobile or watercraft. The owner
of the vehicle is legally liable to remove any motor vehicle submerged or partially
submerged in the waters of the State and pay any damages resulting from the
submersion or removal. The vehicle must be removed within 30 days of the
submersion or partial submersion or within 30 days of”ice out” in the body of water
unless the commissioner determines that the vehicle creates a health or safety hazard.
If the commissioner determines that the vehicle creates a health or safety hazard the
commissioner shall order the owner to remove the vehicle immediately. Ifthe owner
fails to remove the vehicle upon order ofthe commissioner, the commissioner shall,
in writing, request the court to direct the owner to remove the vehicle immediately.
The owner of a snowmobile or watercraft that is submerged in the inland waters of
this State for longer than 24 hours shall remove the snowmobile or watercraft in
accordance with this subsection.

4. Financial responsibility. A conviction or adjudication of any person for a
violation of this section constitutes a violation of state law relative to motor vehicles
to which Title 29-A, chapter 131 applies.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 37 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

5. Penalties. A violation of this section is a civil violation for which a forfeiture of
$200 may be adjudged. In addition to a forfeiture, or instead ofa forfeiture, the judge
may direct the person convicted to remove the vehicle, snowmobile or watercraft.

6. Rules. The commissioner may, in accordance with the provisions of Title 5,
chapter 3752 adopt any rules necessary to carry out the purposes ofthis chapter.

Credits
1981, c. 578; 1995, c. 65, § A-52, eff. May 11, 1995; 2001, c. 536, § 3, eff. March
18, 2002; 2009, c. 340, § 26.

Footnotes

29-AM.R.S.A. § 1551 etseq.

2

5 M.R.S.A. § 8001 et seq.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2267-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2267-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular
Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2268

§ 2268. Enforcement

Currentness

Every law enforcement officer in the State, including but not limited to State Police,

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 38 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

county sheriffs and their deputies, municipal police, wardens of the Department of
Inland Fisheries and Wildlife, wardens of the Department of Marine Resources,
rangers ofthe Division of Forestry and liquor inspectors of the Department of Public
Safety shall have authority to enforce this chapter.

Political subdivisions of the State may offer rewards for information which lead to
the conviction of violators of this chapter.

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1; 1973, c. 460, § 18; 1973, c. 513, § 22; 1973, c. 537, § 20; 1975, c.
739, § 13.

17M.R. S.A.2268,MESTT. 172268
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 201 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2269

§ 2269. Repealed. Laws 2003, c. 452, § 1-41, eff. July 1, 2004

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2269, ME ST T. 17 § 2269
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 2013 Second Regular
Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 39 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

17 M.R.S.A. § 2269-A

§ 2269-A. Litter receptacles; selection and placement

Currentness

1. Procure, place and maintain litter receptacles. A person who owns or operates
an establishment or public place in which litter receptacles are required by this
chapter shall procure, place and maintain receptacles at the person’s own expense in
accordance with this chapter.

2. Required placement. Litter receptacles as defined in section 2263 must be placed
at all public places or establishments that serve the public, including, but not limited
to: campgrounds, trailer parks, drive-in restaurants, gasoline service stations,
parking lots, shopping centers, grocery store parking lots, parking lots of major
industrial firms, marinas, boat launching areas, boat moorage and fueling stations,
beaches and bathing areas, school grounds and business district sidewalks. The
number ofreceptacles required is as follows:

A. For a campground or trailer park for transient habitation, one receptacle at
each public rest room facility;

B. For a drive-in restaurant, parking lot, shopping center, grocery store parking
lot or parking lot of a major industrial firm, one receptacle, plus one additional
receptacle for each 200 parking spaces in excess of 50 spaces;

C. For a gasoline service station, one receptacle per gasoline pump island;

D. For a marina, boat launching area or boat moorage and fueling station, one
receptacle at each location;

E. For a beach or bathing area, one receptacle at each public rest room facility;

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 40 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

F. For school grounds, one receptacle at each playground area and one at each
school bus loading zone; and

G. For business district sidewalks, one receptacle per 1 ,000 feet of sidewalk
curbing.

3. Exception; remote forest campsites. Remote forest campsites operated by the
Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry pursuant to Title 1 2, chapter
220, subchapter 2, are not considered public places or establishments that serve the
public if they are designated as “carry-in and carry-out” sites from which users are
expected to remove litter and other material upon their departure.

4. Penalties. A person who operates a business of a type described in this section
commits a civil violation for which a fine of $ 1 0 for each violation may be adjudged
ifthat person:

A. Fails to place the litter receptacles on the premises in the numbers required;
or

B. Fails to comply within 10 days of being notified by registered letter by the
Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry that that person is in
violation.

Each day a violation continues is a separate offense.

Credits
2003, c. 452, § 1-42, eff. July 1, 2004.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2269-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2269-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular
Session of the 126th Legislature

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 41 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2270

§ 2270. Responsibility for maintenance oflitter receptacles

Currentness

Responsibility for the removal of litter from litter receptacles placed at parks,
beaches, campgrounds, trailer parks and other publicly owned public places shall
remain upon those state and local agencies performing litter removal, and removal
of litter from litter receptacles placed upon privately owned public places shall
remain the responsibility ofthe owner ofsaid premises.

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1.

17M.R. S. A. § 2270,ME STT. 17 § 2270
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular
Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2271

§ 2271. Local regulations

Currentness

Municipalities of this State may adopt more stringent ordinances, laws or regulations

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 42 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

dealing with subject matter of this chapter. Any less restrictive ordinances, laws or
regulations now in effect dealing with the subject matter of this chapter and the
minimum standards which it establishes are declared invalid and of no force and
superseded by this chapter on September 23 , 1 97 1.

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1; 1971, c. 622, § 61, eff. March 15, 1972.

17M.R. S.A.2271,MESTT. 172271
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 2013 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2272

§ 2272. Promiscuous dumping prohibited

Currentness

No person shall deposit household garbage, leaves, clippings, prunings or gardening
refuse in any litter receptacle.

Persons violating the provisions of this section are liable for the same penalties as
provided for violation of section 2264-A.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15; 2003, c. 452, § 1-43, eff. July 1, 2004.

17M.R. S.A.’2272,MESTT. 172272

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 43 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 201 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2273

§ 2273 . Penalty warning signs

Currentness

Within the limits of its budget, the Department of Transportation may erect one sign
within each 1 00 miles of state highway mileage in each county, warning motorists
of the penalties for littering or asking for their cooperation in keeping the highways
clean. One such sign shall be located within a reasonable distance of all state
highway entry points into this State from other states or countries. If the state
highway leads to or from an international border crossing point, the sign shall be
bilingual.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2273, ME ST T. 17 § 2273
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular
Session of the 126th Legislature

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 44 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town ofMount Desert

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2274

§ 2274. Fines, distribution

Currentness

All fines levied and collected for violations of this chapter shall be distributed as
follows:

Ifthe fine resulted from a complaint by a law officer ofa state agency which receives
a major share of its financial support from dedicated revenue, the fine, less court
costs, shall be reimbursed to that agency; or

If the fine resulted from a complaint of a law officer of a state agency supported
primarily by a General Fund appropriation, the fine, less court costs, shall be
reimbursed to the department to be used in an anti-litter educational program and
shall be in addition to other General Fund money appropriated for that purpose.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15; 1989, c. 878, § B-13, eff. April 20, 1990.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2274, ME ST T. 17 § 2274
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular
Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2275

§ 2275. Driver license and registration procedures

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 45 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

Currentness

The Bureau of Motor Vehicles shall include a summary of this chapter with each
reregistration and new vehicle operator license issued.

The Bureau of Motor Vehicles shall include a summary of this chapter in the next
revision and printing ofthe driver license information materials.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15; 1989, c. 878, § B-14, eff. April 20, 1990; 1991, c. 837, § A-45,
eff. April 8, 1992.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2275, ME ST T. 17 § 2275
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 ofthe 20 1 3 Second Regular
Session ofthe 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2276

§ 2276. Local regulations

Currentness

Municipalities of this State may adopt more stringent ordinances, laws or regulations
dealing with the subject matter of this chapter. Any less restrictive ordinances, laws
or regulations now in effect dealing with the subject matter of this chapter and the
minimum standards which it establishes are declared invalid and of no force and
superseded by this chapter on its effective date.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15.

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 46 of 47



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

17M.R. S.A.2276,MESTT. 172276
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular
Session of the 126th Legislature

As amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 47 of 47



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled Town of Mount
Desert Use of Public Places Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert, which is to be
presented to the voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of

_______________

2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
USE OF PUBLIC PLACES ORDINANCE

Enacted May 5, 2009
Amended May 2, 2023

I - No person shall use or permit to be used any public thoroughfare, public street, beach,
cemetery, public land or any other public place in the Town of Mount Desert for the
purpose of overnight accommodation or a temporary or permanent abode or habitation,
except with the written permission of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Mount
Desert.

2. In addition, no person shall park any vehicle or trailer, erect any tent, lean-to or similar
shelter with the intent to camp or sleep on any public thoroughfare, public street, beach,
cemetery, public land or any other public place in the Town of Mount Desert.

3. Any person or corporation who violates, disobeys, refuses to comply with, or resists the
enforcement of any provision of this ordinance shall upon conviction, be fined not less
than One Hundred Dollars ($100), nor more than Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars,
($2,500) for each offense. Each day that a violation continues after notification shall
constitute a separate offense, and each violation shall be deemed a separate offense.
In addition, pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, Part 2, Subpart 6-A,
Chapter 187, Subchapter 5 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 4452), the Town may recover all costs of
enforcement of this ordinance, including reasonable attorneys fees.

4. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any
reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

5. This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, Part 2,
Subpart 4, Chapter 141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, et seq.).

6. This ordinance shall be enforced by the Police Department of the Town of Mount
Desert.

7. The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009.

8. This Ordinance shall xnire uiu uu Ut IIU iuiu ui eiiet on May 7, 2024.

Page lof 1
As enacted May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled Town of Mount
Desert Use of Public Road Acceptance Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert,
which is to be presented to the voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of

_______________

2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



Public Road Acceptance Ordinance
As adopted May 5, 2009 Annual Town Meeting
Amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting

The Citizens of the Town of Mount Desert do ordain a Public Road Acceptance
Ordinance be adopted as follows:

WHEREAS, the Town has identified several private roads where maintenance including:
plowing, sanding, grading and bituminous repairs have been requested of the Town by
the private owners, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Selectmen have requested that private/public roads be
identified and listed along with an assessment of their condition, size, use, benefit to the
public and future need, and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of this ordinance to identify those private roads which by
the nature of their condition, use and location would be more appropriate with a “Public”
designation.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that to become “public”, a road or road section
must meet the following conditions:

I . The road must meet the “Street Design and Construction Standards” of the
Mount Desert Subdivision Ordinance, which standards are currently listed in
Section 5.14.

2. The current private owner(s) are willing to sign over all title, rights and
responsibilities without reservations to the 50’ wide, right of way. Legal costs of
the deed to the own shall be borne by the private owner(s).

3. The current private owner(s) shall ask the Public Works Director to certify in
writing to the Board of Selectmen that the above-stated conditions have been
met.

4. The current private owner(s) shall provide to the Town Manager evidence of
good and marketable title in and to the proposed road in the form of an attorney’s
title opinion letter or a commitment for title insurance.

5. The Town Manager shall request from an attorney a letter certifying that said
attorney’s title opinion letter or said title insurance commitment sufficiently
protects the Town’s interests.

6. Upon receipt of the afore-mentioned two letters, the Selectmen will recommend
the request for “Public” Designation as an article in the next succeeding regular
Town Warrant. Following Town Meeting approval, the Town of Mount Desert will
accept title and all future rights and responsibilities, including maintenance, repair
and replacement as necessary and the road shall be deemed “Public”. The
Selectmen may, at their option, agree to placing potential acceptance of a road
on the warrant, contingent on its reconditioning by the private owner(s) after
approval by Town Meeting and before becoming “Public”.



7. When a road is accepted by the Town Meeting as a “public” road, and after the
deed for the land beneath said road has been duly recorded at the Hancock
County Registry of Deeds, the road shall be placed on any “Road Inventory”
regularly kept by the Town.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED should the current owner(s) fail, or
be unwilling, to meet the above-stated conditions, then:

1. The road shall remain private;

2. All repairs and maintenance of the road and its appurtenances shall be the
responsibility of the owner(s) at the sole cost of the owner(s);

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any
reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009; amended May 8, 2018.

This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024.



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Land Use Zoning Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert, which is to be
presented to the voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of

______________

2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



WARRANT ARTICLE XX - Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to
the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify the dimensional requirements for one-Family and two-
family dwellings” be enacted as set forth below?

Explanatory Note: This warrant article amends the LUZO section 6.B.11.3(2) to clarify that
the dimensional standards for a duplex are not doubled until a second duplex structure is
added.

6B SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR ACTIVITIES AND LAND USES

6B.11 Lots

3. Requirements for lots wholly outside the Shoreland Zone

1 . Lots abutting more than one road. Lots which abut more than one road shall have the required
setbacks along each road used as an entrance or exit.

2. Additional Dimensional requirements one-family or two-family dwellings. One-family and two-
family dwellings are allowed in all districts, as indicated in Section 3.4, subject to the following: Afi
dimensional requirements shall be met separately for each and every one-family dwelling on a lot.
For each additional or All dimensional requirements shall be met separately for each and every
two-family dwelling on a lot, all dimensional requirements shall be met separately for each one-
family or two-family dwelling.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays)

One and two family Dwellings Page 1 of 1
DRAFT 2/6/2023



Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning
Ordinance to remove the air landing sites” be enacted as set forth below?

Explanatory Note: This Article removes air landing sitesfrom section 68 in the ordinance.

GB SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR ACTIVITIES AND LAND USES

GB.1 Agriculture

In non-shoreland areas, all spreading, or disposal of manure shall be accomplished in conformance
with the Manure Utilization Guidelines published by the Maine Department of Agriculture on
November 1, 2001, and the Nutrient Management Law (7 M.R.S.A. sections 4201-4209). In
shoreland areas, all spreading, or disposal of manure shall comply with Section 6C.1.

GB.2 Air Landing Sites RESERVED

No air landing site shall be developed or used for such purpose without Conditional Use Approval
of the Plannine Board.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays)

NOTE: Need to change table of contents

Air Landing Sites Page 1 of 1
DRAFT 1/16/2023



Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning
Ordinance regarding the definition of Marina and Expansion of Use” be enacted as set forth
below?

Explanatory Note: This Article adds language to the definitions for Marina’s and
Expansion of a Use to clarify that the Harbor Master regulates moorings and that an
expansion of use does not include adding moorings.

SECTION 8 DEFINITIONS

EXPANSION OF A USE: The additional use of more footprint of a structure, land or water area
devoted to a particular use; additional one or more weeks of the use’s operating season; or
additional business hours of operation. Excludes moorings that are regulated by the harbormaster.

MARINA: A business establishment having frontage on navigable water and providing for hire
docking facilities or moorings at its location unless such uses are incidental to the principal use of
the property. In addition, it may also provide other services such as: boat storage and repair; boat
sales; boat hauling and launching; bait and tackle sales; sale of marine supplies and marine fuel.
Placement of moorings are exclusively regulated by the Harbor Master consistent with the Harbor
Ordinance and Maine Revised Statutes, Title 38, Chapter 1.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays)

Road Setback measurements Page 1 of 1
DRAFT 2/06/2023



Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning
Ordinance to amend the deadline for establishment of use” be enacted as set forth below?

Explanation: This Article changes the timeframe for establishment of use for a conditional
use from 12 months to 24 months.

SECTION 5 CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL

5.5 Deadline for establishment of use

Unless more restrictive criteria are required in another section of this Ordinance, the proposed use
must be established within twelve (12) twenty-four (24) months of the date of approval of the
Conditional Use Application. Otherwise, the approval lapses and a new application is required.
The beginning of construction or the commencement of business shall constitute establishment.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays)

/

Establishment of use Page 1 of 1
DRAFT 1/16/2023



Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning
Ordinance regarding the footprint limitation for principal and accessory structures in the
shoreland zone” be enacted as set forth below?

Explanatory Note: This Article provides a housekeeping change to make the local
ordinance consistent with Shoreland Zoning by increases the footprint limitation for
principal and accessory structures in the shoreland zone from 15% to 20% which is more
consistent with the State guidelines.

SHORELAND ZONING STANDARDS

6C.8 Principal and Accessory Structures

6. 1-&%20% footprint limitation. The total footprint area of all structures, parking lots and
other -vegetated surfaces, within the shoreland zone shall not exceed fifteentwenty (1-2O)
percent of the lot or a portion thereof, located within the shoreland zone, including land
area previously developed, except in the Shoreland Commercial District adjacent to tidal
waters, where lot coverage shall not exceed seventy (70) percent.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays)

Lot Creation date Page 1 of 1
DRAFT 2/06/2023



Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning
Ordinance to correct the date for when a lot was be created for purposes of applying the access
provisions in 6B11(2)” to be enacted as set forth below?

Explanatory Note: This Article makes a house keeping correction to date for when a lot
was be created forpurposes ofapplying the access provisions in 6B.11(2).

6B.11 Lots

1 . Minimum lot size. See section 3.5.

2. Access.
I . Lots created on or after June 6May 5, 201 5. No lot created on or after June 6May 5, 2015,
shall be built upon or otherwise developed unless it has a private road or driveway for access to
a public way by a valid right of way benefiting the lot (or a combination of driveway and/or one or
more private roads) or by ownership of land abutting the public way. If more than 2 lots are
accessed by the same private road, then it must meet the Street Design and Construction
Standards of Section 5. 1 4 of the Subdivision Ordinance. If no more than 2 lots are accessed by
the same private road or driveway, then it must meet either the said Street Design and
Construction Standards or the Driveway Construction standards of Section 6B.6 of this
Ordinance. A pre-existing primary access drive that serves up to 2 existing lots need not meet
the requirements of Section 6B.6. All such lots must maintain safe access for fire, police, and
emergency vehicles, as determined by the Code Enforcement Officer.

In determining whether lots maintain safe access, the Code Enforcement Office may seek
guidance from the Fire Chief.

2. Lots created before June 6May 5, 201 5. Any lot created before June 6May 5, 201 5, shall
not be further built upon or otherwise further developed unless it has a private road or driveway
for access to a public way by a valid right of way benefiting the lot (or a combination of driveway
and/or one or more private roads) or by ownership of land abutting the public way, but the said
private road or driveway need not meet the requirements of Section 6B.6 of the Land Use
Zoning Ordinance. All such lots must maintain safe access for fire, police, and emergency
vehicles, as determined by the Code Enforcement Officer. In determining whether lots maintain
safe access, the Code Enforcement Officer may seek guidance from the Fire Chief.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; X)( Nays)

Lot Creation date Page 1 of 1
DRAFT 2/06/2023



WARRANT ARTICLE XX- Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023, entitled “Amendments
to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to change the Land Use District designation of Tax
Map 003: Lot 026 and Map 003: Lot 027” be enacted as set forth below?

Explanation: This Article changes Tax Map 003, Lot 26 and Map 3, Lot 27 from Shoreland
Residential Two (SR2) to Residential Two (R2).

SECTION 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS

3.3 Map Changes: Amended at:

Town Meeting of May 2, 2023: change Tax Map 003, Lot 026 and Tax Map 003, Lot 027 from
Shoreland Residential Two (SR2) to Residential Two (R2).

See draft map on following page

ZONE CHANGE DRAFT Page 1 of 2
V2.6.2023



ZONE CHANGE DRAFT Page 2 of 2
V2.6.2023



Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning
Ordinance Regarding Lots within the Village Commercial District in the Village of Northeast
Harbor” be enacted as set forth below?

Explanation: This Article amends Section 3.5. footnote P to clarify that the minimum lot
size of 1000 square feet only applies to lots within the village of Northeast Harbor.

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots, setbacks, etc.

Notes:

(p) For only those lots in the Village of Northeast Harbor within the Village Commercial District that
have public sewer, the minimum lot area required for each dwelling unit on a single lot is 1000
square feet.

)

DRAFT Page 1 of 1
2/06/2023



Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning
Ordinance to add Residential Storage Building/Shed as permitted uses in Section 3.4” be
enacted as set forth below?

Explanation: This Article adds Residential Storage Building/Sheds as allowed uses so that
property owners can build these structures without being tied to a residential dwelling
unit.

SECTION 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS

3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District:

All land use activities, as indicated in the following table, shall conform with all of the applicable
land use standards in Sections 6.A., 6.B., and 6.C. The district designation for a particular site
shall be determined from the Official Land Use Zoning map.

P Use allowed without a permit (but the use must comply with all applicable land use
standards

C Use allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board Use
allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board, except where
the code enforcement officer may authorize minor changes in the placement
and size of improvements for an approved conditional use permit

x Use is prohibited
CEO Use allowed with a permit from the code enforcement officer

VR1 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL ONE
VR2 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL TWO
VR3 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL THREE
Ri RESIDENTIAL ONE
R2 RESIDENTIAL TWO
SRI SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL ONE
SR2 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL TWO
SR3 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL THREE
SR5 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL FIVE
RW2 RURAL OR WOODLAND TWO
RW3 RURAL OR WOODLAND THREE
VC VILLAGE COMMERCIAL
SC SHORELAND COMMERCIAL
RP RESOURCE PROTECTION
C CONSERVATION
SP STREAM PROTECTION

See table of uses on following pages
Section 3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District

Road Setback measurements Page 1 of 2
DRAFT 2/6/2023



DISTRICTS: SRI

RI
SR2

VRI SR3
RW2

VR2 R2
5R5

RW3
VC SC C RP SP VR3LAND USE:

RESIDENTIAL
Dwelling I & 2

CEO CEO CEO(c) CEO CEO CEO(d) C C8 C4 X
Family

Dwelling, Multiple C C C C C X C X X X

Accessory
Residential

CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C C8 C4 C
Dwelling Unit

Accessory
structures including

CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C8 C4 X
structural additions
and guest houses()
Cluster and
Workforce C C X C C X X X X X
Subdivisions
Residential Storage CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C8 C4 X
Building/Shed — — — —

Mobile Home Park C X X X X X X X X X

(c) A separate garage is an accessory structure. A separate garage with a dwelling unit
shall be deemed a dwelling unit.

(d) See Section 6B.11 .3 (Lots)
(e) Accessory residential dwellings in the VR3 District must be for staff housing only.

See table of uses on following pages

SECTION 8 DEFINITIONS

RESIDENTIAL STORAGE BUILDING/SHED: A structure or building used primarily for storage
purposes.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) XX Ayes; XX Nays)

Road Setback measurements
DRAFT 2/6/2023

Page 2 of 2



Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning
Ordinance to clarify where the setback is measured from a road or right-of-way” be
enacted as set forth below?

Explanatory Note: This Article clarifies where a road setback is measured from.

SECTION 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots, setbacks, etc.

NOTES:

(b) Refer to setback as defined in Section 8.

(c) Setbacks from pPublic and private roads are measured from edge of road surface, or edge
of legally established right of way if no road exists. Where the setback is from a private road
or right-of-way, the setback shall be equal to the property line setback requirements of the
district in which the property is located.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends (passage) (XX Ayes; XX Nays)

I

Road Setback measurements Page 1 of 1
DRAFT 1/16/2023



WARRANT ARTICLE XX - Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land
Use Zoning Ordinance to allow exceptions to the height limitations consistent with State Shoreland
Zoning Laws” be enacted as set forth below?

Explanation: This Article allows an exception to how height is measured when a structure is located
within an area ofspecialflood hazard.

SECTION 4 NON-CONFORMITIES

4.3 Non-conforming Structures

1. ExpansionsOutside the Shoreland Zone. A structure located outside the shoreland zone which
is nonconforming with respect to a dimensional requirement may be enlarged or extended in
any other direction upon issuance of a building permit, provided that such activities otherwise
comply with all provisions of this Ordinance.

2. Expansions In the Shoreland Zone. All new structures in the shoreland zone must meet the
applicable shoreline setback requirements contained in Sections 3 (Land Use Districts) and 6
(Standards for Uses, Permits and Approval). A non-conforming structure in the shoreland zone
may be added to or expanded after obtaining a permit from the same permitting authority as
that for a new structure if such addition or expansion does not increase the non-conformity of
the structure and is in accordance with the subsections of Section 4.3.2.

(a) Expansion of an accessory structure that is located closer to the normal high-water line of a
water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland than the principal structure is
prohibited, even if the expansion will not increase nonconformity with the water body,
tributary stream, or wetland setback requirement.

(b) Expansion of any portion of a structure within 25 feet of the normal high-water line of a
water body, tributary stream or upland edge of a wetland is prohibited, even if the
expansion will not increase nonconformity with the water body, tributary stream, or
wetland setback requirement.

(c) Notwithstanding Section 4.3.2(b), if a nonconforming principal structure is entirely located
less than 25 feet from the normal high-water line of a water body, tributary stream, or
upland edge of a wetland, that structure may be expanded as follows, as long as all other
applicable standards of this Ordinance are met, and the expansion is not prohibited by
Section 4.3.2 above.

(i) The maximum total footprint for the principal structure may not be expanded to an area
greater than 800 square feet or 30% larger than the footprint that existed on January 1,
1989, whichever is greater.

(ii) The maximum height of the principal structure may not be made greater than 15 feet or
the height of the existing structure, whichever is greater.



(!!)pue()(p).SUOLDSJOsuawaJnbaJL.1!a1pu
U!JdOOJaiaawsnwpueaeoapapueidno‘weajsAenqp‘ApoqJaeMejo

au!JaeM-q!LiewjouatWOJjLJSLULSSP°ISJflJflJSLL40UO!JOdAu(A!)

(A!)pUe(!!!)(p)zEtSUoLDaSJoSLUaWaJ!flbaJ

JUU!JdoOJaqaawsnw‘puodeaeou!MoIJJaA!Jeiopuodeo

aU!IJaeM-11Niewjouaq:wwaaj001UeqSSpDOSJflJflJSJOUOflJOdAu(!!!)

•jawajS!JADM‘JflIJflJSULS!XatJO11!at1

aLI:L:a4sueLuapewaqouAewainpnsAuejoqaqwnw!xewaqj(!!)

•Ja:LeaJS!JaAalp!LIM‘:LoIati:uopaqsqesaSMP!JS!GUOflJaLOJdDJflOS1jLaWfl

aq:epas!xaequpdooaueqjajei%OE-‘°aaaenbsOO’tueqJaeaJeae

ueopapuedxaaqouAewsanpnseuijdooieopauqwoWflW!XeW(!)

:awaeaDUeU!PJOS!qjospiepuesaqeD!ddeiaqo

seuose‘SMOIIOJsepaa:ijeiopapuedxaaqAewPUIMejoapapueidnaqioApoq

JaeMejoaU!iJaeM-11!1jWOJ4OSueqSSP0IJUD!JS!G

UOLJOJdDJflOSU!lfliMUOLDOIJ!3L1OnpU!WJO4UODUOUSJflDflJS

‘aAoqe(D)pue(q)‘(e)suopasqnspueuopasU!suo!e!w!Iouo!!ppeUI(a)

1!!)pUe(!)(p)zEtsUo!paJosUawaJ!nbaJqIaqpUeW!JdooJ

aiaawsnwUeaMejoapapUeldnio‘weasAJenqJ‘ApoqJaeMejoaLI!I

-L1NIeWJOUaqWOJJaaLUeqssaisajnpnjsasojoUo!JodAUe‘pUod

e40aU!IJaeM-q!qIWJOUaqwoaaooteqssaisaJnpnJsjoj(A)

jaeaJS!JaAaip!qM‘anpnJsU!s!xaaqjoq!aqaq

JoaaçeqapewaqOUAewAUeoq!aqwnwxewaq‘pUod

e40aU!IJa:eM-i1!L1IeWJOUaqWOJjaajoossaipaeoisanpnjsJo(A!)

JawajS!JaAaqD!LjM‘6861‘-i:AJenUe

UOpas!xa:eq:U!JdOoJaqULjaei%OE-‘°aajaenbsoos’tUeqeaeUe

o:papUedxaaqOUAewsajnpnjsiiejow!JdooieopaqwoWflW!XeWaq‘pUod

ejoaU!IIeWJOUaqWOJjaajooiULssaipaeDoIsajnpnsJoj(!!!)

jaeajS!JaAaLp!tj/v

‘aJnpnJsU!s!xaaijoq!aaqioaajoeqapewaqOUAewajnpnjs

AUeJOq!aqWflW!XeWaq‘pUeiaMeoapapUeldnioweasAJenqJ‘Apoq

JaeMeJOawiJaWM-11!11IeWJOUatflWOJ4aaUeIflssaipaeoiSJflflJSioj(!!)

S!JaAaqD!qM‘6861‘-i:AJenueiUOpas!xaeqU!JdOOJaiUeIJaJe%OE0aa

aenbsOOO’UeljLeaeUeopapUedxaaqOUAewsajnpnjsejoUiJdooI

ieopaqwownwxewaq‘pUeaMeoapapUeidnio‘weas‘Apoq

JaeMe40aU!IJaeM-qqeWJOUaqWOJ4aaSLUet.ssaipaeopsainpnjsJOd0)

aAoqe(D)io(q)‘(e)sopasqnspeUO!PaSAqpa!q!qoJdOU

SIUo!sUedxaaL.flpueawaeaueu!pjQsq40aqeDIddeJai.oSeU0ise‘SMOIIOJ

sepaaeJ0papuedxaaqAewsuawaJ!nbaJpeqaspueiaio‘weaJsAJenqJ‘Apoq

JaeMaqaawouopeqsajnpnjsAJOSSaDDepueIed!Du!JdU!WJO4U0DU0Uaijoiv(p)



(1) Notwithstanding the limitations on height imposed under the paragraphs above, the height
of a structure that is a legally existing nonconforming principal or accessory structure may
be raised to, but not above, the minimum elevation necessary to be consistent with the
local floodplain management elevation requirement or to 3 feet above base flood elevation,
whichever is greater, as long as the structure is relocated, reconstructed, replaced or
elevated within the boundaries of the parcel so that the water body or wetland setback
requirement is met to the greatest practical extent. This paragraph applies to structures
that:

(i) Have been or are proposed to be relocated, reconstructed, replaced or elevated to be
consistent with the local floodplain management elevation requirement; and

(ii) Are located in an area of special flood hazard.

4f4tgLAny approved plan for expansion of a nonconforming structure under Section 4.3.2 must
be recorded by the applicant in the registry of deeds of the county in which the property is
located within 90 days of approval. The recorded plan must include the existing and
proposed footprint of structures on the property, the existing and proposed height of
structures on the property, the shoreland zone boundary and evidence of approval by the
permitting authority.

SECTION 8 DEFINITIONS

AREA OF SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD: Land in a floodplain having a 1% or greater chance of flooding in any
given year, as identified in the effective federal flood insurance study and corresponding flood insurance
rate maps.

HEIGHT OF A STRUCTURE: The vertical distance between the mean original (prior to construction) grade
at the downhill side of the structure and the highest point of the structure, excluding chimneys,
steeples, antennas, and similar appurtenances that have no floor area. With respect to existing principal
or accessory structures, including legally existing nonconforming structures, located within an area of
special flood hazard that have been or are proposed to be relocated, reconstructed, replaced or
elevated to be consistent with the minimum elevation required by a local floodplain management
ordinance, the vertical distance between the bottom of the sill of the structure to the highest point of
the structure, excluding chimneys, steeples, antennas and similar appurtenances that have no floor
area.



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance, which is to be presented to the
voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of

_______________

2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



Shall an ordinance dated May ==, 2023, and entitled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Harbor
Ordinance” be enacted as follows?

Explanatory Note: These amendment to the Harbor Ordinance are to bring the definition of “resident”
into line with State statute, 38 M.R.S. § 11(1), and to provide better oversight for moorings located
outside the harbors of the Town.

Town of Mount Desert
Harbor Ordinance

Enacted May 2, 2017
Amended May --, 2023

Article I — Definitions

Resident - Any person who owns property in the Town of Mount Desert, or any person who
rents property with their boat registered in town and the excise tax paid in town occupies a
dwelling within the Town of Mount Desert for more than 180 days in a calendar year.

Article VII — Moorings: Assignment, Standards, Specifications, and Waiting List

7.5 - Mooring Registration and Permit

All moorings located in all harbors and all other tidal waters of the Town of Mount Desert shall
be registered annually, prior to March 1st, with the Harbor Master, and a permit shall be
obtained from the Harbor Master. All moorings not registered by April 15th each year shall be
removed by the owner, and the mooring privilege shall be revoked. Moorings located outside
the harbors of the Town of Mount Desert existing as of the effective date of this Ordinance do
no need to register with the Harbor Master. All new moorings placed outside the harbors of the
Town of Mount Desert after the effective date of this Ordinance must register annually with the
Harbor Master in compliance with this

14. This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024.

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to
be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum
election.

Page lof 1



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Town of Mount Desert Alewife Ordinance, which is to be presented to the
voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of

_______________

2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



ALEWIFE ORDINANCE

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

Enacted December 3 & 8, 2007, Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 6, 2008 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 5, 2009 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 4, 2010 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 3, 201 1 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 7, 2012 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 6, 2013 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 6, 2014 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 5, 2015 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 3, 2016 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 2, 2017 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 7, 2019 Annual Town Meeting

Amended August 11, 2020 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 4, 2021 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 3, 2022 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting

Regulations for the taking of alewives and blue back herring shall be as follows: For the year
July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 there shall be no taking of Alewives and Blue Back Herring
in the Town of Mount Desert.



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled Town of Mount
Desert Public Water Supply Protection Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert,
which is to be presented to the voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of

_______________

2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY PROTECTION ORDINANCE

This ordinance, as enacted at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting, repeals the No Swimming
Ordinance enacted May 5, 2009

AND the

Ordinance Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds enacted May 5, 2009

Enacted May 2, 2023

Section 1. Title. This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “Public Water Supply Protection
Ordinance”

Section 2. Authority. This Ordinance, is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, Part
2, Subpart 4, Chapter 141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, et seq.), specifically 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3009 (1)(E); and
Title 22, Subtitle 2, Part 5, Chapter 601, Subchapter 4, Article 141, § 2642 (22 M.R.S.A. § 2642) and 30-A
M.R.S.A. §4452.

Section 3. Purpose. The purpose of this ordinance is to protect the water quality of Jordan, Upper and
Lower Hadlock Ponds, the Mount Desert drinking water supply and its sources, as well as the health,
safety, and welfare of persons dependent upon such supplies. The provisions of this ordinance pertaining
to surface water use and water-related activities include any activity in, on, or from the surface water or
the frozen water of Jordan, Upper and Lower Hadlock Ponds and their sources.

Section 4. Applicability. The Ordinance shall apply to: Jordan Pond in Seal Harbor and Upper Hadlock
Pond and Lower Hadlock Pond in Northeast Harbor (together, the “Ponds”). This Ordinance supersedes
and replaces the “No Swimming Ordinance re Upper Hadlock Pond, Lower Hadlock Pond and Jordan
Pond” as well as the “Ordinance Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds.”

Section 5. Protection of Water Supply Generally

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to pollute, threaten, jeopardize, or render impure, turbid or
offensive the waters of the Ponds or their sources.

B. The owner or operator of a motorized vehicle, boat or ice shack that sinks beneath the water
or ice of one of the Ponds, or any of their sources, must contact the Mount Desert Water District
or Police Department as soon as safety permits.

Section 6. Motor Vehicles Prohibited From Icebound Surface of Ponds. No person shall operate a motor
vehicle on the icebound surface of the Ponds and no person shall allow a motor vehicle owned by him or
her or under his or her control to enter upon the icebound surface of the Ponds.

Section 7. Definition of Motor Vehicle. For purposes of this Ordinance, the term “motor vehicle” shall be
as defined in M.R.S.A 29-A § 101(42), as may be amended from time to time. For convenience, § 101(42)
as of the date of adoption of this Ordinance is reproduced below. “Motor vehicle.’ ‘Motor vehicle’
means a self-propelled vehicle not operated exclusively on tracks but does not include; A. A snowmobile

As enacted May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 1 of 3



as defined in Title 12, section 13001; B. An all-terrain vehicle as defined in Title 12, section 13001, unless

the all-terrain vehicle is permitted in accordance with section 501, subsection 8 or is operated on a way

and section 2080 applies; and C. A motorized wheelchair or an electric personal assistive mobility

device.”

Section 8. Water Withdrawal. Water withdrawal from the Ponds and is not allowed. No pumping or
siphoning of water out of our drinking water sources by parties other than the Mount Desert Water
District or the Town of Mount Desert is allowed unless for fire department use.

Section 9. Boats. Traditional row boats with or without motors less than lOhp, kayaks and canoes are
allowed uses onthe Ponds. Evolving watercraft including but not limited to sailboats, sailboarding, and
paddle boards, as well as boats with motors in excess of 10 hp, are not permitted.

Section 10. Ice Shacks and On-ice Activities.

A. Ice shacks and other similar structures providing temporary protection on the Ponds are
allowed.

B. Disposal or abandonment of bottles, cans, ash, trash, human waste, pet waste, building
materials or equipment on the ice or in the water of the Ponds is prohibited. Anything
brought on the ice must be packed out.

C. Ice Shack placement and removal on the Ponds must follow all state laws. However, the
Mount Desert Water District has the right to require ice shacks to be removed from the ice
during ice-fishing season when local weather conditions create thinning/poor quality ice
potentially causing its source water to be at risk. If the owner or occupant of the shack will
not remove the shack voluntarily, the Mount Desert Water District and/or the Town may do
so, with any associated costs payable by the person or persons who constructed or occupied
the shack.

D. The Mount Desert Water District or other appropriate municipal staff may inspect
temporary structures and their surrounding environments at any time for conformance with
this Ordinance.

Section 11. No Swimming. It shall be unlawful:

A. For any person or persons to swim or wade in the waters of the Ponds.

B. For the owner or person in control of any domestic animal to allow such domestic
animal to enter waters of the Ponds.

C. To leave any domestic animal waste within the watershed(s) of the Ponds.

As enacted May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 2 of 3



Section 12. Penalty and Costs.

Any person or entity violating the provisions of this ordinance shall be liable to a civil penalty in
accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. §4452 as summarized below:

A) Monetary penalties may be assessed on a per-day basis.

1. The minimum penalty for a specific violation is $100;

2. The maximum penalty outside a resource protection zone is $2,500;

3. The maximum penalty is $5,000 for any violation within a resource protection zone;

4. The maximum penalty is increased to $25,000 when it is shown that there has been a previous
conviction of the same party within the past 2 years for a similar violation.

5. The maximum penalty may be increased if the economic benefit resulting from the violation
exceeds the applicable penalties

B) In addition to penalties, legal fees may also be awarded as provided by court rule. Any person
violating this Ordinance shall also be liable to any other appropriate party for any costs incurred as a
result of the violation, including but not limited to costs associated with the salvage of the motor vehicle,
ATV, snowmobile, boat, ice-shack or any other foreign object from the pond.

C) The violator may be ordered to correct, abate or mitigate the violations.

D) In setting a penalty, the following shall be considered:

1. Prior violations by the same party;

2. The degree of environmental damage that cannot be abated or corrected;

3. The extent to which the violation continued following an order to stop.

This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30- A, Part 2, Subpart 4, Chapter
141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, et seq.), and Title 22, Subtitle 2, Part 5, Chapter 601, Subchapter 4, Article
141, § 2642 (22 M.R.S.A. § 2642).

The original ordinances “No Swimming Ordinance re Upper Hadlock Pond, Lower Hadlock Pond and
Jordan Pond” as well as “Ordinance Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds” were, pursuant to 22
M.R.S.A. § 2642, originally adopted by the Board of Selectmen for the Town of Mount Desert on May 23,
1977, and then was ratified by the voters of the Town at a Town Meeting held on May 5, 2009. They are
hereby superseded and replaced.

This Ordinance shall be enforced by the Police Department of the Town of Mount Desert. If any section,
subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or
invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

The effective date of this Ordinance is May 2, 2023.

As enacted May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting Page 3 of 3



. MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance, which is to be presented to the
voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of

______________

2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT DOG ORDINANCE

Adopted March 1, 1965
Amended March 2, 1970, March 5, 1973, and

Amended May 5, 2009
Amended March 2, 1970
Amended March 5, 1973
Amended May 5, 2009
Amended May 2, 2023

1) Purpose

The purpose ofthis ordinance is to regulate dogs in the Town of Mount Desert, to mitigate the
problems, including property damage, caused by dangerous dogs, dogs running at large and
barking dogs, and for the protection of the health, safety, comfort, convenience, and general
welfare ofthe residents ofthe Town. This ordinance seeks to achieve its purposes without
unreasonably restricting owners and their dogs in their normal activities, while holding owners
responsible for their dogs.

2) Definitions

As used in this ordinance, unless the text clearly indicates otherwise, the following words and
phrases have the following meanings.

“Dog” includes both male and female dogs.

“Owner” means any person or persons, firm, association, or corporation, or other legal entity
amenable to civil process, owning, keeping, or harboring, or in possession of, or having the
control of a dog; and includes the parent or parents, or guardian, of a minor who owns, keeps,
harbors, or is in possession, or control of a dog.

“Keeper” means a person in possession or control ofa dog.

“Running at Large” means off the premises of the dog’s owner and not under the control of an
owner or keeper of the dog who is physically capable of controlling and restraining the dog by a
leash, cord, or chain, or by “at heel” or other voice or other command control to which the dog is
obedient.

“Voice Command” means dog control by voice or other command where the dog is obedient
and responsive.

“Town” means the Town of Mount Desert.

1 of3

Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance
As amended at Annual Town Meeting May 2, 2023



Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance

3) Barking Dogs

No Owner or Keeper of a dog shall allow the dog to unnecessarily annoy or disturb any person
by loud and repeated barking, howling, yelping, or other noises. Upon a signed and sworn
written complaint of the person disturbed, any animal control officer or other law enforcement
officer may investigate the allegations of the complaint. If the officer finds that there are valid
grounds for the complaint, the officer shall serve a written warning upon the Owner or Keeper,
notifying them that such annoyance or disturbance must cease. Said written warning shall be
served by:

a)
b)

delivering a copy of the warning to the Owner or Keeper, in hand;
leaving a copy with a person of suitable age and discretion at the premises where
the dog is kept or where the owner or keeper resides; or

c) mailing a copy to the owner or keeper at the address shown on the license
application for that dog or animal.

Any Owner or Keeper who allows such annoyance or disturbance to continue after notice has
been served commits a violation, subject to the penalties set forth in this ordinance.

4) Running at Large Prohibited

A. No person shall cause or permit any dog owned or kept to run at large within the Town.
And specifically, when on any public way, or municipal property, including but not
limited to the Town’s parks, municipal sidewalks and recreational and athletic fields, all
Owners or Keepers of a dog shall ensure that their dog is:

on a leash or tether at all times; or
is accompanied by an owner or keeper who is physically or by effective voice or
other command able to control and restrain the dog from attacking, who at all
times tends the leash or tether or otherwise maintains effective control of their
dog, and who does not permit the dog to run at large.

Nothing in this ordinance shall be held to require the Owner or Keeper of a dog to leash
their dog while on their private premises.

B . The Owner or Keeper of any dog found running at large in violation of Paragraph A of
this section of this ordinance shall be entitled to warnings on the first two alleged
violations. On the third and any subsequent alleged violations, the Owner or Keeper of
any such dog shall be cited to appear in Court to answer the charge of violating this
Ordinance, or another appropriate charge.

5) Impounding Dogs

Unlicensed dogs, or dogs found roaming at large, shall be taken up and impounded in a shelter
designated by the Town, and there confined in a humane manner for a period of not more than
ten days. Any dog impounded under the provisions of this article and not reclaimed by its owner
within ten days may be humanely destroyed or placed in the custody of another person deemed
to be a responsible and suitable owner, who will agree to comply with the provisions of this

2 of 3

i)
ii)

Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance
As amended at Annual Town Meeting May 2, 2023



Town ofMount Desert Dog Ordinance

article. The Town, or it’ s duly authorized agent, may transfer title of all animals held by it at an
animal shelter after the legal detention period has expired and the animal has not been claimed
by its owner.

When dogs are found running at large and their ownership is known, such dogs need not be
impounded, but the Town through its duly authorized agents may, at its discretion, cite the
Owner or Keeper of such dogs to appear in court to answer for their alleged violations of this
ordinance.

6) Penalty and Enforcement

Any person who violates, disobeys, refuses to comply with, or resists the enforcement of any
provision of this ordinance shall upon conviction, be fined not less than One Hundred Dollars
($ 1 00), nor more than Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) for each offense. Each
violation shall be deemed a separate offense. In addition, pursuant to the Maine Revised
Statutes, Title 30-A, Part 2, Subpart 6-A, Chapter 1 87, Subchapter 5 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 4452),
the Town may recover all costs of enforcement of this ordinance, including reasonable attorneys
fees.

This ordinance shall be enforced by the Town’s Police Department, Animal Control Officers
appointed by the Town, or by any other duly appointed agents of the Town.

In addition to any other penalty provided by law, the commission of acts prohibited by this
Ordinance shall constitute a nuisance and may be abated by the Town seeking an injunction to
prohibit further and continued violation thereof.

7) Separability

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to
be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions of this Ordinance.

Specifically, this ordinance is in addition to, but does not in any way replace the responsibilities
of Owners or Keepers pursuant to, the Maine Animal Control Act, Maine Revised Statutes Title
7, Part 9 (7 M.R.S.A. § 3901, etseq.), or other Maine law.

8) Miscellaneous Provisions

A) This ordinance, as amended, is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-
A, Part 2, Subpart 4, Chapter 141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, et seq.), and Title 7, Part 9,
Chapter 725, § 3950 (7 M.R.S.A. § 3950).

B) The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009.

C) This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024.

3 of 3

Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance
As amended at Annual Town Meeting May 2, 2023



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled Town of Mount
Desert Building and Street Numbering Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert,
which is to be presented to the voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of

_______________

2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



Building and Street Numbering Ordinance

ORDINANCE REGULATING THE BUILDING AND STREET NUMBERING
IN THE TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

As adopted at Annual Town Meeting March 6, 7, and 8, 1 995 and
As-a Amended May 5, 2009

Amended May 2, 2023

WHEREAS, it is the responsibility ofthe municipality to protect the lives and property ofthe residents of
the Town of Mount of Desert, and

WHEREAS, it is the desire ofthe municipality to operate efficient and effective public safety services, and

WHEREAS, these efficient and effective public safety operations are inhibited absent building and street
numbering;

THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Inhabitants ofthe Town ofMount Desert, Maine that the following
ordinance entitled “Ordinance Regulating the Building and Street Numbering in the Town of Mount Desert”
be enacted.

1 . The Town Manager shall designate an Addressing Officer who shall have the sole authorization to
assign street numbers to any building or lot within the boundary lines ofthe Town ofMount Desert.
That number shall be the official address used for property identification on Town records.

2. New Address numbers and naming of new roads shall follow the standards as outlined in the
publication entitled The Enhanced 91 1 Addressing Officer Manual issued by the State Public
Utilities Commission, Emergency Services Communication Bureau.

3 . All roads that serve two or more properties shall be named regardless of whether the ownership is
public or private. A “road” refers to any highway, road, street, avenue, lane, private way, or similar
paved, gravel, or dirt thoroughfare. “Property” refers to any property on which a more or less
permanent structure has been or could be placed. New Public road names shall be approved by
Town meeting. New Private roads shall be approved by the designated Addressing Officer, Police
Chief, and Fire Chief.

4. Whenever any residence or other structure is constructed that requires an assigned number, it shall
be the duty of the new owner to procure an assigned number from the currently appointed
Addressing Officer at the time of issuance of a building permit. All parcels improved with
buildings shall bear a distinctive street number in accordance with and as designated upon the
Assessing records on file with the Town ofMount Desert’s Assessing Department. The designated
Addressing Officer or his designee shall be responsible to maintain and keep current said records.

5. The number shall be displayed on the front ofthe building and/or on the side facing the street. The
number shall be plainly visible from the street. Owners of buildings that are set back out of view
from the road shall display numbers on a post/sign, tree, fence or similar feature to the left of the
driveway entrance. Said post/sign shall not be considered a structure which must conform to Land
Use Zoning Ordinance setbacks. The top of said post/sign shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in
height from ground level at the road.

6. For multi-family houses or apartment buildings, the house number shall be displayed as outlined
in section 5. Each individual apartment or living unit shall be clearly sub-lettered/numbered.

I

As amended May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting



Building and Street Numbering Ordinance

7. Numbers shall be no less than three (3) inches in height and shall contrast in color with the building
or background to which they are attached. The number must be reflective. The bottom ofa number
or numbers shall be no less than three (3) feet in height from ground level at the road.

8. No person shall affix, or allow to be affixed, a different street number from the one designated on
the Assessing records.

9 . The provisions of this Ordinance shall be enforced by the Code Enforcement Officer of the Town
of Mount Desert. Upon finding a violation of this Ordinance, the Code Enforcement Officer shall
give written notice to any or all of the owners, or persons in charge of the residence, business or
other building, stating the action necessary to achieve compliance and a compliance date by which
such action must be taken. Any person who, after being notified by a Town of Mount Desert
Official , fails to comply with any provision of this Ordinance within the time limit of thirty (30)
days specified in such Notice, shall reimburse the Town its reasonable costs ofinstalling or causing
to be installed a conforming number and number display. Any person or corporation who violates,
disobeys, refuses to comply with, or resist the enforcement of any provision of this ordinance shall
upon conviction, be fined not less that One Hundred Dollars ($ 1 00), not more than Two Thousand
Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) for each offense. Each violation shall be deemed a separate offense.
In addition, pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, Part 2, Subpart 6-A, Chapter 1 87,
Subchapter 5 (30-A M.R.S.A. §4452), the Town may recover all costs of enforcement of this
ordinance, including reasonable attorneys fees.

1 0. This ordinance, as amended, is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30-A, Part 2,
Subpart 4, Chapter 141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, elseq.)

1 1 . Any persons aggrieved by the administration or enforcement of this Ordinance may appeal that
action to the Town of Mount Desert Board of Appeals at any time within thirty (30) days of
notification, by informing the Town Clerk, in writing, of said appeal. No appeal shall be considered
to be a “de novo” action.

12. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of
this Ordinance.

13. The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009.

14. This Ordinance shall xnire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024.

2

As amended May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled Town of Mount
Desert Rural Wastewater Support Program Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert,
which is to be presented to the voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of______________ 2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



Town of Mount Desert Rural Wastewater Treatment Support Program Ordinance

RURAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT SUPPORT PROGRAM ORDINANCE

OF THE

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

ENACTED MARCH 1, 2004

AMENDED MARCH 7, 2006

AMENDED MARCH 6, 2007

AMENDED MAY 5, 2009

AMENDED MAY 2, 2023

As amended May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting



Town of Mount Desert Rural Wastewater Treatment Support Program Ordinance

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
RURAL WASTE WATER TREATMENT SUPPORT PROGRAM ORDINANCE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 Legislative Findings I

2.0 Purpose of Ordinance 2

3.0 Definitions 2

4.0 Benefit Established: Amount 3

5.0 Application Procedure 3

6.0 Additional Eligibility Requirements 5

7.0 Appropriations Required 5

8.0 Period of Ordinance 5

As amended May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting



Town of Mount Desert Rural Waste Water Treatment Support Program Ordinance

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
RURAL WASTE WATER TREATMENT SUPPORT PROGRAM ORDINANCE

1.0 Legislative Findings

The Town of Mount Desert hereby finds as follows:

I .1 . The provision of effective rural wastewater treatment is essential to the
health, welfare and quality of life in the community.

I .2 The Town currently pays the entire cost of wastewater treatment system.

1.3 Homeowners living in the rural parts of town must construct and maintain
private wastewater treatment systems at their own expense.

I .4 The existence of private wastewater treatment systems in rural areas of the
Town has reduced the need for extensions of the Town’s taxpayer-funded
public wastewater treatment system, thereby resulting in consistent annual
cost savings to the Town.

1.5 The expense of constructing and maintaining these private systems
constitutes a disproportionate financial burden on rural homeowners in
areas not served by the Town’s public wastewater treatment system.

1.6 Rural seasonal residences in the Town of Mount Desert are typically
occupied for an average of four months per year, and therefore place less
pressure on their private wastewater treatment systems than year round
rural residences.

1.7 It is importantto encourage and support year-round residency in the Town.

I .8 A majority of the Town’s year-round residents and available housing are in
areas of the Town not served by the town’s public wastewater treatment
system.

I .9 Maintenance of clean coastal and inland waters is important to support the
Town’s economic base as a destination resort area for vacationers seeking
to participate in outdoor recreational and scenic activities.

To address these issues, the Town of Mount Desert hereby adopts the following
“Rural Wastewater Treatment Support Program Ordinance” to provide financial
assistance each year to certain qualifying property owners to assist them in
providing and maintaining their own wastewater treatment systems.

As amended May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting
Page 1 of 6



Town of Mount Desert Rural Waste Water Treatment Support Program Ordinance

2.0 Purpose of Ordinance

This program is designed to achieve the following goals. The Town finds
that attainment of these goals constitutes a valid public purpose for expenditure of
Town funds, in accordance with 30-A MRSA sec. 3001 and 5721 , as amended.

2.1 To maintain clean coastal waters, fresh water lakes and safe drinking water
in rural areas of the Town in the same manner as public wastewater
treatment facilities protect water quality in the developed areas of the Town.

2.2 To ensure through regular inspection that privately owned rural wastewater
treatment systems are properly maintained and function properly.

2.3 To establish better equality in the Town’s provision of and financial support
for wastewater treatment throughout the entire Town.

2.4 To recognize that in general, rural year-round residences put greater
pressure on private wastewater treatment systems which thus require more
frequent maintenance and repair than private wastewater treatment
systems serving rural seasonal residences and rural commercial properties
which are also subject to less usage.

3.0 Definitions

For purposes ofthis ordinance only, the following terms have the meanings
stated:

3.1 Developed area: All properties within the geographic limits of the Town of
Mount Desert connected to the Town’s public wastewater treatment system.

3.2 LPI: Local Plumbing Inspector

3.3 Private wastewater treatment system: An underground holding tank, leach
field, septic system, wastewater pumps, or any combination of these or
other facilities and associated piping constructed, not connected to the
public wastewater treatment system, installed and maintained in
accordance with the State Plumbing Code and applicable Town of Mount
Desert ordinances, for the purpose of providing wastewater disposal
services to one or more individually-owned private residences located in the
rural area.

3.4 Rural area: All properties within the geographic limits of the Town of Mount
Desert served by a private wastewater treatment system.

3.5 Seasonal resident: The owner of an individually-owned private residence
located in the rural area, who does not qualify as a year-round resident in
accordance with section 3.6 below.

As amended May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting
Page 2 of 6



Town of Mount Desert Rural Waste Water Treatment Support Program Ordinance

3.6 Year-round resident: The owner of an individually owned private residence
located in the rural area. For purposes of this definition, all persons owning
a private residence located in the rural area must meet the eligibility
requirements for the Maine Resident Homestead Tax Exemption program
under 36 MRSA sec. 681-689 as amended, to be deemed a year-round
resident for that year. The determination of the Town assessor in this
respect under 36 MRSA sec. 682 shall be final, subject to section 5.6 below
(“Appeals”).

4.0 Benefit Established: Amount

4.1 Benefit established: Subject to annual appropriation as provided in section
7 below, and upon application and qualification as provided in this
ordinance, the owner of an individually-owned private residence located in
the rural area shall receive an annual benefit payment from the Town, for
the purpose of maintaining and repairing the private wastewater treatment
system serving that residence.

4.2 Benefit Amount: The benefit amount for each year shall be determined
annually by the Town Meeting, upon recommendation of the Town
Selectmen, Wastewater Treatment Superintendent, and Plumbing
Inspector. The intention of this ordinance is that the full benefit amount for
each year shall be an amount necessary to provide for annual pump-out,
maintenance and repair of a typical private wastewater treatment system
serving a single family, year-round residence, including an annual reserve
amount for replacement of the system over an amortization period
determined by the Town.

4.3 Benefit Limits:

A. Year round residents. Year round residents, as defined in this ordinance,
shall be eligible to receive the full benefit amount established for that
year by the Town Meeting.

B. Seasonal residents. Seasonal residents, as defined in this ordinance,
shall not be eligible to receive a benefit.

C. Other limitations. No more than one full or partial benefit payment may
be paid in any year with respect to the same residence.

No benefit payment shall be made with respect to any property located in the
developed area.

No benefit payment shall be made with respect to any property that is wholly or
partially exempt from property taxation under 36 MRSA sec. 652 or other
provisions of law.

5.0 Application Procedure
As amended May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting

Page 3of6



Town of Mount Desert Rural Waste Water Treatment Support Program Ordinance

5.1 Application required: Applications for benefits under this ordinance must be
made in writing, on forms to be prescribed by the LPI’s office. Forms for
this purpose shall be made available through the LPI’s office, the
Treasurer’s office, and as an enclosure or attachment to the annual Town
report.

5.2 Application deadline: All initial applications for benefit payments under this
ordinance must be received by the Town no later than April 30th to be
considered for payment of benefits during that year. Initial applications
received after May 1st shall be considered for approval, with approved
payments to begin during the next fiscal year following the application date.

5.3 Information required:

A. An initial application under this section must include a copy of the State
subsurface wastewater permit and installer’s construction data with
respect to the system concerned. This requirement may be waived by
the Town’s LPI, if the information concerned is already on file with the
Town at the time of the application, or if the applicant complies with (B)
below.

B. For any private wastewater treatment system constructed or installed
more than four (4) years prior to the application date, the application
must include a copy of a recent (less than four years old) inspection
report by a LPI or other qualified professional. This requirement may be
waived by the Town’s LPI, ifthe information concerned is already on file
with the Town at the time of the application.

5.4 Processing and approval: Initial applications shall be reviewed by the Town
LPI, who shall determine and note on the application whether the applicant
qualifies as defined in this ordinance.

The LPI shall approve only those applications for which the application information
or the Inspector’s personal inspection demonstrates that the residence concerned
is located in the rural area, the applicant qualifies for the Maine Resident
Homestead Exemption Program as determined by the Tax Assessor, and the
system concerned has been constructed or installed and is

functioning in accordance with the State plumbing code and all other applicable
code and permit requirements.

Following final approval by the Town LPI, a list of approved applicants shall be
forwarded to the Town Treasurer for payment of the appropriate benefit amount.

5.5 Subsequent Years: An approved application shall remain in force unless
the Town LPI determines that the original applicant or property is no longer
eligible for the benefit payment due to title transfer; change of residency;
change in use; extension of the Town’s public wastewater treatment

As amended May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting
Page 4 of 6



Town of Mount Desert Rural Waste Water Treatment Support Program Ordinance

system; failure to maintain the private wastewater treatment in compliance
with applicable codes and permits; failure to provide inspection reports; or
other causes. The LPI shall prepare and annually review list of previously
qualified applicants to determine their continuing eligibility.

In addition, as a condition ofcontinuing eligibility, approved applicants shall provide
the LPI with a report of inspection of the system concerned by a LPI or other
qualified inspector, at least once every four years. An applicant shall not be eligible
to receive a benefit payment for any year in which the information or reports
required underthis section has not been provided. lfthe applicant requests the LPI
to perform inspection of the system, the following shall be required:

A. The applicant shall notify the LPI that the tank will be pumped 24 hours
priorto pumping.

B. The applicant shall be responsible for uncovering all ports on the top of
the tank(s) for inspection.

C. The tank shall not be covered until it has been inspected by the LPI.

D. The tank shall be pumped no later than November 15th of the benefit
year.

Denial of an application or disqualification of the applicant for a particular year shall
not bar a re-application or qualification for subsequent years.

5.6 Appeals: Any applicant whose application is denied under this section, or
who has applied as a year-round resident but has been determined to be a
seasonal resident, or who is determined to be ineligible for a subsequent
year’s benefit following approval of an initial application, shall be provided
with notice in writing of the denial or determination. In the case of new
applications, notice shall be given within thirty (30) days of the application
date. Applicants may appeal an adverse decision or determination to the
Selectmen within fourteen (14) days ofthe notice date. A decision on the
appeal shall be provided within thirty (30) days after the appeal is filed.

The decision of the Selectmen on the appeal shall be final, with no right of further
appeal.

6.0 Additional Eligibility Requirements

6.1 All property taxes must be current.

7.0 Appropriations Required

7.1 All benefits payable under this ordinance are subject the requirement of
annual appropriation by the Town Meeting. In the event the amount
appropriated for this purpose in any year is insufficient to fund the full
amount of benefits payable to eligible applicants for that year, the full and
partial benefit amounts payable for that year shall be reduced pro rata.

8.0 Period of Ordinance

As amended May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting
Page 5of6



Town of Mount Desert Rural Waste Water Treatment Support Program Ordinance

8.1
The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009.

8.2 This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024.

As amended May 5, 2009 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting
Page 6of6



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled Town of Mount
Desert Use of Short-term Rental Licensing Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert,
which is to be presented to the voters for their consideration on May 2, 2023.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the

_____

day of

_______________

2023,
a majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

Geoffrey Wood



Town of Mount Desert
Short-Term Rental Licensing Ordinance

I. Purpose

The Town of Mount Desert recognizes the desire of some property owners to rent their legal residential
unit(s) as short-term rentals. The Town of Mount Desert also recognizes that the ability for some
property owners to rent their residential dwelling unit and/or their accessory dwelling unit as a short-
term rental has contributed to their ability to remain as a year-round resident of the Town of Mount
Desert. At the same time, there are legitimate concerns about the increase in number of short-term
rentals and the undue impacts they can have on the quality of life and quiet enjoyment of properties
within the vicinity of short-term rentals. It is the intent of this ordinance to allow the continued
reasonable short-term rental of legal residential properties in the Town of Mount Desert, while
minimizing the negative impacts said short-term rentals could generate. This will be accomplished by a
licensing program that enables the Town to monitor and track the number of short-term rentals within
its borders and includes modest performance standards intended to protect property owners, renters,
and neighbors. .

II. Applicability •\\ •

A. Permitted short-term rentals. Legally existing residential dwelling units may be used as short-term
rentals upon the issuance of a short-term rental license for the premises in accordance with the
requirements of this ordinance.

B. Prohibited short-term rentals. No person may offer for rent, operate, or otherwise use any
residential dwelling unit in the Town of Mount Desert for short-term rentals if such person has not

I secured and maintained a valid short-term rental license for the premises.

C. Lodging establishments exempt. The following lodging establishment uses are exempt from the

licensing requirements and standards of this chapter: hotels, motels, bed-and-breakfasts, boarding
houses, and inns.

D. Hosted home stays exempt. Hosted home stays are exempt from the licensing requirements and
standards of this chapter.

Ill. Validity and Severability

If any section, subsection, clause or phrase of this chapter shall be found to be invalid or
unconstitutional, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this chapter and, to that
end, the provisions of this chapter are hereby declared severable.

IV. Definitions

As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

Warrant Article Draft
V03162023 Page 1 of 5



HOSTED HOME STAY — A residential dwelling unit that is occupied, including overnight, by the Owner
during the short-term rental period. In the case of a one-family residential dwelling with a legally
permitted accessory residential dwelling unit, the owner shall reside in either unit during the short-term
rental period. There is no minimum night stay required for hosted home stay short-term rentals.

OWNER — An individual person or persons or an entity that is the owner of record of real property as
documented by deed or other document evidencing ownership recorded at the Hancock County
Registry of Deeds or Registry of Probate.

RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNIT — As defined in the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Zoning Ordinance.

SHORT-TERM RENTAL — The use, control, management or operation of a legally existing dwelling unit
offered, in whole or in part, for rent for transient occupancy for dwelling, sleeping or lodging purposes
for fewer than 28 consecutive nights, for compensation, directly or indirectly, excluding motels, hotels,
bed-and-breakfasts, boarding houses, inns, and hosted home stays. A short-term rental does not
include: legally existing dwelling units that are rented no more than twice per calendar year and for less
than a total of 14 days in a calendar year; or when relatives and friends stay for no monetary
com pensation.

SHORT-TERM RENTAL GUEST — Any person who rents, licenses, occupies or has the right to occupy a
dwelling unit pursuant to a short-term rental.

V. Requirements

A. License required. No short-term rental shall be advertised, rented, or operated without first
obtaining a short-term rental license. A short-term rental license shall be valid for the calendar year
for which the license is issued. The property must remain in compliance with the requirements of
this ordinance.

B. Registration Procedure.

1. All applications, and associated fees, for short-term rental licenses shall be filed with the Town
on forms provided for this purpose.

2. The applicant shall provide all the information requested on the short-term rental registration
application form, including, the following information: owner or owner’s representative contact
information, property information, number of short-term rental guests allowed, and emergency
contact information.

3. A proposed short-term rental may only be registered by the legal owner of the proposed short-
term rental unit or an authorized representative.

4. Non-refundable fees for a short-term rental registration/renewal shall be as adopted, by order
of the Board of Selectmen for the Town of Mount Desert, and may be amended from time to
time. Such fee must be submitted with the registration form at the time of registration and/or
renewal.

Warrant Article Draft
V03162023 . Page2of5



5. A registration number will be given to each unit registered. Registrations are limited to the
dwelling unit for which they are issued and shall not be transferable to a different dwelling unit.

C. Inspection. Anytime that a short-term rental application is submitted for a property, the short-term
rental applicant shall certify on the short-term rental application that the proposed short-term
rental property complies with the short-term rental standards in this ordinance and with applicable
Building Code requirements. The Code Enforcement Officer may inspect the licensed premises to
determine compliance with the short-term standards. However, said inspection shall not be
required as a condition of license issuance.

D. Short-term rental license renewal. Short-term rental licenses shall expire on December 31 of each
calendar year. Short-term rental license holders may renew such license by submitting a renewal
application, via a renewal process established by the Town. After the effective date of this
ordinance, any duly licensed short-term rental may continue operating as long as the license is
current and renewed for the current calendar. If the license is not renewed by the expiration date
the license expires, and this protection clause no longer applies.

E. Transferability. Short term rental licenses issued under this ordinance shall be transferable to a new
owner as of the day the new owner acquires possession of the property and shall expire on
December 31. A new license shall be required the following year.

F. Notice. The short-term rental license holder must post in plain sight near the entrance of the
dwelling a notice that identifies the short-term rental license number and the name, address, phone
number(s), email address of the owner of the short-term rental and/or the owner’s local contact
person, and the maximum number of short-term rental guests allowed.

VI. Standards

A. At the time of issuance of a license, and at all times during the continuance of a short-term rental
license, the property taxes and any applicable water and/or sewer fees associated with the property
to be rented as a short-term rental shall not be in arrears.

B. Street number per Town 911 standards

C. Smoke alarms. Smoke alarms shall be installed in each bedroom, outside each separate sleeping
area in the immediate vicinity of the bedrooms, and on each additional story of the short-term
rental unit (including basements and habitable attics).

D. Carbon monoxide alarms. If a short-term rental unit has an attached garage or a fuel-fired appliance,
a carbon monoxide alarm shall be installed outside each bedroom in the immediate vicinity of the
bedrooms.

E. Gas alarms are required per the applicable rules of the State of Maine.

F. Portable fire extinguishers. At least one appropriately sized portable fire extinguisher shall be
mounted in a prominent location within the short-term rental unit.

Warrant Article Draft
V03162023 Page 3 of 5



G. Parking. Short-term rental guests and their guests are prohibited from parking in a manner that
impedes access by emergency vehicles to the property or any other property in the neighborhood.
The owner must provide sufficient off-street parking for all overnight short-term rental guest
vehicles. The number of short-term rental guest vehicles allowed at the short-term rental shall be
limited to the number of off-site parking spaces designated by the applicant. Garage parking spaces
not allowed for short-term rental guest use shall not be used to meet this short-term rental parking
requirement.

H. Trash shall be removed from the short-term rental unit on at least a weekly basis while the property
is being rented as a short-term rental.

I. Occupancy limits. The maximum occupancy of a short-term rental shall be limited to no more than
two short-term rental guests per bedroom, plus two additional Short-term rental guests total for the
entire dwelling unit. By way of example, the maximum capacity for a three-bedroom dwelling short-
term rental is eight short-term rental guests (i.e., three bedrooms multiplied by two short-term
rental guests, plus an additional two short-term rental guests, for a total of eight short-term rental
guests).

VII. Suspension and Revocation of License

A license for a short-term rental may be conditioned, suspended, or revoked by the Board of Selectmen
after a public hearing if the Board of Selectmen determine that a violation of this Ordinance, any
applicable statute, ordinance, or regulation, or short-term rental license certification, condition, or
criterion has occurred.

A. Violations ofthis chapter. Violations ofthis chapter include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Providing false or misleading information on an application, or renewal application, for a short-
term rental license;

2. Failure to comply with the parking provisions of this ordinance;

3. Failure to acquire and/or display the required short-term rental license number or include the
license number in any advertising ofthe licensed premises;

4. Violation of any short-term rental license certification, condition, or criteria;

5. Violation of any statute, ordinance, or regulation applicable to the short-term rental property.

B. Complaints concerning short-term rentals. The Town shall establish and maintain a log of all
complaints for each short-term rental received and substantiated by the Town. The Town shall seek
the correction of all substantiated complaints by the short-term rental license holder.

C. Suspension or revocation of license. The Board of Selectmen may condition, suspend, or revoke a
short-term rental license, following a public hearing, on the basis of the licensee’s noncompliance
with this chapter, any applicable law, ordinance, or regulation, or short-term rental license
certification, condition, or criteria. Registrants who have previously had a registration(s) revoked
pursuant to this Ordinance, shall be allowed to obtain a license for the subject property in the future
only by order of the Board of Selectmen.

Warrant Article Draft
V03 162023 Page 4 of 5



D. Penalties. Any person, including but not limited to a landowner, a landowner’s agent or a contractor
or firm, or corporation, who violates any provision or requirement of this Ordinance, or disobeys,
refuses to comply with, or resists the enforcement of, any provision of this ordinance or who starts
construction or under-takes a land use activity without a required permit, shall be penalized in
accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. Section 4452.

E. Appeal. A decision by the Board of Selectmen to proceed against an alleged violator for violations of
this Ordinance is not appealable to the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Warrant Article Draft
V03162023 Page 5 of 5



 

MEMO BOS warrant signing.docx 

Town of Mount Desert 
Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 

Telephone     207-276-5531 Fax     207-276-3232 
E-mail  townclerk@mtdesert.org  Web Address www.mtdesert.org 

 
 
 

MEMO 
 
DATE: March 16, 2023 
 
TO: Board of Selectmen 
 
FROM: Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk 
 
RE: Warrant for Special Town Meeting and 
 Municipal Officer’s Certification of Official Text of Proposed Ordinances 
 
Maine law requires that a majority of the full number of municipal officers sign the Town Meeting 
warrant in a public meeting.  I will have a complete warrant for you to sign at Monday night. 
 
Maine law also requires that the Municipal Officers certify to the Town Clerk the official text of any 
amended or new ordinances presented at Town Meeting.  In turn, the Town Clerk must keep the certified 
copies on file and make them available for public inspection and must make copies available for 
distribution to the voters from the time they are certified.  Furthermore, copies of the proposed ordinances 
must be made available at the Town Meeting.  I will have the certificates with the official text for you to 
sign Monday night. 
 

mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
http://www.mtdesert.org/


 
Warrant Page 1 

 
Town of Mount Desert 

 
 

Annual Town Meeting Warrant 
Fiscal Year 2023 – 2024 

 
As presented at the  

Annual Town Meeting 
May 1 & 2, 2023 

 
Secret Ballot (Candidate) Election 

May 1, 2023 8 a.m. – 8 p.m. 
Town Office Meeting Room 

 
Open Floor Town Meeting 

May 2, 2023 
6 p.m. 

Neighborhood House 
1 Kimball Rd, Northeast Harbor, ME 04662 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 
Warrant Page 2 

Table of Contents  
 

Warrant Committee Report .............................................................................................. 1 

Warrant Committee ......................................................................................................... 2 

Greeting .......................................................................................................................... 3 

Election of Moderator ...................................................................................................... 3 

Election of Municipal Officers .......................................................................................... 3 

Non-Voter recognition ..................................................................................................... 3 

Ordinances ...................................................................................................................... 4 

Gifts .............................................................................................................................. 18 

Leases, Agreements, Easements, Deeds ...................................................................... 18 

Fiscal Policy .................................................................................................................. 22 

Municipal Revenue ........................................................................................................ 32 

Municipal Appropriations ............................................................................................... 32 

Marina Proprietary Fund ................................................................................................ 37 

Elementary School Appropriations ................................................................................ 37 

Appendix A: Public Water Supply Protection Ordinance  ............................................... 43 

Appendix B:  Non-conforming Structures (roof height) ................................................... 46 

Appendix C:  Short-Term Rental Licensing Ordinance .................................................. 49 

Appendix D:  Cranberry Isles Parking Lease ................................................................. 54 

Appendix E:  Patterson Hill Subdivision Map ................................................................. 63 

Appendix F:  Investment Policy ..................................................................................... 64 

Appendix G:  Sidewalk Improvement Maps ................................................................... 67 

Appendix H:  Northeast Harbor Tennis & Pickleball Map ............................................... 70 

Appendix I:   Parking Lot Renovation Maps  .................................................................. 71 

Appendix J:  Somesville DOT Route 3/198 Sewer Infrastructure Map ........................... 73 

Appendix K:  Beech Hill Cross Road Culvert Map ......................................................... 74 

Appendix L:  Seal Harbor Beach Erosion Map............................................................... 75 

2023-2024 Estimated Tax Rate ..................................................................................... 76 

2023-2024 Municipal Property Tax Levy Limit Worksheet (LD 1) .................................. 77 

Municipal Expenditure Budget ...........................................................................................  

Municipal Revenue Budget ................................................................................................  



 
Warrant Page 3 

Table of Contents continued 
 

Municipal Capital Improvement Plan .................................................................................  

Marina Expenditure Budget ...............................................................................................  

Marina Revenue Budget ....................................................................................................  

Marina Capital Improvement Budget .................................................................................  

Mount Desert Elementary School Department Budget ..............................................................  

  



 
Warrant Page 4 

2023 Warrant Committee Report 
 
The Warrant Committee, created by the Town Charter, is a committee of volunteers 
appointed by the Select Board, to review and make recommendations to the voters about all 
warrant articles.  We see it as our mission to try to be independent eyes and ears on behalf 
of the voters. We currently number 22 members and have high meeting attendance and 
participation rates. Our members bring a diverse range of experiences and perspectives that 
results in better understanding for all. 
 
For several months before town meeting the warrant committed meets weekly. Each week 
different town department heads attend our meetings, present their proposed budget and 
answer our questions.  We also review all ordinance changes. We strive to not only 
understand the budgets and changes, but the circumstances driving them. We try to ask 
why and how as much as we ask how much.  
 
We would like to express our sincere appreciation to those town and school officials who 
attend our meetings at our request. Please know that we greatly appreciate the time and 
effort you put into presenting your budgets and fielding our questions.  
 
We take seriously the recommendations we make to you, the voter, about each warrant 
article. Our goal is to be able to provide you with the assurance that to the best of our 
abilities we have thoroughly scrutinized the warrant you will be asked to consider.  
 
Our meetings are always open to the public and copies of the minutes are available. 
Normally they are Tuesday evenings in January, February and the first weeks of March at 
the town office  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Phil Lichtenstein 
Jerry Miller 
 

 
  



 
Warrant Page 5 

Warrant Committee 2023 
 

Phil Lichtenstein, Co-Chair 
Jerry Miller, Co-Chair 

Owen Craighead, Secretary 
 
 

Megan Rae Bailey 

Donna Beals 

Blakeslee Bell 

James Blaine 

Katrina Carter 

Owen Craighead Jr 

Rodney Eason 

William Ferm 

Jesse Hartson 

Stephanie Kelley-Reece 

Allen Kimmerly 

Lauren Kuffler 

Philip Lichtenstein 

Rosemary Matchak 

Marina McGarr 

Samuel McGee 

Gerard Miller 

Kathleen Miller 

Timothy Murphy 

Michael Olson 

Craig Roebuck 

Carmen Sanford 

  



 
Warrant Page 5 

Greeting 
 

State of Maine 
Hancock County, ss         2023 
 

To: David Kerns, a Constable in the Town of Mount Desert 
 
In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the 
Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert, qualified by law to vote in Town affairs, to 
assemble in the Town Hall Meeting Room, 21 Sea St. Northeast Harbor, Maine, on 
Monday, the first day of May AD 2023 at seven-fifty o’clock in the forenoon, then and 
there to act on Article 1; and immediately thereafter to act on Article 2 until eight o’clock in 
the evening. 
AND to notify and warn said voters to reconvene in the Neighborhood House, 1 Kimball 
Rd, Northeast Harbor, Maine in said Town, on Tuesday, the second day of May AD 2023 
at six o’clock in the evening; then and there to act on Articles 3 through 90; all of said 
Articles being set out below to wit: 
 
Pursuant to Title 21-A, §759(7), absentee ballots will be processed at the polls on May 
1, 2023 every half hour beginning at 9:00 AM. 
 
 

Election of Moderator 

 To elect a Moderator by written ballot. 
 
 

Election of Municipal Officers 

 To elect two members to the Selectboard for a term of three years, one member 
to the Mount Desert Elementary School Board for a term of three years, and one trustee to the 
Mount Desert Island Regional School District for a term of three years. 
 

Non-Voter Recognition 

 To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to speak during the 
2023 Annual Town Meeting. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Warrant Page 6 

Ordinances 
 
For Articles 4 through 25, an underline indicates an addition, and a strikethrough 
indicates a deletion. 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert 
Alewife Ordinance” be enacted?  The ordinance reads, in its entirety, “Regulations for the 
taking of alewives and blue back herring shall be as follows:  For the year July 1, 2023 
through June 30, 2024 there shall be no taking of Alewives and Blue Back Herring in the 
Town of Mount Desert.” 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 
Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted?   
 

Town of Mount Desert 
Harbor Ordinance 

 
Enacted May 2, 2017 

Amended May 2, 2023 
 

Article I – Definitions 
 
Resident - Any person who owns property in the Town of Mount Desert, or any person 
who rents property with their boat registered in town and the excise tax paid in town 
occupies a dwelling within the Town of Mount Desert for more than 183 days in a 
calendar year. 
 

Article VII – Moorings: Assignment, Standards, Specifications, and 
Waiting List 

 
7.5 - Mooring Registration and Permit  
 
All moorings located in all harbors and all other tidal waters of the Town of Mount 
Desert shall be registered annually, prior to March 1st, with the Harbor Master, and a 
permit shall be obtained from the Harbor Master. All moorings not registered by April 
15th each year shall be removed by the owner, and the mooring privilege shall be 
revoked. Moorings located outside the harbors of the Town of Mount Desert existing 
as of the effective date of this Ordinance do no need to register with the Harbor Master. 
All new moorings placed outside the harbors of the Town of Mount Desert after the 
effective date of this Ordinance must register annually with the Harbor Master in 
compliance with this provision. 
 
Explanatory Note: These amendments to the Harbor Ordinance are to bring the 
definition of “resident” into line with State statute, 38 M.R.S. § 11(1), and to provide 



 
Warrant Page 7 

better oversight for moorings located outside the harbors of the Town.   
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Ordinance 
Regulating the Building and Street Numbering in the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted? 
 

ORDINANCE REGULATING THE BUILDING AND STREET NUMBERING 
IN THE TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 

 
As adopted at Annual Town Meeting March 6, 7, and 8, 1995 and 

As aAmended May 5, 2009 
Amended May 2, 2023 

. 

. 

. 
 

14.       This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024. 
 

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance 
to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum 
election.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to 
the Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance” be enacted?   

 
TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT DOG ORDINANCE 

 
Adopted March 1, 1965 
Amended March 2, 1970  
Amended March 5, 1973 
Amended May 5, 2009 
Amended May 2, 2023 

 
1) Miscellaneous Provisions 

A) This ordinance, as amended, is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, 
Title 30-A, Part 2, Subpart 4, Chapter 141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, et seq.), and Title 
7, Part 9, Chapter 725, § 3950 (7 M.R.S.A. § 3950). 

 
B) The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009. 
 



 
Warrant Page 8 

C) This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024. 

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance 
to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum 
election.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 
Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted?   
 

Town of Mount Desert 
Harbor Ordinance 

 
Enacted May 2, 2017 

Amended May 2, 2023 
 

Article II – Applicability, Authority, & General Provisions 
 
2.1 - Effective date of the Ordinance 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption by the legislative body and shall, 
in compliance with section 5.3 of Town of Mount Desert Charter, remain in effect for 
a period of fifteen (15) years from the effective date. 

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance 
to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum 
election.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount 
Desert Public Water Supply Protection Ordinance" be enacted?  See Appendix A 
(pgs.43 - 45) for language 
 
Explanatory Note: Repeal and replace the No Swimming and Limiting Motor 
Vehicle Access to Great Ponds Ordinances. 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays; 1 Abstention) 
 
 
 



 
Warrant Page 9 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to 
the Town of Mount Desert Public Road Acceptance Ordinance” be enacted?   

 
Public Road Acceptance Ordinance 

 
As adopted May 5, 2009 Annual Town Meeting 
Amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting 
Amended May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting 

 
This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024. 

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance 
to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum 
election.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Rural 
Wastewater Treatment Support Program Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” be 
enacted? 
 

RURAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT SUPPORT PROGRAM ORDINANCE 
OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 

 
ENACTED MARCH 1, 2004 
AMENDED MARCH 7, 2006 
AMENDED MARCH 6, 2007 

AMENDED MAY 5, 2009 
AMENDED MAY 2, 2023 

. 

. 

. 
 

8.0 Period of Ordinance 
 
8.1  
 The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009. May 2, 2023 
 
8.2 This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024. 

 
Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the 
ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 
2022 referendum election. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 



 
Warrant Page 10 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Solid Waste 
Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted? 
 

SOLID WASTE ORDINANCE 
of the  

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
  

Enacted MAY 6, 2014 
Revised and Enacted May 8, 2018 

Amended May 2, 2023  
 

SECTION 11: EFFECTIVE DATE; SUNSET  
 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of enactment for a period not to 
exceed 15 years, unless amended or repealed prior to the expiration of this 15 year period.  

Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance 
to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum 
election.  

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert 
Use of Public Places Ordinance” be enacted? 
 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
USE OF PUBLIC PLACES ORDINANCE 

 
Enacted May 5, 2009 

Amended May 2, 2023 
. 
. 
. 

 
1. This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024. 

 
Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the 
ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 
2022 referendum election. 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance Regarding Lots within the Village Commercial District in the Village of 
Northeast Harbor” be enacted as set forth below? 
 



 
Warrant Page 11 

Explanatory Note:  This Article amends Section 3.5, footnote P to clarify that the 
minimum lot size of 1000 square feet only applies to lots within the village of 
Northeast Harbor.   

 
Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts:  minimum area, width of lots, setbacks, 
etc. 
. 
. 
. 
Notes: 
. 
. 
. 
 
(p) For only those lots in the Village of Northeast Harbor within the Village Commercial District 
that have public sewer, the minimum lot area required for each dwelling unit on a single lot is 
1000 square feet.  
. 
. 
. 
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (17 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023, entitled “Amendments to the Land Use 
Zoning Ordinance to change the Land Use District designation of Tax Map 003: Lot 026 and 
Map 003: Lot 027” be enacted as set forth below? 

Explanatory Note:  This Article changes Tax Map 003, Lot 26 and Map 3, Lot 27 from 
Shoreland Residential Two (SR2) to Residential Two (R2).   

 
SECTION 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS 

. 

. 

. 
 
3.3 Map Changes: Amended at:  
. 
. 
. 
 
Town Meeting of May 2, 2023: change Tax Map 003, Lot 026 and Tax Map 003, Lot 027 
from Shoreland Residential Two (SR2) to Residential Two (R2). 
 
. 
. 
. 

 
See draft map on following page 



 
Warrant Page 12 

 
 

 
 
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify the dimensional requirements for one-Family and two-family 
dwellings” be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This warrant article amends the LUZO section 6.B.11.3(2) to clarify 
that the dimensional standards for a duplex are not doubled until a second duplex 
structure is added. 
 
6B  SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR ACTIVITIES AND LAND USES  
. 
. 
. 
6B.11 Lots  
. 
. 



 
Warrant Page 13 

. 
 
3. Requirements for lots wholly outside the Shoreland Zone   
 
1. Lots abutting more than one road. Lots which abut more than one road shall have the 
required setbacks along each road used as an entrance or exit.  
  
2. Additional Dimensional requirements one-family or two-family dwellings.  One-family and 
two-family dwellings are allowed in all districts, as indicated in Section 3.4, subject to the 
following:. All dimensional requirements shall be met separately for each and every one-family 
dwelling on a lot. For each additional or All dimensional requirements shall be met separately 
for each and every two-family dwelling on a lot, all dimensional requirements shall be met 
separately for each one-family or two-family dwelling.  
  
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to add Residential Storage Building/Shed as permitted uses in 
Section 3.4” be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article adds Residential Storage Building/Sheds as allowed 
uses so that property owners can build these structures without being tied to a 
residential dwelling unit.   
 
SECTION 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS 
. 
. 
. 
 
3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District: 
 

All land use activities, as indicated in the following table, shall conform with all of the 
applicable land use standards in Sections 6.A., 6.B., and 6.C. The district designation for a 
particular site shall be determined from the Official Land Use Zoning map. 
 
P Use allowed without a permit (but the use must comply with all applicable land 

use standards  
C Use allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board Use 

allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board, except 
where the code enforcement officer may authorize minor changes in the 
placement and size of improvements for an approved conditional use 
permit 

X Use is prohibited 
CEO Use allowed with a permit from the code enforcement officer 

 
 
 
 

 



 
Warrant Page 14 

VR1 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL ONE 
VR2 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL TWO 
VR3    VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL THREE 
R1 RESIDENTIAL ONE 
R2 RESIDENTIAL TWO 
SR1 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL ONE 
SR2 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL TWO 
SR3 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL THREE 
SR5 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL FIVE 
RW2 RURAL OR WOODLAND TWO 
RW3 RURAL OR WOODLAND THREE 
VC VILLAGE COMMERCIAL 
SC SHORELAND COMMERCIAL 
RP RESOURCE PROTECTION 
C CONSERVATION 
SP STREAM PROTECTION 

 
See table of uses on following pages 

 
Section 3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District 
DISTRICTS: 
 
LAND USE: 

 
VR 1 
VR 2 

 
R 1 
R 2 

SR 1 
SR 2 
SR 3 
SR 5 

 
RW 2 
RW 3 

 
VC 

 
SC 

 
C 

 
RP 

 
SP 

 
VR3 

 
RESIDENTIAL 

 

Dwelling 1 & 2 
Family  CEO CEO CEO(d) CEO CEO CEO(d) C C8 C4 X 

Dwelling, Multiple  C C C C C X C X X X 

Accessory 
Residential 
Dwelling Unit  
 

CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C C8 C4 Ce 

Accessory 
structures including 
structural additions 
and guest houses(c) 

CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C8 C4 X 

Cluster and 
Workforce 
Subdivisions 

C C X C C X X X X X 

Residential Storage 
Building/Shed CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C8 C4 X 

Mobile Home Park C X X X X X X X X X 

(c)   A separate garage is an accessory structure. A separate garage with a dwelling unit  
     shall be deemed a dwelling unit. 
(d)   See Section 6B.11.3 (Lots) 
(e)  Accessory residential dwellings in the VR3 District must be for staff housing only. 



 
Warrant Page 15 

DISTRICTS: 
 
LAND USE: 

 
VR 1 
VR 2 

 
R 1 
R 2 

SR 1 
SR 2 
SR 3 
SR 5 

 
RW 2 
RW 3 

 
VC 

 
SC 

 
C 

 
RP 

 
SP 

 
VR3 

 
. 
. 
. 
 
 
SECTION 8 DEFINITIONS  
. 
. 
. 
RESIDENTIAL STORAGE BUILDING/SHED: A structure or building used primarily for storage 
purposes.   
. 
. 
. 
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to remove the air landing sites” be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article removes air landing sites from section 6B in the 
ordinance.   
 
6B  SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR ACTIVITIES AND LAND USES  
  
6B.1 Agriculture  
  
In non-shoreland areas, all spreading, or disposal of manure shall be accomplished in 
conformance with the Manure Utilization Guidelines published by the Maine Department of 
Agriculture on November 1, 2001, and the Nutrient Management Law (7 M.R.S.A. sections 
4201-4209). In shoreland areas, all spreading, or disposal of manure shall comply with Section 
6C.1.  
   
6B.2 Air Landing Sites RESERVED 
  
No air landing site shall be developed or used for such purpose without Conditional Use 
Approval of the Planning Board. 
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance regarding the definition of Marina and Expansion of Use” be enacted 



 
Warrant Page 16 

as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article adds language to the definitions for Marina’s and 
Expansion of a Use to clarify that the Harbor Master regulates moorings and that an 
expansion of use does not include adding moorings.   
 

SECTION 8 DEFINITIONS 
 

. 

. 

. 
EXPANSION OF A USE:  The additional use of more footprint of a structure, land or water 
area devoted to a particular use; additional one or more weeks of the use's operating season; 
or additional business hours of operation. Excludes moorings that are regulated by the 
harbormaster. 
. 
. 
. 
MARINA: A business establishment having frontage on navigable water and providing for hire 
docking facilities or moorings at its location unless such uses are incidental to the principal use 
of the property. In addition, it may also provide other services such as:  boat storage and repair; 
boat sales; boat hauling and launching; bait and tackle sales; sale of marine supplies and 
marine fuel. Placement of moorings are exclusively regulated by the Harbor Master consistent 
with the Harbor Ordinance and Maine Revised Statutes, Title 38, Chapter 1. 
 
 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays; 1 Abstention) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to amend the deadline for establishment of use” be enacted as set 
forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article changes the timeframe for establishment of use for a 
conditional use from 12 months to 24 months.   
 
SECTION 5 CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL  
. 
. 
. 
5.5 Deadline for establishment of use  
  
Unless more restrictive criteria are required in another section of this Ordinance, the proposed 
use must be established within twelve (12) twenty-four (24) months of the date of approval of 
the Conditional Use Application.  Otherwise, the approval lapses and a new application is 
required.  The beginning of construction or the commencement of business shall constitute 
establishment.  
 
 



 
Warrant Page 17 

Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to correct the date for when a lot was be created for purposes of 
applying the access provisions in 6B.11(2)” to be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article makes a house keeping correction to date for when a 
lot was be created for purposes of applying the access provisions in 6B.11(2).   
 
6B.11 Lots   
  
1. Minimum lot size. See section 3.5.  
  
2. Access.   

1. Lots created on or after June 6May 5, 2015. No lot created on or after June 6May 5, 
2015, shall be built upon or otherwise developed unless it has a private road or driveway for 
access to a public way by a valid right of way benefiting the lot (or a combination of driveway 
and/or one or more private roads) or by ownership of land abutting the public way. If more 
than 2 lots are accessed by the same private road, then it must meet the Street Design and 
Construction Standards of Section 5.14 of the Subdivision Ordinance. If no more than 2 lots 
are accessed by the same private road or driveway, then it must meet either the said Street 
Design and Construction Standards or the Driveway Construction standards of Section 6B.6 
of this Ordinance. A pre-existing primary access drive that serves up to 2 existing lots need 
not meet the requirements of Section 6B.6. All such lots must maintain safe access for fire, 
police, and emergency vehicles, as determined by the Code Enforcement Officer.   
 
In determining whether lots maintain safe access, the Code Enforcement Office may seek 
guidance from the Fire Chief.  
  
2.  Lots created before June 6May 5, 2015. Any lot created before June 6May 5, 2015, 
shall not be further built upon or otherwise further developed unless it has a private road or 
driveway for access to a public way by a valid right of way benefiting the lot (or a 
combination of driveway and/or one or more private roads) or by ownership of land abutting 
the public way, but the said private road or driveway need not meet the requirements of 
Section 6B.6 of the Land Use Zoning Ordinance. All such lots must maintain safe access for 
fire, police, and emergency vehicles, as determined by the Code Enforcement Officer. In 
determining whether lots maintain safe access, the Code Enforcement Officer may seek 
guidance from the Fire Chief. 

 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify where the setback is measured from a road or right-of-way” 
be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article clarifies where a road setback is measured from.   



 
Warrant Page 18 

 
SECTION 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS 
. 
. 
. 
Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts:  minimum area, width of lots, setbacks, etc. 
. 
. 
. 
 
NOTES: 
 

(b) Refer to setback as defined in Section 8. 
 

(c) Setbacks from pPublic and private roads are measured from edge of road surface, or 
edge of legally established right of way if no road exists. Where the setback is from a 
private road or right-of-way, the setback shall be equal to the property line setback 
requirements of the district in which the property is located. 

 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land 
Use Zoning Ordinance regarding the footprint limitation for principal and accessory 
structures in the shoreland zone” be enacted as set forth below? 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article provides a housekeeping change to make the local 
ordinance consistent with Shoreland Zoning by increases the footprint limitation for 
principal and accessory structures in the shoreland zone from 15% to 20% which is 
more consistent with the State guidelines.    
 

SHORELAND ZONING STANDARDS 
. 
. 
.  
6C.8 Principal and Accessory Structures 
. 
. 
. 

6. 15%20% footprint limitation. The total footprint area of all structures, parking lots 
and other -vegetated surfaces, within the shoreland zone shall not exceed 
fifteentwenty (1520) percent of the lot or a portion thereof, located within the shoreland 
zone, including land area previously developed, except in the Shoreland Commercial 
District adjacent to tidal waters, where lot coverage shall not exceed seventy (70) 
percent. 

 
Planning Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 
 



 
Warrant Page 19 

  Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the 
Land Use Zoning Ordinance to allow exceptions to the height limitations consistent with 
State Shoreland Zoning Laws” be enacted as set forth below?   See Appendix B (pgs.46 - 
48) for language 
 
Explanatory Note:  This Article allows an exception to how height is measured when a 
structure is located within an area of special flood hazard.   
 
Planning Board recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Short-Term Rental 
Licensing Ordinance” be enacted as set forth below?  See Appendix C (pgs.49 - 53) for 
language 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (7 Ayes; 6 Nays; 3 Abstentions) 
 
 
 
 

Gifts 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Board of Selectmen to accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654), Unconditional Gifts 
(MRSA 30-A §5655), equipment, proceeds from sale of fire equipment or funds on behalf of 
the Municipal Fire Department.  It is understood that any funds received will be placed in the 
Fire Equipment Reserve Fund. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 
 
 

Leases, Agreements, Sales 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Board of Selectmen to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast 
Harbor Marina to the Ticket Booth operators for a term of one (1) year beginning July 1, 
2023 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its sole discretion, 
deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Board of Selectmen, to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast 
Harbor Marina to the Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce for a term of one (1) year 



 
Warrant Page 20 

beginning July 1, 2023 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its 
sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays; 1 Abstention) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the 
Board of Selectmen to enter in to a ten-year (10) lease with the Town of Cranberry Isles, for 
123 parking spaces in the Town Office Municipal parking lot, under terms and conditions the 
Board deems advisable.  A copy of the lease document shall be on file at the Town office 
and available for public inspection no less than seven (7) days prior to the Town Meeting 
and that copy shall be certified as accurate by the Town Clerk.  See Appendix D (pgs.54 - 
62) 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Board 
of Selectmen, to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the Neighborhood House Club, 
Inc. for management and maintenance of the municipal swimming pool, for a term of one (1) 
year beginning July 1, 2023 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in 
its sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town. 
 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays; 1 Abstention) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert (Town) will vote to sell 
a surplus emergency standby Kohler 80 kW Generator to the Mount Desert Island Regional 
School District (MDI High School) for a lump sum cost of $12,500 on an as is where is basis, 
said generator being the same generator that was leased by the MDI High School from the 
Town for $1.00 in September 2022, and is presently in place and in use at the MDI High 
School, with said lease scheduled to terminate on or before June 1, 2023, and further to 
authorize the Board of Selectmen or their designee to execute any and all contracts and 
documents and do any and all things necessary or convenient to accomplish the Sale. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall the voters of the Town of Mount Desert authorize the Selectboard 
to negotiate and complete the sale of the 2013 ambulance received by the Town by gift of 
the Northeast Harbor Ambulance Service (“NEHAS”) on or about April 26th, 2022 by 
returning it to NEHAS for $1 pursuant to the terms of the gift instrument by which NEHAS 
donated it to the Town? 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 



 
Warrant Page 21 

Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept Patterson Hill Road 
(exclusive of Clubhouse Way) serving the Patterson Hill Subdivision, as it is defined below 
and subject to the conditions set forth below. 

Section 1.  Patterson Hill Road (the “Road”) is a private road located in the Village of 
Somesville off State Route 102, approximately 1,800 feet in length, including a cul-
de-sac.  The owners of the Road have offered voluntarily to transfer their interests in 
the Road to the Town without claim for damages, pursuant to a deed that the said 
owners have filed with the municipal officers.  The Town shall accept the Road as a 
Public Road in conformance with the Town’s Public Road Acceptance Ordinance (the 
“Ordinance”) as last amended at the May 8, 2018, annual Town meeting, provided 
that all conditions of the Ordinance to be met for a private road to become a public 
road have been met to the satisfaction of the Board of Selectmen as determined at a 
meeting of said Board on or before April 30, 2024.  Said conditions include, but are 
not limited to, the following: 

First, the said owners shall deliver their deed to the Town, duly executed and in 
proper form for recording, conveying in fee simple, without condition, exception, 
or reservation, the full title to the land underlying the Road, being a strip of land 
50 feet in width or greater, as laid out in the said subdivision.  Notwithstanding the 
delivery of said deed, the deed shall not be deemed to have been accepted until 
and unless the Board of Selectmen has determined that all of the said conditions 
have been met, as provided above.  The cost of preparing, executing, and 
delivering said deed shall be paid by the said owners. 

Second, the said owners shall have provided to the Town Manager, on or before 
April 30, 2024, evidence of good title to the Road, as set forth in item “First” 
above, allowing use of the Road as a Public Road.  Such evidence shall be in the 
form of a commitment for title insurance insuring the Town of the said condition of 
the title to the Road and the underlying land, issued by a title insurer satisfactory 
to the Town Manager and at a satisfactory premium.  The cost of obtaining such 
commitment shall be paid by the said owners.  

Third, the Town Manager shall have been able to obtain a letter from an attorney 
satisfactory to the Town Manager, certifying that said commitment for title 
insurance is sufficient to protect the Town’s interests.  

Section 2.  The Board of Selectmen or its designee is authorized to execute and 
undertake all documents and actions necessary or convenient to facilitate the transfer 
of ownership of the Road to become a Public Road as set forth in this Article. 

Section 3.  The acceptance of the Road shall occur and be effective only when the 
Board of Selectmen has made the determination of satisfactory completion of all 
conditions, as set forth above.  Said determination may be made at any date on or 
before April 20, 2024.  See Appendix E (pg.63) 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 



 
Warrant Page 22 

 To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept the existing private 
sanitary sewer collection and conveyance system serving the Patterson Hill Subdivision, as 
the same is defined below and subject to the conditions and requirements set forth below. 

Section 1.  Patterson Hill Subdivision is served by an existing private sanitary sewer 
collection and conveyance system (the “Sewer System”) located in Patterson Hill 
Road, Clubhouse Way, and State Route 102, all in the Village of Somesville, 
including approximately 1,800 feet in length of private gravity sewer pipe, one private 
sanitary sewer duplex submersible pump station, and one private pressure pipe 
approximately 250 feet in length, and not including any building sewers.  The owners 
of the Sewer System have requested the Town to assume ownership and associated 
future maintenance and repair of the Sewer System.  The Town shall accept the 
Sewer System, making it a public Sewer System, in accordance with the Town’s 
Sewer Ordinance, last amended May 3, 2022, provided that said assumption of 
ownership shall be conditioned upon the said owners (a) conveying the Sewer 
System to the Town by satisfactory agreements or other documents and (b) 
furnishing, installing, and bearing all costs associated with the completion of the 
following requirements and improvements to the Sewer System with all work to be 
conducted at mutually agreed upon times between Town staff and Patterson Hill 
subdivision representatives: 

 
1. Ensure that the pump set-up is a duplex pump station with lead and lag pumps. 
2. Slide the two pumps in the pump station up the rails to the surface to provide 

Town staff the ability to inspect them and to gather information off the metal 
plates typically found on such pumps. 

3. Attempt to determine design flows, flow rates, and power needs of the pumps. 
4. Operate each pump independently from the other and also in high flow conditions 

when both pumps are operating. 
5. Inspect the concrete wet well for any structural damage such as cracks. 
6. Provide an easement from Patterson Hill Road along Clubhouse Way to and 

around the pump station to provide access for Town staff on foot and with 
vehicles ranging in size from small automobiles to large vacuum trucks (the size 
of a large concrete mixer truck) for inspections, maintenance, and upgrades. 

7. Identify the location of the pressure pipe located between the pump station and 
its discharge point in the gravity sewer in the street and, if at any point the 
pressure pipe varies from the previously described easement from Patterson Hill 
Road along Clubhouse Way to and around the pump station described above, 
the location of this variance in pressure pipe location is to be included in said 
easement. 

8. Replacement/repair of the existing fifteen sanitary manhole chimneys. 
9. Furnish and install a Zetron alarm at the pump station compatible with those in 

use at other pump stations throughout the Town.  
 

Section 2.  The Board of Selectmen or its designee is authorized to execute and 
undertake all documents and actions necessary or convenient to facilitate the 
transfers of ownership and operation set forth in this Article. 



 
Warrant Page 23 

 
Section 3.  The acceptance of the Sewer System shall occur and be effective only 
when all conditions and requirements, as set forth above, have been met to the 
satisfaction of the Board of Selectmen as determined at a meeting of said Board on 
or before April 30, 2025.   See Appendix E (pg.63) 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 
 

Fiscal Policy 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will amend the policy 
adopted March 1986 and amended May 4, 2010 and May 3, 2016 and entitled Town of 
Mount Desert Investment Policy as described and deleted through strikethrough markings.  
See Appendix F (pgs.64 - 66) 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to establish a 
new Debt Service Operating Reserve Account. The Selectboard shall be authorized to use 
funds appropriated to the Debt Service Operating Reserve Account to meet the goals of 
minimizing year to year fluctuations in debt service expense and utilizing pro-rata allocation 
of net interest/dividends within the Town’s reserve investment portfolio to subsidize future 
debt service payments. Said reserve may not be used for debt service attributable to 
enterprise fund(s). 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer the 
balance held in the Police Training Cost Reserve account 4040100-24405 to the Police 
Capital Improvement Reserve account 4040100-24405.  
 
Explanatory Note: Police training went to a fully integrated system with BHPD in 2020. 
The balance of the Police Training Cost Reserve as of January 30, 2023 is $66,793.51. 
The actual transfer amount will differ based on subsequent pro-rata allocation of 
portfolio performance. 
 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer the 
balance held in the Assessor Capital Improvement Reserve account 4020500-24206 to the 



 
Warrant Page 24 

Assessor Revaluation Reserve account 4020600-24207.  
 
Explanatory Note: The Vision Server was the only asset assigned to the Assessment 
Capital Improvement Reserve, which is no longer needed due to cloud hosted 
service. The balance of the Assessment Capital Improvement Reserve as of January 
30, 2023 is $8,543.63. The actual transfer amount will differ based on subsequent pro-
rata allocation of portfolio performance.  
 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation 
bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $50,000.00 to pay for 
professional technical services including, but not necessarily limited to, topographical survey, 
design, permitting, and, bidding services for  improvements to portions of the Town's sidewalks 
and curbing, with all sidewalk locations totaling approximately 4,160 feet and collectively 
referred to as (the “Project”); and further to authorize the Selectboard or its designee to execute 
any and all contracts and documents and do any and all things necessary or convenient to 
issue the bond or note of the Town, which may be callable, and to accomplish the Project.  Said 
improvements shall include the following segments:  See Appendix G (pgs.67 - 69) for maps 
showing the proposed Project area. 

• in the Village of Somesville on the easterly side of State Route 102/Main Street across 
from the funeral home between the Masonic Hall and the Somesville Union Meeting 
House, a distance of approximately 800 feet and, 

• in the Village of Northeast Harbor on the southerly side of Neighborhood Road from its 
intersection with Manchester Road to its intersection with Maple Lane, a distance of 
approximately 1,650 feet and; 

• in the Village of Northeast Harbor on the southerly side of Sea Street beginning at the 
westerly end of the sidewalk in front of the Town office and extending easterly down the 
hill to, and ending at, Harbor Drive, a distance of approximately 350 feet and; 

• in the Village of Seal Harbor on the westerly side of State Route 3/Main Street, 
beginning approximately 20 feet southerly of the entrance to the Seal Harbor 
wastewater treatment plant continuing southerly a distance of 85 feet across and in 
front of the Acadia Outdoor Center to a point approximately 20 feet northerly of the 
existing sidewalk in front of the Naturalists Notebook for a total length of improvements 
of 85 feet and; 

• in the Village of Seal Harbor on the southerly side (the ocean side) of State Route 
3/Peabody Drive, beginning at the paved access point to the Seal Harbor beach from 
State Route 3/Peabody Drive located across from the Town’s public parking lot, then 
extending easterly along State Route 3/Peabody Drive a distance of approximately 450 
feet then turning southerly onto Steamboat Wharf Road and continuing southerly a 
distance of approximately 885 feet, for a total distance of 1,275 feet ending at or near 
the northerly end of the existing wooden boardwalk located across from the Somesville 
Library. 
 



 
Warrant Page 25 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/2/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 50,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 17,825,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $ 50,000.00 
Interest $ 26,462.33 
Total Debt Service $ 76,462.33 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds 
or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $210,000.00 to pay for professional 
technical, and construction services including, but not necessarily limited to, site survey, design, 
bidding, and construction services for renovations of the two (2) existing Town owned tennis 
and pickleball courts (the Courts) with said renovation to provide two fully functional tennis and 
pickleball courts; and further to authorize the Selectboard or its designee to execute any and all 
contracts and documents and do any and all things necessary or convenient to issue the bond 
or note of the Town, which may be callable, and to accomplish the renovation Project.  See 
Appendix H (pg.70) for a map showing the proposed Project area. 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/2/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 210,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 17,985,385.11 

 
 



 
Warrant Page 26 

2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $ 210,000.00 
Interest $ 111,141.78 
Total Debt Service $ 321,141.78 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds 
or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $780,000 to pay for professional, 
technical, and construction services including, but not necessarily limited to, topographical 
survey, design, permitting, bidding services, and construction for improvements to three (3) 
existing Town-owned parking lots (Project), and further to authorize the Board of Selectmen or 
its designee to execute any and all contracts and documents and do any and all things 
necessary or convenient to accomplish the Project. Two of the three parking lots are identified 
as (1) the paved Town of Cranberry Isles Leased Lot southerly of the Town office building and 
(2) the paved Town Office Lower Level Parking Lot adjacent to the police and fire departments, 
as to which two said parking lots said improvements shall include, but not necessarily be limited 
to, reclaiming existing paved surfaces, replacing the existing traffic control islands with new 
ones, installing new LED dark-sky compliant lighting, and constructing surface water drainage 
improvements. The third said parking lot is identified as (3) the gravel parking lot located in the 
Village of Seal Harbor accessed off Route 3/Main Street northerly of the access driveway to the 
Seal Harbor wastewater treatment plant, as to which third said parking lot said improvements 
shall include removing existing soil material from the entire footprint of the lot and replacing it 
with new soil material used in roadway and parking lot construction, drainage improvements, 
and lighting. In all three of said parking lots, said improvements shall include the construction of 
new base and surface layers of bituminous concrete (pavement) and other associated work 
typically recognized by the industry to complete the intent of the Project; and further to authorize 
the Selectboard or its designee to execute any and all contracts and documents and do any 
and all things necessary or convenient to issue the bond or note of the Town, which may be 
callable, and to accomplish the Project.  See Appendix I (pgs.71 - 72) for maps showing the 
proposed Project areas. 
 
 



 
Warrant Page 27 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/2/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 780,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 18,555,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $ 780,000.00 
Interest $ 412,812.33 
Total Debt Service $ 1,192,812.33 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds 
or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $900,000.00 to pay for professional, 
technical, and construction services including, but not necessarily limited to, topographical 
survey, design, permitting, bidding services, and construction of the relocation of a portion of 
the Town’s existing sanitary sewer infrastructure consisting of approximately 400-feet of 
sanitary sewer pipe, manholes, and associated appurtenances to complete the relocation work 
(Project) in general conformance with industry standards for such work, and further to authorize 
the Selectboard or its designee to execute any and all contracts and documents and do any 
and all things necessary or convenient to issue the bond or note of the Town, which may be 
callable, and to accomplish the Project. Said work is located in the Village of Somesville within 
the Maine Department of Transportation’s (MDOT) right-of-way of State Route 3/198, and said 
relocation shall be in accordance with the MDOT requirement to do so, at the Town’s expense, 
all in conformance with Section 13 of the MDOT Utility Accommodation Rules (17-229 CMR 
Chapter 210) (Rules) covering Bridges and Other Highway Structures, with said Rules stating 
that if there is a conflict between the location of infrastructure the Town was previously 
authorized by the MDOT to construct, and did construct and the anticipated construction of new 
infrastructure by the MDOT in the Village of Somesville, specifically replacing the existing bridge 
located in State Route 3/198 that conveys various modes of traffic across Kitteredge Brook 
including vehicular, cycling, and foot traffic, with a new bridge in the same general location of 
the existing bridge, then the previously authorized infrastructure must be relocated at the 
Town’s expense. Said bridge replacement construction activities are tentatively scheduled to 



 
Warrant Page 28 

begin in 2023-2024, but if said bridge replacement construction activities are delayed, then the 
Project described in this Article shall also be delayed. See Appendix J (pg.73) for a map 
showing the proposed Project areas. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/3/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 900,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 18,675,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $ 900,000.00 
Interest $ 476,321.92 
Total Debt Service $ 1,376,321.92 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds 
or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $360,000.00 to finance construction 
contract administration, inspection, and construction services associated with drainage 
improvements to the Beech Hill Cross Road (the Road) in the general area where Denning’s 
Brook crosses under Beech Hill Cross Road, said improvements to be in conformance with the 
Maine Department of Environmental  Protection StreamSmart program requirements and with 
said repairs to include, but not necessarily be limited to, replacing two corroded metal pipes with 
a concrete box culvert; placing stone riprap for stabilization and erosion control on the 
embankments along both sides of the Road; erecting guardrails along the top of the 
embankments along both sides of the Road and, placing earthen fill, loam and seed in the area 
and other amenities and appurtenances required to complete the improvements; and further to 
authorize the Selectboard or its designee to execute any and all contracts and documents and 
do any and all things necessary or convenient to issue the bond or note of the Town, which 
may be callable, and to accomplish the Project.  See Appendix K (pg.74) for a map showing 



 
Warrant Page 29 

the proposed Project areas. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/3/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 360,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 18,135,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $ 360,000.00 
Interest $ 190,528.77 
Total Debt Service $ 550,528.77 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 1 Nays) 
 

 Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds 
or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $250,000.00 to finance construction 
related services, including but not necessarily limited to, construction contract administration, 
inspection, and construction services associated with improvements and repairs to 
approximately 200-lineal feet of erosion of the Seal Harbor beach shoreline eroded by a strong 
storm surge in 2020, said damaged area located in the northeasterly portion of the waters of 
Seal Harbor per se, and located in general, down over the embankment westerly of the 
Steamboat Wharf Road with said improvements and repairs to include, but not necessarily be 
limited to, placing geotextile, anchor boulders, stone riprap, earthen fill, loam and seed and 
other amenities and appurtenances required to complete the improvements and repairs; and 
further to authorize the Selectboard or its designee to execute any and all contracts and 
documents and do any and all things necessary or convenient to issue the bond or note of the 
Town, which may be callable, and to accomplish the Project. See Appendix L (pg.75) for a 
map showing the proposed Project areas. 
 
 
 



 
Warrant Page 30 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid as of 5/3/23, unaudited: $ 17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued (estimated):     $ 0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 250,000.00 
D. (estimate) TOTAL $ 18,025,385.11 

 
2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $ 250,000.00 
Interest $ 132,311.64 
Total Debt Service $ 382,311.64 

 
3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates or unaudited 
figures. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

 
Selectboard recommends (passage) 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 

(If Articles 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, and 44 are Approved in Total) 
 

1. Total Town Indebtedness 
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $17,775,385.11 
B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $0.00 
C. Bonds to be issued under Town Meeting $2,550,000.00 
D. Articles 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, and 44  TOTAL $20,325,385.11 
 

2. Costs 
At an estimated interest rate of 5% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 

Principal $2,550,000.00 
Interest  $1,349,578.77 
Total Debt Service $3,899,578.77 

 
 



 
Warrant Page 31 

3. Validity 
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates.  If the actual 
amount of the total debt service for the bond issue (or Amortization) varies from the 
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond 
issue is not affected by reason of the variance. 
 

____________________________________ 
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Selectboard to accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional state, federal and 
other funds (including gifts and grants, as well as funds received under the American 
Rescue Plan Act and similar legislation) received during the fiscal year 2023-2024 for Town 
purposes, provided that such additional funds do not require expenditure of local funds not 
previously appropriated. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to approve   
July 1, each year, as the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable providing that all 
unpaid taxes on September 1, of each year, shall be charged interest at an annual rate of 
8% (percent) per year.  (Tax Club members are exempt within the terms and conditions of 
the Town’s Tax Club Agreement.) 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Tax Collector to enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers whereby: (1) 
the taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town based on the taxpayer’s 
estimated and actual tax obligation for current year property taxes (real estate and/or 
personal); (2) the Town agrees to waive interest on timely payments; (3) the Town 
authorizes the Tax Collector to accept payment of taxes prior to commitment of taxes; (4) the 
agreement automatically terminates if two consecutive payments are missed and the 
taxpayer thereupon becomes subject to the same due date and interest rate as other, 
nonparticipating taxpayers; (5) only taxpayers who are paid in full on their property tax 
obligations may participate; and (6) interested taxpayers shall apply annually for participation 
by the date shown on the application, date and application format to be determined by the 
Tax Collector. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to accept pre-



 
Warrant Page 32 

payment of property taxes not yet committed, not to exceed the estimated amount to be 
committed in the subsequent year, with no interest to be paid on same. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to set the 
interest rate to be paid by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid at the rate of 4% 
(percent) per year. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
expenditures to pay any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of Assessment 
Review, or Selectboard together with any interest due thereon from the Town, during the 
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023, in an aggregate amount not to exceed the property tax 
commitment overlay. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Selectboard to dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other than real property, 
with a value of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) or less under such terms and conditions 
as it deems advisable. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Selectboard to sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and to convey titles 
obtained under tax deeds and under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabitants of the Town 
any land and/or buildings, including trailers, in lieu of payment of taxes except that the 
Selectmen have the power to authorize redemption.  Municipal Officers shall use the special 
sale process required by 36 M.R.S. § 943-C for qualifying homestead property if they choose 
to sell it to anyone other than the former owner(s).  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Selectboard to contract for services, in amounts not to exceed appropriation for same, 



 
Warrant Page 33 

under such terms and conditions as it deems advisable. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 
 

Municipal Revenue 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer 
Seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($750,000.00) from the Undesignated Fund 
Balance Account #100-38300 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 tax commitment. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize 
the Selectboard to transfer up to two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) from the 
Capital Gains Reserve Account #400-24202 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 tax commitment. The 
exact amount, as limited by the aforementioned maximum value, shall be determined by the 
Selectboard’s timely assessment of current and expected market conditions.  
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and/or appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, Service Fees and 
miscellaneous sources for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 

 
Selectboard recommends  $1,965,157.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 
 

Municipal Appropriations 
 

Explanatory note: articles 57, 58, and 59 amend previously approved appropriations. 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 
overdraft that occurred in Public Works for the year ended June 30,2022, in the amount of 
$42,183.37. Said overage was primarily caused by expenditures in Department 515, Waste 
Management exceeding budgeted expectations by $48,215.62 and Department 520, 
Buildings & Grounds exceeding budgeted expectations by $18,125.51. The overdraft was 
charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance. Total appropriations for departments 501, 515, 
520, 525, and 530 Highways, Waste Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & 
Cemeteries, and Environmental Sustainability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 were 
$2,729,726 and total expenditures recognized in said fiscal year amount to $2,771,909.37. 
 



 
Warrant Page 34 

Explanatory Note:  Waste Management negative budget variance The Waste 
Management division of Public Works exceeded its budget of $594,675 by $48,215.62. This 
amount is the result of some budget lines being overspent and some being underspent. The 
primary items that resulted in the overdraft included: 

• the increase in volume of trash, bulky waste, metals, construction demolition debris, 
waste wood, green wood, etc. that was delivered to the EMR transfer station in 
Southwest Harbor where the total costs exceeded the budgeted amount of $230,000 
by $28,987 for a total cost of $258,987 and, 

• the resultant increase in volume of trash being delivered to the PERC facility when it 
was operational or to the Juniper Ridge Landfill in Old Town when PERC was 
closed due to unforeseen maintenance, tipping floor fires, inability to handle the 
volume of trash being delivered to them, where the total costs exceeded the 
budgeted amount of $132,500 by $20,789.58 for a total cost of $153,289.58 with 
both sites being used due to the waste processing facility in Hampden having been 
closed since May 2020 due to poor management and lack of funds to make 
improvements and,   

• reopening our recycling center on January 1, 2022, without having budgeted funds 
for doing so resulting in the expenditure of $16,349.41 unbudgeted funds. 

 
Explanatory Note:  Buildings & Grounds negative budget variance: The Buildings & 
Grounds division of Public Works exceeded its budget of $230,026 by $18,125.51. This 
amount is the result of some budget lines being overspent and some being underspent. The 
primary items that resulted in the overdraft included: 

• General maintenance and repairs and building maintenance and repairs exceeded 
budgeted expectations by $15,121.77, primarily due to sound dampening work that 
was done at the Visitors Center  

• accounting for various insurance, retirement, and payroll related costs exceeding 
their budgeted amounts by $6,279.95.  

 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 
overdraft that occurred in Debt Service for the year ended June 30, 2022, in the amount of 
$2,381.09. The overdraft was charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance. Said overdraft 
was caused by actual interest on certain debt service payments exceeding budgeted 
expectations. Total appropriations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 for department 
801 “Debt Service” were $1,863,050 and total expenditures recognized in said fiscal year 
amount to $1,865,431.09. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to amend 
appropriations for department 801 Debt Service within the general operating fund for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 from $1,736,705 to $1,746,000. The difference in original 
and revised appropriations will be charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance, subject to 
actual variance(s) in audited activity. Such amendment in appropriations is necessitated 



 
Warrant Page 35 

primarily by the difference in interest expense budgeted for and actually incurred for Bond 
Series 2018 Road Projects. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 200 through 221 General Government – Governing 
Body (Selectboard), Municipal Management, Town Clerk, Registrar, Elections, Planning 
Board, Finance, Treasurer, Tax Collector, Assessment, Code Enforcement, Unallocated 
Funds, Human Resources, Technology, and Contracted Municipal and Community Oriented 
Services for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 
 

Gov. Body (Bd of Selectmen):  $36,770.00 Registrar: $2,500.00 
Town Clerk: $139,940.00 Planning Board: $52,263.00 
Elections: $14,500.00 Treasurer: $94,179.00 
Finance: $201,152.00 Assessment: $143,212.00 
Tax Collector: $19,520.00 Unallocated: $113,000.00 
Code Enforcement: $212,484.00 Technology: $220,887.00 
Human Resources: $55,400.00 CMCOS:  $143,000.00 
Town Management: $432,064.00  
  

 
Selectboard recommends  $1,880,871.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the 2023 – 2024 
Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $5,000.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2023 – 2024 
Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends $222,066.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 406 Street Lights for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 
 
 
Selectboard recommends $11,250.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 



 
Warrant Page 36 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 401, 405, 407, and 408 Public Safety – Police, 
Shellfish, Animal Control, and Communications (Dispatch) for the 2023 – 2024 Town 
Budget. 
 

Police: $1,166,478.00     Animal Control: $4,980.00   
Shellfish: $3,403.00     Communications: $456,295.00   

 
 
Selectboard recommends  $1,631,156.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 403,404, and 409 Public Safety – Fire Department, 
Hydrants, and Emergency Management for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 
 

Fire: $2,267,334.00   Hydrants: $273,500.00   Emergency Management: $1,000.00 
 
Selectboard recommends  $2,541,834.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays; 1 Abstention) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 501, 515, 520 and 525 Public Works - Roads, Waste 
Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530 Environmental 
Sustainability for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.   
 

Roads: $2,004,068.00 Buildings/Grounds: $278,510.00 
Parks/Cemeteries: $60,202.00 Waste Management: $743,619.00 

Environmental Sustainability:  $35,750.00 
 
Selectboard recommends  $3,122,149.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 505 and 506 Sewers (Wastewater Treatment) for the 
2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 
 

Sewer Capital:  $ 0.00 Sewer Operation:  $745,157.00  
 

Wastewater Treatment 
Northeast Harbor Plant: $197,850.00 Somesville Plant:  $79,000.00 
Seal Harbor Plant: $152,258.00 Otter Creek Pmp Station: $35,500.00 

 
Selectboard recommends  $1,209,765.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 



 
Warrant Page 37 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool ~Utilities & Maintenance) 
for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $5,900.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for the 2023 – 
2024 Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $10,000.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 801 Debt Service for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.  
 
Board of Selectmen recommends  $2,203,989.00 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 851 Third Party Request Agencies for the 2023 – 2024 
Town Budget:  Village Organizations, Recreation, and Public/Social Service Agencies, and 
Historical/Museums. 
 

Village Organizations: $62,500.00 Public/Social Service Agencies: $103,437.00 
Recreation: $00.00 Historical/Museums: $14,500.00 
 

Selectboard recommends  $180,437.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $202,437.00  (12 Ayes; 2 Nays; 1 Abstention) 
 

 To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to 
raise and appropriate for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 2023 – 
2024 Town Budget. 
 
Selectboard recommends  $1,084,314.00 
Warrant Committee recommends  $1,084,314.00  (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 
 
Written Ballot required for Article 73 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to increase 
the property tax levy limit by $565,775.00.  See Property Tax Levy Limit Worksheet (pg. 
77). 
 



 
Warrant Page 38 

 
Explanation: The State Legislature passed a “tax reform” law known as LD#1. This bill 
created a maximum municipal tax levy based upon this year’s tax, plus an allowance for 
inflation and the Town’s tax base growth due to new construction.  However, LD#1 allows 
Mount Desert voters to increase that tax cap with the approval of a simple majority of the 
voters at Town Meeting.  The only requirement is that a secret vote must be taken by written 
ballot. 
 
Selectboard recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (14 Ayes; 1 Nays) 
 
 

Marina Proprietary Fund 

 To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the 
Selectboard’s approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget. 
 

Revenue: $852,080.00  Expense: $852,080.00 
 
Selectboard recommends ratification 
Warrant Committee makes no recommendation (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 
 

Elementary School Appropriations 
 

Note: Articles 75 through 85 authorize expenditures in cost center  
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Regular 
Instruction for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  

 Note:  2022-23 Amount was $1,985,147 
 
School Board recommends  $2,071,937.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $2,071,937.00  (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Special 
Education for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  

Note:  2022-23 Amount was $784,733 
 
School Board recommends  $781,789.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $781,789.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Career 
and Technical Education for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 
2024. 

Note:  2022-23 Amount was $  -0- 
 
School Board recommends  $0.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $0.00  (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 



 
Warrant Page 39 

 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Other 
Instruction for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  

Note:  2022-23 Amount was $ 95,944 
 
School Board recommends  $112,456.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $112,456.00  (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Student 
& Staff Support for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  

Note:  2022-23 Amount was $ 544,651 
 
School Board recommends  $584,382.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $584,382.00  (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for System 
Administration for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  

Note:  2022-23 Amount was $ 119,673 
 
School Board recommends  $116,280.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $116,280.00  (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for School 
Administration for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  

Note:  2022-23 Amount was $270,096 
 
School Board recommends  $321,378.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $321,378.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for 
Transportation & Buses for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  

Note:  2022-23 Amount was $180,820 
 
School Board recommends  $208,791.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $208,791.00  (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for 
Facilities Maintenance for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  

Note:  2022-23 Amount was $595,868 
 

 
School Board recommends  $932,971.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $932,971.00  (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 



 
Warrant Page 40 

 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Debt 
Service and Other Commitments for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 
30, 2024.  

Note:  2022-23 Amount was $285,154 
 
School Board recommends  $0.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $0.00  (14 Ayes; 0 Nays; 1 Abstention) 
 

 To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for All 
Other Expenditures for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.  

Note:  2022-23 Amount was $ 75,000 
 
School Board recommends  $75,000.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $75,000.00  (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

Note:  Articles 75 – 85 authorize a total budget of $5,204,984.00 
 
Note:  2022-23 Amount was $4,937,086 
 
 

Note:  Articles 86 – 88 raise funds for the Proposed School Budget 
 
 
 
Hand Count Vote Required for Article 86 

 To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will appropriate for  
the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the 
Essential Programs and Services Funding Act (Recommend $2,090,710.00) and to see 
what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will raise as the Town’s contribution to the 
total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the 
Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in accordance with the Maine Revised 
Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15688 for the period July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024. 
 
School Board recommends  $1,791,684.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $1,791,684.00  (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

Explanation:  The Town of Mount Desert’s contribution to the total cost of funding 
public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential 
Programs and Services Funding Act is the amount of money determined by state law 
to be the minimum amount that a municipality must raise in order to receive the full 
amount of state dollars. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
Warrant Page 41 

Hand Count Vote Required for Article 87 

 To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will raise and 
appropriate for the annual payments on debt service previously approved by the legislative 
body for non-state-funded school construction projects, non-state funded portions of school 
construction projects and minor capital projects in addition to the funds appropriated as the 
local share of the Town of Mount Desert’s contribution to the total cost of funding public 
education from kindergarten to grade 12 for the period July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 
2024. 
 
School Board recommends  $0.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $0.00  (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

Explanation:  Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the 
annual payments on the Town of Mount Desert’s long-term debt for major capital 
school construction projects and minor capital renovation projects that are not 
approved for state subsidy.  The bonding of this long-term debt was approved by the 
voters on November 6, 2001. 

 
 
 

Written Ballot Vote Required for Article 88  

 To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will raise and 
appropriate in additional local funds for school purposes (Recommend: $2,587,458.00) for 
the period July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024, which exceeds the State’s Essential 
Programs and Services allocation model by (Recommend: $2,587,458.00) as required to 
fund the budget recommended by the school Board. 
 
The School Board recommends $2,587,458.00 for additional local funds and gives the 
following reasons for exceeding the State’s Essential Programs and Services funding 
model by $2,587,458.00:  The State funding model underestimates the actual costs to fully 
fund the 2023-2024 budget. 

 
The Warrant Committee recommends $2,587,458.00 for additional local funds and gives the 
following reasons for exceeding the State’s Essential Programs and Services funding model 
by $2,587,458.00:  The State funding model underestimates the actual costs to fully fund 
the 2023 – 2024 budget.  (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

Explanation:  The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and 
above the Town of Mount Desert’s local contribution to the total cost of funding public 
education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and 
Services Funding Act and local amounts raised for the annual payment on non-state 
funded debt service that will help achieve the Town of Mount Desert’s budget for 
educational programs. 

 
Note:  Articles 86, 87, & 88 raise a total town appropriation of $4,379,142.00 
 

Note: 2022-23 Total Town Appropriation was $ 4,113,610 
 



 
Warrant Page 42 

 
Note:  Article 89 summarizes the proposed school budget and does not authorize any 
additional expenditures  
 
Hand Count Vote Required for Article 89 

 To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the 
School Board to expend for the fiscal year beginning July 1,2023 and ending June 30, 2024 
from the Town’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to 
grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act,  non-state-
funded school construction projects, additional local funds for school purposes under the 
Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690,  unexpended balances, tuition receipts, 
state subsidy and other receipts for the support of schools.   

 
Note:  2022-23 Total Budget was $4,937,086 

 
School Board recommends  $5,204,984.00 
Warrant Committee recommends $5,204,984.00  (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 

 In addition to the amount in Articles 75 – 89, shall the School Board be 
authorized to expend such other sums as may be received from state or federal grants or 
programs or other sources during the fiscal year 2023-2024 for school purposes provided 
that such grants, programs or other sources do not require the expenditure of other funds 
not previously appropriated? 
 
  Current Year Totals: $203,079.00 
 
School Board recommends passage 
Warrant Committee recommends passage (16 Ayes; 0 Nays) 
 
 
 

(End of Warrant Articles) 



 
 

Warrant Page 43 
 

Appendices 
An underline indicates an addition and a strikethrough indicates a deletion. 

 
APPENDIX A (Article XX; pg. XX ) Public Water Supply Protection Ordinance 

 
TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 

PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY PROTECTION ORDINANCE  
 

This ordinance, as enacted at the May 2, 2023 Annual Town Meeting, repeals the No Swimming 
Ordinance ratified May 5, 2009  

 
AND the 

Ordinance Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds ratified May 5, 2009 
 

Enacted May 2, 2023 
 

Section 1.  Title. This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “Public Water Supply 
Protection Ordinance”  
 
Section 2. Authority.  This Ordinance, is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 
30-A, Part 2, Subpart 4, Chapter 141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, et seq.), specifically 30-A 
M.R.S.A. § 3009 (1)(E); and Title 22, Subtitle 2, Part 5, Chapter 601, Subchapter 4, Article 141, 
§ 2642 (22 M.R.S.A. § 2642) and 30-A M.R.S.A. §4452. 
 
Section 3. Purpose. The purpose of this ordinance is to protect the water quality of Jordan, 
Upper and Lower Hadlock Ponds, the Mount Desert drinking water supply and its sources, as 
well as the health, safety, and welfare of persons dependent upon such supplies. The provisions 
of this ordinance pertaining to surface water use and water-related activities include any activity 
in, on, or from the surface water or the frozen water of Jordan, Upper and Lower Hadlock Ponds 
and their sources. 
 
Section 4. Applicability. The Ordinance shall apply to: Jordan Pond in Seal Harbor and Upper 
Hadlock Pond and Lower Hadlock Pond in Northeast Harbor (together, the “Ponds”).  This 
Ordinance supersedes and replaces the “No Swimming Ordinance re Upper Hadlock Pond, 
Lower Hadlock Pond and Jordan Pond” as well as the “Ordinance Limiting Motor Vehicle 
Access to Great Ponds.” 
 
Section 5. Protection of Water Supply Generally 

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to pollute, threaten, jeopardize, or render impure, 
turbid or offensive the waters of the Ponds or their sources.  
B. The owner or operator of a motorized vehicle, boat or ice shack that sinks beneath 
the water or ice of one of the Ponds, or any of their sources, must contact the Mount 
Desert Water District or Police Department as soon as safety permits. 
 

Section 6. Motor Vehicles Prohibited From Icebound Surface of Ponds. No person shall operate 
a motor vehicle on the icebound surface of the Ponds and no person shall allow a motor vehicle 
owned by him or her or under his or her control to enter upon the icebound surface of the 
Ponds. 
 
 



 
 

Warrant Page 44 
 
 

Section 7. Definition of Motor Vehicle. For purposes of this Ordinance, the term "motor vehicle" 
shall be as defined in M.R.S.A 29-A § 101(42), as may be amended from time to time. For 
convenience, § 101(42) as of the date of adoption of this Ordinance is reproduced below. 
“’Motor vehicle.’ ’Motor vehicle’ means a self-propelled vehicle not operated exclusively on 
tracks but does not include; A. A snowmobile as defined in Title 12, section 13001; B. An all-
terrain vehicle as defined in Title 12, section 13001, unless the all-terrain vehicle is permitted in 
accordance with section 501, subsection 8 or is operated on a way and section 2080 applies; 
and C. A motorized wheelchair or an electric personal assistive mobility device.” 
 
Section 8. Water Withdrawal. Water withdrawal from the Ponds and is not allowed. No pumping 
or siphoning of water out of our drinking water sources by parties other than the Mount Desert 
Water District or the Town of Mount Desert is allowed unless for fire department use. 
 
Section 9. Boats. Traditional row boats with or without motors less than 10hp, kayaks and 
canoes are allowed uses onthe Ponds. Evolving watercraft including but not limited to sailboats, 
sailboarding, and paddle boards, as well as boats with motors in excess of 10 hp, are not 
permitted. 
 
Section 10. Ice Shacks and On-ice Activities.  
 

A. Ice shacks and other similar structures providing temporary protection on the Ponds 
are allowed.   
 

B. Disposal or abandonment of bottles, cans, ash, trash, human waste, pet waste, 
building materials or equipment on the ice or in the water of the Ponds is prohibited. 
Anything brought on the ice must be packed out. 

 
C. Ice Shack placement and removal on the Ponds must follow all state laws. However, 

the Mount Desert Water District has the right to require ice shacks to be removed 
from the ice during ice-fishing season when local weather conditions create 
thinning/poor quality ice potentially causing its source water to be at risk.  If the 
owner or occupant of the shack will not remove the shack voluntarily, the Mount 
Desert Water District and/or the Town may do so, with any associated costs payable 
by the person or persons who constructed or occupied the shack. 

 
D. The Mount Desert Water District or other appropriate municipal staff may inspect 

temporary structures and their surrounding environments at any time for 
conformance with this Ordinance. 

 
Section 11. No Swimming. It shall be unlawful:  
 

A. For any person or persons to swim or wade in the waters of the Ponds. 
 
B. For the owner or person in control of any domestic animal to allow such domestic 

animal to enter waters of the Ponds. 
 

C. To leave any domestic animal waste within the watershed(s) of the Ponds. 
 
Section 12. Penalty and Costs.   
Any person or entity violating the provisions of this ordinance shall be liable to a civil penalty in 
accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. §4452 as summarized below:  



 
 

Warrant Page 45 
 
 

 
A) Monetary penalties may be assessed on a per-day basis.  

1. The minimum penalty for a specific violation is $100;  
2. The maximum penalty outside a resource protection zone is $2,500;   
3. The maximum penalty is $5,000 for any violation within a resource protection zone;  
4. The maximum penalty is increased to $25,000 when it is shown that there has been a 

previous conviction of the same party within the past 2 years for a similar violation.  
5. The maximum penalty may be increased if the economic benefit resulting from the 

violation exceeds the applicable penalties  
 

B) In addition to penalties, legal fees may also be awarded as provided by court rule. Any 
person violating this Ordinance shall also be liable to any other appropriate party for any 
costs incurred as a result of the violation, including but not limited to costs associated 
with the salvage of the motor vehicle, ATV, snowmobile, boat, ice-shack or any other 
foreign object from the pond. 
 

C) The violator may be ordered to correct, abate or mitigate the violations.  
 

D) In setting a penalty, the following shall be considered:  
1. Prior violations by the same party;  
2. The degree of environmental damage that cannot be abated or corrected;  
3. The extent to which the violation continued following an order to stop. 
 

This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 30- A, Part 2, Subpart 
4, Chapter 141 (30-A M.R.S.A. § 3001, et seq.), and Title 22, Subtitle 2, Part 5, Chapter 601, 
Subchapter 4, Article 141, § 2642 (22 M.R.S.A. § 2642). 
 
The original ordinances “No Swimming Ordinance re Upper Hadlock Pond, Lower Hadlock Pond 
and Jordan Pond” as well as “Ordinance Limiting Motor Vehicle Access to Great Ponds” were, 
pursuant to 22 M.R.S.A. § 2642, originally adopted by the Board of Selectmen for the Town of 
Mount Desert on May 23, 1977, and then was ratified by the voters of the Town at a Town 
Meeting held on May 5, 2009. They are hereby superseded and replaced. 
 
This Ordinance shall be enforced by the Police Department of the Town of Mount Desert. If any 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be 
unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this Ordinance.  
 
The effective date of this Ordinance is May 2, 2023. 
  



 
 

Warrant Page 46 
 
 

Appendix B (Article XX; pg. XX ) Non-conforming structures (roof height) 
 
SECTION 4 NON-CONFORMITIES  
. 
. 
.  
4.3 Non-conforming Structures 
 

1. Expansions Outside the Shoreland Zone.  A structure located outside the shoreland 
zone which is nonconforming with respect to a dimensional requirement may be 
enlarged or extended in any other direction upon issuance of a building permit, provided 
that such activities otherwise comply with all provisions of this Ordinance.    

2. Expansions In the Shoreland Zone. All new structures in the shoreland zone must 
meet the applicable shoreline setback requirements contained in Sections 3 (Land Use 
Districts) and 6 (Standards for Uses, Permits and Approval). A non-conforming structure 
in the shoreland zone may be added to or expanded after obtaining a permit from the 
same permitting authority as that for a new structure if such addition or expansion does 
not increase the non-conformity of the structure and is in accordance with the 
subsections of Section 4.3.2. 

(a) Expansion of an accessory structure that is located closer to the normal high-water 
line of a water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland than the principal 
structure is prohibited, even if the expansion will not increase nonconformity with the 
water body, tributary stream, or wetland setback requirement.  

(b) Expansion of any portion of a structure within 25 feet of the normal high-water line of 
a water body, tributary stream or upland edge of a wetland is prohibited, even if the 
expansion will not increase nonconformity with the water body, tributary stream, or 
wetland setback requirement.  

(c) Notwithstanding Section 4.3.2(b), if a nonconforming principal structure is entirely 
located less than 25 feet from the normal high-water line of a water body, tributary 
stream, or upland edge of a wetland, that structure may be expanded as follows, as 
long as all other applicable standards of this Ordinance are met, and the expansion 
is not prohibited by Section 4.3.2 above.  

(i) The maximum total footprint for the principal structure may not be expanded to 
an area greater than 800 square feet or 30% larger than the footprint that existed 
on January 1, 1989, whichever is greater.   

(ii) The maximum height of the principal structure may not be made greater than 15 
feet or the height of the existing structure, whichever is greater.  

(d) All other nonconforming principal and accessory structures that do not meet the 
water body, tributary stream, or wetland setback requirements may be expanded or 
altered as follows, as long as other applicable standards of this Ordinance are met 
and the expansion is not prohibited by Section 4.3.2 and subsections (a), (b) or (c) 
above.   

(i) For structures located less than 75 feet from the normal high-water line of a 
water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland, the maximum 



 
 

Warrant Page 47 
 
 

combined total footprint for all structures may not be expanded to an area greater 
than 1,000 square feet or 30% larger than the footprint that existed on January 1, 
1989, whichever is greater.   

(ii) For structures located less than 75 feet from the normal high-water line of a 
water body, tributary stream or upland edge of a wetland, the maximum height of 
any structure may not be made greater than 20 feet or the height of the existing 
structure, whichever is greater.   

(iii) For structures located less than 100 feet from the normal high-water line of a 
great pond, the maximum combined total footprint for all structures may not be 
expanded to an area greater than 1,500 square feet or 30% larger than the 
footprint that existed on January 1, 1989, whichever is greater.   

(iv) For structures located less than 100 feet from the normal high-water line of a 
great pond, the maximum height of any structure may not be made greater than 
25 feet or the height of the existing structure, whichever is greater.   

(v) For structures located less than 100 feet from the normal high-water line of a 
great pond, any portion of those structures located less than 75 feet from the 
normal high-water line of a water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a 
wetland must meet the footprint and height requirements of Sections 4.3.2(d)(i) 
and (ii).   

(e) In addition to the limitations in Section 4.3.2 and subsections (a), (b) and (c) above, 
structures that are nonconforming due to their location within the Resource 
Protection District and are located at less than 250 feet from the normal high-water 
line of a water body or the upland edge of a wetland may be expanded or altered as 
follows, as long as other applicable standards of this Ordinance are met:   

(i) The maximum combined total footprint for all structures may not be expanded to 
an area greater than 1,500 square feet or 30% larger than the footprint that 
existed at the time the Resource Protection District was established on the lot, 
whichever is greater.   

(ii) The maximum height of any structure may not be made greater than 25 feet or 
the height of the existing structure, whichever is greater.  

(iii) Any portion of the structures located less than 100 feet from the normal high-
water line of a great pond or a river flowing to a great pond, must meet the 
footprint and height requirements of Sections 4.3.2(d)(iii) and (iv).  

(iv) Any portion of the structures located less than 75 feet from the normal high-
waterline of a water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland must 
meet the footprint and height requirements of Sections 4.3.2(d)(i) and (ii).  

(f)   Notwithstanding the limitations on height imposed under the paragraphs above, the 
height of a structure that is a legally existing nonconforming principal or accessory 
structure may be raised to, but not above, the minimum elevation necessary to be 
consistent with the local floodplain management elevation requirement or to 3 feet 
above base flood elevation, whichever is greater, as long as the structure is 
relocated, reconstructed, replaced or elevated within the boundaries of the parcel so 
that the water body or wetland setback requirement is met to the greatest practical 



 
 

Warrant Page 48 
 
 

extent.  This paragraph applies to structures that: 
(i)   Have been or are proposed to be relocated, reconstructed, replaced or elevated 

to be consistent with the local floodplain management elevation requirement; and 
(ii)  Are located in an area of special flood hazard. 

(f)(g)  Any approved plan for expansion of a nonconforming structure under Section 
4.3.2 must be recorded by the applicant in the registry of deeds of the county in 
which the property is located within 90 days of approval. The recorded plan must 
include the existing and proposed footprint of structures on the property, the existing 
and proposed height of structures on the property, the shoreland zone boundary and 
evidence of approval by the permitting authority. 

. 

. 

. 
SECTION 8 DEFINITIONS 
. 
. 
. 
AREA OF SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD:  Land in a floodplain having a 1% or greater chance of 
flooding in any given year, as identified in the effective federal flood insurance study and 
corresponding flood insurance rate maps. 
. 
. 
. 
HEIGHT OF A STRUCTURE: The vertical distance between the mean original (prior to 
construction) grade at the downhill side of the structure and the highest point of the structure, 
excluding chimneys, steeples, antennas, and similar appurtenances that have no floor area. 
With respect to existing principal or accessory structures, including legally existing 
nonconforming structures, located within an area of special flood hazard that have been or are 
proposed to be relocated, reconstructed, replaced or elevated to be consistent with the 
minimum elevation required by a local floodplain management ordinance, the vertical distance 
between the bottom of the sill of the structure to the highest point of the structure, excluding 
chimneys, steeples, antennas and similar appurtenances that have no floor area. 
  



 
 

Warrant Page 49 
 
 

Appendix C (Article XX; pg. XX ) Short-Term Rental Licensing Ordinance 

 
Town of Mount Desert 

Short-Term Rental Licensing Ordinance 
 

 
I. Purpose 

The Town of Mount Desert recognizes the desire of some property owners to rent their legal 
residential unit(s) as short-term rentals. The Town of Mount Desert also recognizes that the 
ability for some property owners to rent their residential dwelling unit and/or their accessory 
dwelling unit as a short-term rental has contributed to their ability to remain as a year-round 
resident of the Town of Mount Desert. At the same time, there are legitimate concerns about the 
increase in number of short-term rentals and the undue impacts they can have on the quality of 
life and quiet enjoyment of properties within the vicinity of short-term rentals. It is the intent of 
this ordinance to allow the continued reasonable short-term rental of legal residential properties 
in the Town of Mount Desert, while minimizing the negative impacts said short-term rentals 
could generate. This will be accomplished by a licensing program that enables the Town to 
monitor and track the number of short-term rentals within its borders and includes modest 
performance standards intended to protect property owners, renters, and neighbors. 
II. Applicability 

A. Permitted short-term rentals. Legally existing residential dwelling units may be used as 
short-term rentals upon the issuance of a short-term rental license for the premises in 
accordance with the requirements of this ordinance. 

B. Prohibited short-term rentals. No person may offer for rent, operate, or otherwise use any 
residential dwelling unit in the Town of Mount Desert for short-term rentals if such person 
has not secured and maintained a valid short-term rental license for the premises. 

C. Lodging establishments exempt. The following lodging establishment uses are exempt from 
the licensing requirements and standards of this chapter: hotels, motels, bed-and-
breakfasts, boarding houses, and inns. 

D. Hosted home stays exempt. Hosted home stays are exempt from the licensing requirements 
and standards of this chapter.  

 
III. Validity and Severability 

If any section, subsection, clause or phrase of this chapter shall be found to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this chapter and, to 
that end, the provisions of this chapter are hereby declared severable. 

 
IV. Definitions  

As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: 
 
HOSTED HOME STAY – A residential dwelling unit that is occupied, including overnight, by the 
Owner during the short-term rental period.  In the case of a one-family residential dwelling with a 
legally permitted accessory residential dwelling unit, the owner shall reside in either unit during 



 
 

Warrant Page 50 
 
 

the short-term rental period.  There is no minimum night stay required for hosted home stay 
short-term rentals.    
OWNER — An individual person or persons or an entity that is the owner of record of real 
property as documented by deed or other document evidencing ownership recorded at the 
Hancock County Registry of Deeds or Registry of Probate. 
RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNIT — As defined in the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Zoning 
Ordinance. 
SHORT-TERM RENTAL — The use, control, management or operation of a legally existing 
dwelling unit offered, in whole or in part, for rent for transient occupancy for dwelling, sleeping or 
lodging purposes for fewer than 28 consecutive nights, for compensation, directly or indirectly, 
excluding motels, hotels, bed-and-breakfasts, boarding houses, inns, and hosted home stays. A 
short-term rental does not include: legally existing dwelling units that are rented no more than 
twice per calendar year and for less than a total of 14 days in a calendar year; or when relatives 
and friends stay for no monetary compensation. 
SHORT-TERM RENTAL GUEST — Any person who rents, licenses, occupies or has the right 
to occupy a dwelling unit pursuant to a short-term rental. 
V. Requirements  

A. License required. No short-term rental shall be advertised, rented, or operated without first 
obtaining a short-term rental license. A short-term rental license shall be valid for the 
calendar year for which the license is issued. The property must remain in compliance with 
the requirements of this ordinance. 

B. Registration Procedure. 

1. All applications, and associated fees, for short-term rental licenses shall be filed with the 
Town on forms provided for this purpose. 
 

2. The applicant shall provide all the information requested on the short-term rental 
registration application form, including, the following information: owner or owner’s 
representative contact information, property information, number of short-term rental 
guests allowed, and emergency contact information. 

 
3. A proposed short-term rental may only be registered by the legal owner of the proposed 

short-term rental unit or an authorized representative. 
 

4. Non-refundable fees for a short-term rental registration/renewal shall be as adopted, by 
order of the Board of Selectmen for the Town of Mount Desert, and may be amended 
from time to time. Such fee must be submitted with the registration form at the time of 
registration and/or renewal. 
 

5. A registration number will be given to each unit registered. Registrations are limited to 
the dwelling unit for which they are issued and shall not be transferable to a different 
dwelling unit. 
 

C. Inspection. Anytime that a short-term rental application is submitted for a property, the short-
term rental applicant shall certify on the short-term rental application that the proposed 
short-term rental property complies with the short-term rental standards in this ordinance 
and with applicable Building Code requirements. The Code Enforcement Officer may inspect 



 
 

Warrant Page 51 
 
 

the licensed premises to determine compliance with the short-term standards. However, 
said inspection shall not be required as a condition of license issuance.  
 

D. Short-term rental license renewal. Short-term rental licenses shall expire on December 31 of 
each calendar year. Short-term rental license holders may renew such license by submitting 
a renewal application, via a renewal process established by the Town. After the effective 
date of this ordinance, any duly licensed short-term rental may continue operating as long 
as the license is current and renewed for the current calendar. If the license is not renewed 
by the expiration date the license expires, and this protection clause no longer applies.  
 

E. Transferability. Short term rental licenses issued under this ordinance shall be transferable 
to a new owner as of the day the new owner acquires possession of the property and shall 
expire on December 31.  A new license shall be required the following year.  

F. Notice. The short-term rental license holder must post in plain sight near the entrance of the 
dwelling a notice that identifies the short-term rental license number and the name, address, 
phone number(s), email address of the owner of the short-term rental and/or the owner's 
local contact person, and the maximum number of short-term rental guests allowed.  
 

VI. Standards 

A. At the time of issuance of a license, and at all times during the continuance of a short-term 
rental license, the property taxes and any applicable water and/or sewer fees associated 
with the property to be rented as a short-term rental shall not be in arrears. 

B. Street number per Town 911 standards  

C. Smoke alarms. Smoke alarms shall be installed in each bedroom, outside each separate 
sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of the bedrooms, and on each additional story of the 
short-term rental unit (including basements and habitable attics). 

D. Carbon monoxide alarms. If a short-term rental unit has an attached garage or a fuel-fired 
appliance, a carbon monoxide alarm shall be installed outside each bedroom in the 
immediate vicinity of the bedrooms. 

E. Gas alarms are required per the applicable rules of the State of Maine.   

F. Portable fire extinguishers. At least one appropriately sized portable fire extinguisher shall 
be mounted in a prominent location within the short-term rental unit.  

G. Parking. Short-term rental guests and their guests are prohibited from parking in a manner 
that impedes access by emergency vehicles to the property or any other property in the 
neighborhood. The owner must provide sufficient off-street parking for all overnight short-
term rental guest vehicles. The number of short-term rental guest vehicles allowed at the 
short-term rental shall be limited to the number of off-site parking spaces designated by the 
applicant. Garage parking spaces not allowed for short-term rental guest use shall not be 
used to meet this short-term rental parking requirement. 

H. Trash shall be removed from the short-term rental unit on at least a weekly basis while the 
property is being rented as a short-term rental. 



 
 

Warrant Page 52 
 
 

I. Occupancy limits. The maximum occupancy of a short-term rental shall be limited to no 
more than two short-term rental guests per bedroom, plus two additional Short-term rental 
guests total for the entire dwelling unit. By way of example, the maximum capacity for a 
three-bedroom dwelling short-term rental is eight short-term rental guests (i.e., three 
bedrooms multiplied by two short-term rental guests, plus an additional two short-term rental 
guests, for a total of eight short-term rental guests). 

VII. Suspension and Revocation of License 

A license for a short-term rental may be conditioned, suspended, or revoked by the Board of 
Selectmen after a public hearing if the Board of Selectmen determine that a violation of this 
Ordinance, any applicable statute, ordinance, or regulation, or short-term rental license 
certification, condition, or criterion has occurred. 
A. Violations of this chapter. Violations of this chapter include, but are not limited to, the 

following: 

1. Providing false or misleading information on an application, or renewal application, for a 
short-term rental license; 

2. Failure to comply with the parking provisions of this ordinance; 

3. Failure to acquire and/or display the required short-term rental license number or include 
the license number in any advertising of the licensed premises; 

4. Violation of any short-term rental license certification, condition, or criteria; 

5. Violation of any statute, ordinance, or regulation applicable to the short-term rental 
property. 

B. Complaints concerning short-term rentals. The Town shall establish and maintain a log of all 
complaints for each short-term rental received and substantiated by the Town. The Town 
shall seek the correction of all substantiated complaints by the short-term rental license 
holder.   
 

C. Suspension or revocation of license. The Board of Selectmen may condition, suspend, or 
revoke a short-term rental license, following a public hearing, on the basis of the licensee's 
noncompliance with this chapter, any applicable law, ordinance, or regulation, or short-term 
rental license certification, condition, or criteria. Registrants who have previously had a 
registration(s) revoked pursuant to this Ordinance, shall be allowed to obtain a license for 
the subject property in the future only by order of the Board of Selectmen. 

 
D. Penalties. Any person, including but not limited to a landowner, a landowner's agent or a 

contractor or firm, or corporation, who violates any provision or requirement of this 
Ordinance, or disobeys, refuses to comply with, or resists the enforcement of, any provision of 
this ordinance or who starts construction or under-takes a land use activity without a required 
permit, shall be penalized in accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. Section 4452. 

 
E. Appeal. A decision by the Board of Selectmen to proceed against an alleged violator for 

violations of this Ordinance is not appealable to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  
  



 
 

Warrant Page 53 
 
 

 
Appendix D (Article XX; pg. XX ) Cranberry Isles Lease 

 
LEASE 

 
 
     This Indenture of Lease, made this 2nd day of May 2023 by and between the Town of 
Mount Desert, a municipality located at Mount Desert, Hancock County, State of Maine 
(hereinafter "Landlord"), and the Town of Cranberry Isles, a municipality located in Hancock 
County, State of Maine, (hereinafter "Tenant") witnesseth that: 
 

Recitals 
 
 In approving execution of this Lease, Landlord finds as follows: 
 
 (1)  Residents of the Town of Cranberry Isles are regular users of passenger ferry 
services originating at the Northeast Harbor town dock.  
 
 (2)  Said residents require the use of motor vehicle parking spaces for this purpose.  
 
 (3)  Designation of reserved parking spaces for the residents of Cranberry Isles is 
necessary to assure that other portions of the Town of Mount Desert municipal parking lot in 
Northeast Harbor remain available for Mount Desert town residents and other users of the 
harbor's facilities and for successful operation of the Landlord's municipal parking program; and  
 
 (4)  Execution of this Lease accordingly serves a valid public purpose of the Town of 
Mount Desert. 
 
 In approving execution of this Lease, Tenant finds as follows: 
 
 (1)  Residents of the Town of Cranberry Isles require access to motor vehicle parking 
facilities having direct mainland access via existing road connections and transportation 
facilities. 
 
 (2)  No such parking facilities are available within the municipal limits of the Town of 
Cranberry Isles. 
 
 (3)  Provision of such parking facilities is essential to the continued economic well-being 
of the Town of Cranberry Isles and its residents; and 
 
 (4)  Execution of this Lease accordingly serves a valid public purpose of the Town of 
Cranberry Isles. 



 
 

Warrant Page 54 
 
 

Agreement 
 

 In consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual promises and rent to be paid as 
hereinafter set forth, Landlord and Tenant hereby mutually agree as follows:  
 
1.  Premises.  Landlord, for and in consideration of the rent to be paid and the obligations to be 
performed by Tenant as hereinafter provided, demises and leases to Tenant, and Tenant takes 
and leases upon and subject to the conditions hereinafter expressed, a total of one hundred 
twenty-three (123) automobile parking spaces together with rights of access and egress thereto, 
as depicted on "Exhibit A" attached (hereinafter, the "Premises"); said Premises being a portion 
of the Landlord's municipal parking facilities located in the unincorporated village of Northeast 
Harbor, Town of Mount Desert, Hancock County, State of Maine.  
 
 Landlord reserves the right to temporarily or permanently substitute other parking 
spaces for any or all of the 123 parking spaces depicted in Exhibit A, if such substitution is 
deemed necessary by the Landlord in its sole discretion, in connection with future alterations or 
improvements of the Landlord's municipal parking facilities, or to provide for improved 
maneuvering or access by emergency vehicles; and provided that any such substitute parking 
spaces shall be of equal quality  and shall not be located at a greater distance from the Town of 
Mount Desert town docks than the parking spaces being replaced.  For purposes of this 
paragraph, the phrase "equal quality" means that the replacement spaces must be similar in 
size, surface treatment, and adequacy of access (turning and maneuver space) as the spaces 
being replaced.  
 
2.  Term.  Tenant shall have and hold the Premises for a term of ten (10) years commencing on 
January 1,2024, and expiring at midnight on December 31, 2033 (the "Term"), unless this Lease 
is sooner terminated as hereinafter provided. 
 
 Provided that this Lease shall remain in effect and in good standing at the expiration of 
the initial term and provided further that Tenant shall have fully cured any breaches of its 
obligations under this Lease arising during the initial term, Tenant shall have the right to renew 
this Lease for an additional term of ten (10) years commencing on January 1, 2034 and ending 
at midnight on December 31, 2043.  Said renewal right shall be exercised by giving notice to the 
Landlord in writing no later than July 1, 2033.  Upon Landlord's receipt of such notice, the 
parties shall meet for the purpose of negotiating the amount of rent to be charged by the 
Landlord for the renewal term.  Upon agreement as to the amount of rent to be charged, the 
parties shall execute a lease for the renewal term.  Unless otherwise agreed, the renewal term 
lease shall in all other respects be upon the same terms and conditions as this Lease, but shall 
not include a provision for additional renewals  
 
3.  Use.  Tenant shall use the Premises to provide motor vehicle parking, including overnight 
parking, for residents of the Town of Cranberry Isles, and for no other purposes whatsoever 
without the Landlord's express prior written consent.  Tenant's use of the Premises shall at all 
times comply with applicable regulations of all governmental authorities, including municipal 
traffic regulations of the Town of Mount Desert, provided that the Tenant shall have the sole 
right to determine the persons eligible to use the Premises for parking of motor vehicles.  No 
more than 123 motor vehicles may be parked upon the Premises at any one time. 
 
4.  Enforcement.  Tenant shall develop an annual permit system for authorized users of the 123 
leased parking spaces.  Tenant shall be solely responsible for designation of authorized users 
of the Premises, and for distribution of permits; provided that Tenant may also make permits 



 
 

Warrant Page 55 
 
 

available for distribution by the Landlord to users designated on lists to be provided by the 
Tenant for this purpose.  Tenant shall have the right to assign, and re-assign permits previously 
issued.  All permits shall have a stated expiration date which shall appear on the permit.  Tenant 
shall require that the permit or a decal indicating issuance of the permit and the expiration date 
thereof shall be affixed to motor vehicles to be parked on the Premises.  Landlord shall 
prescribe the location on permitees' vehicles where the permit or decal is to be affixed. 
 
 Tenant shall be entitled to charge such fees as it shall determine for issuance of permits, 
provided that the total fees charged by the Tenant for use of the parking spaces in any year 
shall not exceed one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the total rent amount paid by the 
Tenant to the Landlord for that year.  This amount shall be adjusted annually as provided in 
paragraph 5 below with respect to rent adjustments.  Tenant shall not be entitled to operate the 
Premises as a paid parking lot for hourly or daily use by non-permit holders. 
 
 Landlord shall police compliance with the permit requirement for vehicles parking on the 
Premises.  Landlord shall issue parking violation citations and take such other actions in 
accordance with Landlord's municipal parking ordinances or regulations as may be necessary to 
enforce the permit requirement.  Any fines accrued and collected for such violations shall be 
retained by the Landlord.  The Landlord's enforcement authority under this paragraph shall 
include the right to tow and impound any vehicle parked in violation of the Landlord's applicable 
parking ordinances or regulations.    
 
5.  Rent.  Tenant shall pay to Landlord annually, as rent, the 2023 lease rate of forty  thousand, 
two hundred seventy dollars ($47,271.00), adjusted  prior to going into effect on January 1, 
2024 by the average change in the CIP-U for September 2021, September 2022, and 
September 2023.  Tenant covenants and agrees to pay said rent to Landlord on or before July 
15th of each and every year during the Term hereof.  All payments will be made to Landlord at 
the address provided in section 14 below for notices, or to such agent and at such place as 
Landlord shall from time to time in writing designate to Tenant. 
 
 Rent Adjustments.  For the second and subsequent years of the Lease Term, the 
amount to be paid by Tenant as rent shall be adjusted annually, based on the average 
percentage change in the United States Consumer Price Index – Urban ("CPI-U") for the month 
of September as published by the United States Department of Commerce for the three most 
recent years prior to the due date for the payment concerned.  Landlord shall notify the Tenant 
in writing of the adjusted rent amount as soon as practicable after publication of the annual CPI-
U figures.  In the event the CPI-U index shall cease to be published during the Term of this 
Lease, annual rent adjustments shall be based on other generally accepted inflation indices 
selected by the Landlord for this purpose.  
6.  Taxes and Assessments.  It is the parties' understanding that the Premises are owned and 
operated by the Landlord as a municipal parking facility in accordance with Title 30-A MRSA 
sec. 5401-5415, and as such are exempt from imposition of real or personal property taxes as 
provided in 30-A MRSA sec. 5413.  In the event that Tenant shall be assessed and shall pay 
any real or personal property taxes with respect to the Premises, Tenant shall be entitled to a 
credit against the annual rent payment otherwise due hereunder, in the amount of such taxes 
paid by the Tenant for the year concerned. 
 
7.  Utilities and Maintenance.  
 
 a.  Utilities.  Landlord shall pay the cost of all common utilities serving the Property 
including electric utility charges for parking lot lighting.  



 
 

Warrant Page 56 
 
 

 
 b.  Rubbish; Landscaping; Mowing.  Tenant shall not permit or allow any trash or rubbish 
to accumulate in or about the Premises.  Landlord shall be responsible for all exterior 
landscaping, landscape maintenance, grass mowing and leaf collection, at Landlord's sole 
expense. 
 
 c.  Snowplowing; Winter Maintenance.  Tenant shall be responsible for sanding or 
removal of snow and ice from the Premises, including parking areas, access areas, and 
immediately adjacent walkways and steps, as necessary.  Tenant shall deposit all snow 
removed from the Premises in areas designated by the Landlord for this purpose. 
 
 d.  Signage; Regulations.  Landlord shall provide, install and maintain all necessary 
signs designating the 123 parking spaces on the Premises as reserved for use by Tenant's 
permittees.  Tenant shall not, without Landlord's written permission, place any signs on or about 
the Premises.  Landlord may post signs designating portions of the Premises as reserved for 
firefighter or emergency vehicle access or for pedestrian or bicycle use, so long as 123 parking 
spaces remain available for use by Tenant's permittees; and if so posted, Tenant shall cause its 
permittees to observe and comply with such signs. 
 
 e.  Maintenance.  During the term of this Lease, Landlord shall arrange for and pay the 
cost of all ordinary and capital maintenance and repairs to the Premises, to include line striping; 
patching and pothole repair; repaving; and reconstruction of the Premises and all adjacent 
access roads and sidewalks.  Landlord reserves to right to temporarily close portions of the 
Premises as necessary to effect such maintenance or repairs.  
 
8.  Alterations to Premises.  Tenant shall have no right to alter, renovate, enlarge, or otherwise 
structurally or modify the Premises, except with the Landlord's express prior written consent, 
and in accordance with such written plans as the parties may hereafter approve.   
 
9.  Access by Landlord.  Landlord shall have access to the Premises at all reasonable hours for 
the purpose of maintaining and repairing the Premises, and for the purpose of maintaining, 
repairing or replacing subsurface or above-ground water, sewer and electrical utilities crossing 
the Premises, provided such access does not unreasonably interfere with the use of the 
Premises by the Tenant; and shall have such access at all times for emergency repairs, all in 
accordance with the requirements of the statutes of the State of Maine. 
 
10.  Surrender of Premises.  Upon the expiration or other termination of this Lease, whether by 
reason of lapse of time or Tenant's default or otherwise, Tenant shall quit and surrender the 
Premises to Landlord in as good order and condition, as they now are or may be put into by the 
Landlord or the Tenant, ordinary wear expected, and damage by fire or other inevitable accident 
beyond the control of Tenant, or their agents, employees, guests, or invitees excepted, and any 
other item which it is the responsibility of Landlord to maintain or repair excepted, and Tenant 
shall remove all personal property of the Tenant as directed by Landlord.  Any and all piping, 
electrical wiring, and fixtures installed by Tenant shall, upon the termination of this Lease, 
become the sole property of the Landlord. 
 
11.  Default.  If (i) the Premises shall be abandoned by Tenant, or the estate hereby created 
shall be taken by process of law; (ii) the Tenant shall default in the payment of any rent or 
Deposit when due, whether or not demanded; (iii) the Tenant shall default in the faithful 
observance or performance of any other covenant to be performed or observed by Tenant 
under this Lease for ten (10) or more days after Landlord shall give to Tenant notice in writing of 



 
 

Warrant Page 57 
 
 

such default and a demand to cure the same; (iv) there shall be filed by or against Tenant a 
petition under any chapter or chapters of the Bankruptcy Act of the United States, or any other 
insolvency proceeding relating to the debts of Tenant shall be brought by or against Tenant, or 
(v) Tenant shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall be insolvent or unable 
to pay their debts as they mature or a receiver shall be appointed for Tenant or any substantial 
part of their property; then and in any one or more of such events, Landlord may, at Landlord's 
sole election, enter the Premises and expel Tenant and remove Tenant's effects and/or notify 
Tenant that this Lease has terminated, and in either case, the Term hereof shall terminate upon 
such entry or the giving of such notice, whichever shall first occur, and Tenant shall thereupon 
quit and surrender the Premises to Landlord.  In case of termination of this Lease for any such 
cause, and in either manner above provided, Landlord shall not be deemed to have waived any 
rights or other remedies hereunder or at law or in equity, and shall be entitled to recover 
damages for breach of contract, which shall include, without limitation, Landlord's reasonable 
attorney's fees and other expenses of Landlord incurred in connection with the retaking of 
possession of the Premises and the removal and storage of Tenant's effects and the recovery of 
damages or the exercise of other rights or remedies. 
 
12.  Landlord's Rights Reserved.  It is understood and agreed that the Landlord shall retain the 
exclusive use and occupancy of Landlord's remaining adjacent property not leased to the 
Tenant.  It is further understood and agreed that Landlord's present and intended continued use 
of the non-leased portions of the Landlord's property is as a municipal parking facility, public 
park and town dock for the Village of Northeast Harbor and Town of Mount Desert, or for other 
public uses.  Tenant expressly covenants and agrees that it shall conduct its use of the 
Premises so as not to interfere in any manner with Landlord's use of the non-leased portion of 
the Landlord's property for those purposes.  Tenant, in its use and occupancy of the Premises, 
shall at all times faithfully observe and comply with, and shall cause its agents, employees, 
invitees and guests to observe and comply with, any and all regulations or rules concerning use 
of the Premises or the non-leased portions of the Landlord's property. 
 
 Landlord further expressly reserves the right to alter, expand or modify Landlord's 
adjacent property at any time, subject to all applicable zoning and building code requirements, 
so as to better facilitate Landlord's use of its adjacent property for any public purpose.  
Temporary interference with Tenant's access to, use, or occupancy of the Premises during such 
alterations, expansion or modification of the existing building improvements shall not be deemed 
to constitute a breach by the Landlord of this Lease. 
 
13.  Self-Help.  If Tenant shall default in the performance or observance of any covenant, 
condition or other provision set forth in this Lease on its part to be performed or observed, the 
Landlord may, at its option, without waiving claims for breach of Lease, and after such written 
notice as may be specifically required or provided elsewhere in this Lease, cure such default for 
the Tenant, and the Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for the amount paid therefore and for any 
reasonable expense or contractual liability so incurred, with interest.  All such amounts shall be 
deemed additional rent. 
 
14.  Miscellaneous. 
 
 a.  No Representation.  Landlord makes no representations or warranties as to the 
condition of the Premises, and the Tenant accepts the same in their present condition, "as is". 
 
 b.  Insurance and Indemnification.  
 



 
 

Warrant Page 58 
 
 

 (i)  Liability Insurance.  
 
 Tenant shall maintain in force at all times during the Term of this Lease the following 
insurance coverages: 
 
  Comprehensive general liability insurance in a minimum  
  coverage amount of $400,000 per occurrence, $1 million 
  annual aggregate, to cover all claims arising out of 
  tenant's occupancy and use of the Premises pursuant to  
  this Lease.   
 
 Insurance required under this section shall be obtained from reputable national 
insurance carriers licensed to do business in the State of Maine.  Tenant shall provide proof of 
such insurance coverage to the Landlord in the form of a certificate of insurance, naming 
Landlord as an additional insured under Tenant's policy.  In the event Tenant fails to provide 
evidence of such Insurance coverage as required, Landlord may terminate this Lease, or may 
elect to purchase such insurance on its own behalf, charging the cost thereof to the Tenant as 
additional rent. 
 
 The general liability insurance coverage amount required under this section shall 
automatically increase whenever the Maine Tort Claims Act shall be amended to increase the 
municipal liability limit for a single occurrence under that act.  In the event of such an 
amendment, the insurance coverage amount required under this paragraph shall be not less 
than the municipal liability limit specified in the Maine Tort Claims Act, as amended.  
 
 (ii)  Fire and Casualty Insurance. 
 
 Landlord shall have no obligation to obtain or maintain fire insurance for the Property or 
the Premises.  In the event that the Landlord, in its sole discretion, elects to obtain fire 
insurance, Landlord shall have no obligation to name the Tenant as a loss payee with respect to 
any policy obtained, and shall have no obligation in the event of a fire or other casualty to divide 
any proceeds from such insurance with the Tenant.  
    
 Landlord shall have no obligation to insure property of the Tenant against loss due to fire 
or other casualty.  Landlord and Tenant shall each insure their personal property located on the 
Property or the Premises, respectively, in such coverage amounts as each in its sole discretion 
shall deem appropriate.  Neither Landlord nor Tenant shall assert any claims against the other, 
or against officers or employees of the other, for loss of personal property due to fire or other 
casualty occasioned by ordinary negligence of the Landlord, Tenant or officers or employees of 
either. 
 
 (iii)  Indemnification.  
 
 Tenant covenants and agrees to forever defend, indemnify, save and hold Landlord 
harmless from and against any and all claims of any person for damage to or loss of property, 
and any and all claims for injuries to or death of any person, in or about the Premises, caused in 
whole or part by the negligence or willful act or omission of Tenant, or its agents, employees, 
invitees, or guests or resulting from Tenant's failure to observe or comply with any of Tenant's 
obligations undertaken in this Lease.  For this purpose, Tenant hereby expressly waives any 
immunity it may have from judgment or suit under Maine's Workers' Compensation Act, 39-A 
MRSA sec. 104 and 107, as amended, with respect to claims made against Landlord by or on 



 
 

Warrant Page 59 
 
 

behalf of Tenant's employees or their heirs or estates.  With respect to its indemnification 
obligations under this section generally, Tenant further waives any immunity it may otherwise 
have as a charitable organization by statute or at common law.       
  
 Tenant's indemnification obligations under this section shall survive expiration or 
termination of this Lease. 
 
 Landlord covenants and agrees to forever defend, indemnify, save and hold Tenant 
harmless from and against any and all claims of any person for damage to or loss of property, 
and any and all claims for injuries to or death of any person, in or about the Premises, caused in 
whole or part by the sole negligence or willful act or omission of Landlord, or its agents or 
employees.  For this purpose, Landlord hereby expressly waives any immunity it may have from 
judgment or suit under Maine's Workers' Compensation Act, 39-A MRSA sec. 104 and 107, as 
amended, with respect to claims made against Tenant by or on behalf of Landlord's employees 
or their heirs or estates.  With respect to its indemnification obligations under this section 
generally, Landlord further waives any immunity it may otherwise have as a charitable 
organization by statute or at common law.       
  
 Landlord's indemnification obligations under this section shall survive expiration or 
termination of this Lease. 
 
 Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a waiver by Landlord or Tenant 
of their municipal immunities or limitations on liability under the Maine Tort Claims Act or other 
provisions of law with respect to any third party, the provisions of this Agreement on 
indemnification being for the sole benefit of the parties hereto. 
 
      c.  Liens.  The Tenant shall not do or allow anything to be done to cause the Premises or 
the Property, or any part thereof, to be encumbered by any mechanic's, materialmen's, or other 
liens.  Whenever and as often as any mechanic's or other lien is asserted against the Premises 
or Property purporting to be for labor or material furnished or to be furnished to the same, 
Tenant shall, within ten (10) days after the date of filing, either discharge such lien of record or 
certify to Landlord in writing that Tenant contests the lien in good faith, specifying therein the 
basis and reasons for contesting the lien.  Notice is hereby given that the Landlord shall not be 
liable for any labor or materials furnished or to be furnished to the Tenant upon credit, and that 
no mechanic's or other lien for any such labor or materials shall attach to or affect the 
reversionary or other estate or interest of the Landlord in and to the Premises. 
 
 d.  No Waiver.  Failure of either party to complain of any act or omission on the part of 
the other party, no matter how long the same may continue, shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
by said party of any of its rights hereunder.  No waiver by either party at any time, express or 
implied, of any breach of any provision of this Lease shall be deemed a waiver of such provision 
or of subsequent breach of the same or any other provision.  If any action by either party shall 
require the consent or approval of other party, the other party's consent to or approval of said 
action on any one occasion shall not be deemed a consent to or approval of said action on any 
subsequent occasion or consent to or approval of any other action on any occasion.  Any and all 
rights and remedies which either party may have under this lease, or by operation of law, either 
at law or in equity, upon any breach shall be distinct, cumulative and shall not be deemed 
inconsistent with each other, and no one of them, whether exercised by a party or not, shall be 
deemed to be in exclusion of any other, and any two or more or all of such rights and remedies 
may be exercised at the same time. 
 



 
 

Warrant Page 60 
 
 

      e.  Assignment.  This lease may not be assigned or sublet by Tenant without the written 
consent of Landlord, which consent may be withheld in Landlord's sole discretion.  
 
      f.  Bind and Inure; Full Agreement.  All of the terms and provisions of this Lease shall be 
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors 
and assigns of the respective parties hereto.  This lease constitutes the full agreement of the 
parties with regards to subject matter, and may not be modified except on a writing signed by 
both Landlord and Tenant. 
 
       g.  Invalidity of Particular Provisions.  If any term or provision of this Lease or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be held to be invalid or 
unenforceable, then the remainder of this Lease, or the application of such term or provisions to 
persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall 
not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Lease shall be valid and may be 
enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
 
      h.  Governing Law.  This lease shall be governed exclusively by the provisions hereof 
and by the laws of the State of Maine. 
 
      i.  Paragraph Headings.  The paragraph headings throughout this Lease are for 
convenience and reference only, and the words contained therein shall in no way be held to 
explain, modify, amplify, or aid in the interpretation, construction, or meaning of the provisions of 
this Lease. 
 
      j.  Notices.  All notices or communications that Landlord may desire or be required to 
give Tenant shall be deemed sufficiently given or rendered if in writing and either delivered to 
Tenant personally or sent by registered or certified mail addressed to:  
 
  Town of Cranberry Isles  
  P.O. Box 15 
  Islesford, Maine  04646  
 
and the time of rendition thereof shall be deemed to be the time when the same is delivered to 
Tenant or deposited in the mail as herein provided.   
 
 Any notice by Tenant to Landlord shall be deemed sufficiently given or rendered if in 
writing and either personally delivered or sent by registered or certified mail addressed to 
Landlord to such other persons as Landlord may from time to time designate in writing, at:  
 
  Town of Mount Desert 
  21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 
  Northeast Harbor, Maine 04662 
 
or, in the case of subsequent change upon notice given, to the latest address furnished and the 
time of rendition thereof shall be deemed to be the time when the same is delivered to Landlord 
or deposited in the mail as herein provided. 
 
 k.  Amendments.  No amendments to this Lease shall be valid, unless executed by both 
parties in writing and approved, respectively, by the Town of Mount Desert Board of Selectmen 
for the Landlord, and by the Town of Cranberry Isles Board of Selectmen for the Tenant.  In 
addition, amendments extending or shortening the term of this Lease or reducing the amount of 



 
 

Warrant Page 61 
 
 

annual rent to be paid by the Tenant to the Landlord hereunder shall not be valid unless ratified 
and affirmed by vote of the respective town meetings of the Town of Mount Desert and the 
Town of Cranberry Isles.  
 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord has caused this Lease to be signed and sealed in its 
name, by its undersigned officer, duly authorized, and Tenant has signed and sealed this 
instrument, in any number of counterpart copies, each of which shall be deemed an original for 
all purposes; as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
 
Witness:                            LANDLORD:  TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
 
 
 
____________________________    By: ______________________________ 
                                       Name: 
          Its: 
          Duly authorized 
 
 
 
 
Witness:                            TENANT:  TOWN OF CRANBERRY ISLES 
 
 
 
____________________________    By:  ______________________________ 
      Name: 
      Its: 
      Duly authorized 
 
  



 
 

Warrant Page 62 
 
 

Appendix E (Article XX; pg. XX) 
 

Patterson Hill Road and sewer acceptance (2 articles, 1 map) 
 

 
  



 
 

Warrant Page 63 
 
 

Appendix F (Article XX; pg. XX) 
 

Town of Mount Desert 
Investment Policy 

Adopted March 1986 
Amended May 4, 2010 
Amended May 3, 2016 
Amended May 2, 2023 

 
PURPOSE  
Maine state statutes authorize Treasurers to deposit or invest municipal funds by direction of the 
municipal officers.  
 
Pursuant to 30-A MSR 5706-5717; the municipality of Town of Mount Desert, Maine shall adopt 
the following investment objectives in the management and investment of municipal funds:  
 
The primary objective of the municipality’s investment activities is the preservation of capital and 
the protection of investment principal.  
 
In investing public funds, the municipality will strive to maximize the return on the portfolio.  
 
The municipality’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the municipality to 
meet operating requirements which might be reasonably anticipated.  
 
The municipality will diversify its investments to avoid incurring unreasonable and avoidable 
risks regarding specific security types or individual financial institutions.  
 
The municipal Treasurer shall invest funds for which there is no immediate need, consistent with 
30-A MSR5706-5717, sell and exchange securities so purchased, and deposit such securities 
for safekeeping. All investment decisions shall be made considering the investment objectives 
contained herein and exercising judgment and care under the circumstances then prevailing.  
 
The Treasurer may utilize Trust Department services of approved banks.  
 
BACKGROUND  
In addition to short term investment of operational funds, the Town has put aside for investment 
certain funds accumulated over time for which there is not an immediate need. It is these funds 
which will generally be invested through the Trust companies.  
 
Although these monies are not to be considered as permanent endowment, it is not 
contemplated that they will be expended in the immediate future. They should be regarded as 
reserve funds, and it is the desire of the Selectmen to develop investment guidelines to be 
followed by the fund managers in selecting securities for investment.  
 
Broadly speaking, the funds are to be divided into two parts.  One part, at least ($500,000) of 
the total, is to be considered a relatively short term reserve to be available on short notice for 
use by the Town.   The second part, consisting of the balance, shall be held as a long-term 
reserve. 
 
 



 
 

Warrant Page 64 
 
 

SPECIFIC GUIDELINES FOR THE TRUST COMPANIES:  
The managers of the funds are directed to invest both the long term and the short term reserves 
with the goal that the total return of the funds shall at least equal the rate of inflation over a five 
year time span as measured by the GNP price deflator.  
 
SHORT TERM RESERVE  
The short term reserve shall be invested in certificates of deposit, money market funds, U.S. 
Treasury obligations, U.S. Government agency obligations, insured cash sweep, and corporate 
debt instruments with at least an A rating.  
 
No security shall carry a maturity of more than five years, and the average maturity of all assets 
in the short term reserve shall be no longer than three years.  
 
The securities of any one issuer shall not constitute more than 5% of the short term reserve.  
Obligations of the U.S. Treasury, or Government agencies, guaranteed by the U.S. 
Government, shall not be subject to this restriction.  
 
The current yield on the short term reserve fund as a whole shall at least equal the U. S. 
Treasury one year bill rate.  
 
LONGER TERM RESERVE  
The fund manager shall invest the assets of this portion of the fund similarly to those securities 
listed in the SHORT TERM RESERVE guidelines above, but without limitation as to maturity on 
fixed income instruments.  
 
In addition, equities, and convertible debt securities may be bought, subject to the limitation that 
the percentage of common stocks and convertible securities should not exceed 65%, as 
measured by market value.  
 
Investments will also be subject to the limitation that the securities of any one issuer shall not 
exceed 5% of the total fund, except for obligations of the U.S. Treasury and Government 
agency bonds as defined above.  
 
PERFORMANCE:  
The total return of the long term reserve should be compared to appropriate investment indices.  
 
The performance figures should be prepared semi-annually, on the first and third quarters of the 
fiscal year, and will be compared over a three to five year time span. Reports from the trusts 
should be utilizing an investment basis format rather than a trust format.  
 
REPORTING  
The Treasurer shall report quarterly to the Board of Selectmen for the purpose of monitoring the 
performance and structure of the municipal investments.  
 
In addition, the Treasurer shall issue an annual investment report due no later than 30 days 
after the end of the fiscal year.  The report shall include an evaluation of the performance of the 
investment program for the previous year.  
 
REVIEW  
It shall be the duty of the Investment Committee, as appointed by the Board of Selectmen, to 
review the reports of the Treasurer and the Trusts. 



 
 

Warrant Page 65 
 
 

 
The committee shall be composed of: - a member of the Board of Selectmen; a member of the 
Warrant Committee; and three citizens of the Town. Three (3) voting members must be present 
to constitute a quorum. The Town Treasurer and Town Manager participate as non-voting ex 
officio members. 
 
Said committee will meet quarterly for this purpose.  The Committee may make 
recommendations to the Board of Selectmen for redistribution of the funds, withdrawal or 
adjustment of Trust balances and reinvestment, and/or withdrawal or application to reduce taxes 
of any interest earnings on the investments.  
 
It is the express intention of the Board of Selectmen to protect future value of the funds, and 
therefore, it shall be the policy of the Board of Selectmen to disregard any realized or unrealized 
capital gain in the fund when considering earnings available for withdrawal.  
 
All municipal personnel involved in the investment program shall adhere to the Town’s Charter 
to prevent any real or perceived violation of their fiduciary responsibilities  

 
 

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT RESERVE FUND INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
A. Investment Objectives 
 

Preservation of capital/protection of investment principal  
Total rate of return at least equal to the inflation rate (GDP price deflator) over five-year periods  
Total fund return to compare favorably with established market indices over 3-5 year periods  

 
B. Investment Guidelines and Constraints 
 
Liquidity requirement – $500,000 
Social/Moral Constraints –7% to 12% of equity allocation invested in existing Environmental, 
social and governance (ESG) fund(s) 
Equity Securities (common stocks and convertible securities): 

Portfolio maximum = 65% of total fund  
Portfolio minimum = 35% of total fund  
Position/issuer maximum = 5% of total fund  

Fixed-income Securities:  
Credit quality = “A” minimum  
Maturity Limitations = None  
Portfolio maximum = 65% of total fund  
Portfolio minimum = 35% of total fund  
Position/issuer maximum = 5% (exception: U.S. Treasury and government agency 
securities)  

 
C. Spending Policy 
 

100% of income (interest and dividend income) distributed within the trust 
Principal, realized, and unrealized capital gains may be distributed in conformance with the Town 
Charter. 

  



 
 

Warrant Page 66 
 
 

Appendix G (Article XX; pg. XX) 
 

Somesville Sidewalk improvements

 



 
 

Warrant Page 67 
 
 



 
 

Warrant Page 68 
 
 

 



 
 

Warrant Page 69 
 
 

 
Appendix H (Article XX; pg. XX)

 



 
 

Warrant Page 70 
 
 

 
Appendix I (Article XX; pg. XX) 

 



 
 

Warrant Page 71 
 
 

  
 



 
 

Warrant Page 72 
 
 

 
Appendix J  (Article XX; pg. XX)

 



 
 

Warrant Page 73 
 
 

Appendix K  (Article XX; pg. XX) 
 

Beech Hill Cross Road Culvert Project 
 

 



 

Warrant Page 74 
 

Appendix L (Article XX; pg. XX) 
 

Seal Harbor Beach Erosion Project 
 

 



 

Warrant Page 75 
 

Estimated Tax Rate



 

Warrant Page 76 
 

Tax Levy Worksheets 
 
 



TREASURER’S 
WARRANTS 

 





 Warrants for  BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda: 3/20/2023

Description # Date Amount

A.  Warrants to be Approved and Signed: 
Town Invoices

AP#2360 03/21/23 784,423.03              

784,423.03$           
B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)
         (Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization )

Town State Fees & P/R Benefits
AP#2358 03/08/23 3,279.53$                
AP#2359 03/15/23 45,524.42$              

Town Payroll
PR#2322 03/17/23 147,446.74$           

196,250.69$           

C.  Warrants to be Acknowledged:
School Invoices

School Payroll
PR#19 03/17/23 93,500.47$              

Town Voids

93,500.47$             

TOTAL WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING 1,074,174.19$     

T:\TREASURER\SECURE FILES\1- FY 2023 Working Files\Select Board Meeting\2023.03.20 Selectboard 
Meeting\Exceptions Documents\0- Exception Report.xlsx######





23
60

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 2
1,

 2
02

3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
85

75
th

ro
ug

h
31

86
25

65
9,

16
2.

86
$ 

   
   

Ch
ec

k 
pa

ym
en

ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

59
73

0
an

d
59

73
4

48
4.

74
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

26
66

th
ro

ug
h

27
00

12
4,

77
5.

43
$ 

   
   

AC
H 

Pa
ym

en
ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

n/
a

an
d

n/
a

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
78

4,
42

3.
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

W
en

dy
 H

 L
itt

le
fie

ld
, V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

rm
an

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
6
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
7
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
8
5
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
4
8
0

F
e
b
r
u
a
r
y
 
2
0
2
3
 
M
u
t
u
a
l
 
A
i
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
1
.
4
2
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
1
5
0
0
 
2
9
9
 
 

O
T
-
M
A
 
B
H
P
D
 
T
O
 
M
D
P
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
4
.
0
8
1
4
4
0
8
0
0
 
5
1
5
0
0
 
2
9
9
 
 

O
T
-
M
A
 
B
H
P
D
 
T
O
 
M
D
P
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
9
2
.
6
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
4
7
7

J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
2
0
2
3
 
M
u
t
u
a
l
 
A
i
d
 
B
H
 
t
o
 
M
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
5
0
.
9
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
1
5
0
0
 
2
9
9
 
 

O
T
-
M
A
 
B
H
P
D
 
T
O
 
M
D
P
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
4
1
.
7
8
1
4
4
0
8
0
0
 
5
1
5
0
0
 
2
9
9
 
 

O
T
-
M
A
 
B
H
P
D
 
T
O
 
M
D
P
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
0
7
8
.
1
8

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
7
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
7
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
T
W
N
R
0
 
F
D
R
1
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
6
9
 
R
e
t
u
r
n
 
o
f
 
A
C
H
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
9
2
.
6
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
7
7
6
9
 
R
e
t
u
r
n
 
o
f
 
A
C
H

A
C
H
 
S
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
e
r
r
o
r
 
R
e
f
 
4
4
7
7
 
J
E
2
0
2
3
.
8
.
1
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
9
2
.
6
8
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
l
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
9
2
.
6
8

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
8
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
7
4
0
 
B
R
I
A
N
 
L
I
P
P
O
L
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
T
D
0
3
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
M
T
D
0
3
2
3

B
r
o
a
d
b
a
n
d
 
S
u
r
v
e
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0
1
7
7
0
1
0
0
 
5
4
5
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
N
T
-
 
O
T
H
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
9
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
2
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
5
6
0
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
7
1
5
6
0
2
5

H
M
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
 
b
o
i
l
e
r
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
6
8
1
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
7
1
6
8
1
8
1

V
i
s
i
t
o
r
 
c
e
n
t
e
r
 
b
o
i
l
e
r
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
6
8
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
7
1
6
8
4
3
7

Y
a
c
h
t
s
m
e
n
 
b
o
i
l
e
r
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
3
7
3
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
.
0
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
2
3
7
3
6
2

6
0
.
5
 
G
A
L
S
 
L
P
 
G
A
S
 
#
7
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
.
0
3
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
6
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
2
4
.
0
3

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
0
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
4
 
C
O
L
L
I
E
R
 
&
 
F
A
H
E
Y
,
 
P
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
3
8

Q
u
a
r
r
y
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
F
e
e
 
-
 
C
o
u
r
t
 
P
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
4
4
0
 
5
4
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
B
 
L
E
G
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
3
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
1
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
3
2
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
6
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
3
2
:
0
1

U
-
J
O
I
N
T
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
5
.
6
1
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
7
6
6
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
2
5
.
6
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
7
6
6
:
0
1

S
P
R
I
N
G
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
2
5
.
6
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
7
0
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
7
0
:
0
1

m
i
r
r
o
r
s
 
b
j

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
3
9
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
6
.
9
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
3
9
:
0
1

D
R
A
G
 
L
I
N
K
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
6
.
9
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
0
7
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
.
3
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
0
7
:
0
1

M
O
D
U
L
E
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
.
3
2
1
9
9
0
1
0
0
 
5
9
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
D
 
E
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
R
Y
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
9
0
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
8
1
.
1
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
9
0
:
0
1

R
E
A
R
 
S
P
R
I
N
G
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
8
8
1
.
1
6
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
9
9
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
9
9
:
0
1

P
I
G
 
T
A
I
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
9
5
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
2
1
.
7
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
9
5
:
0
1

D
R
U
M
 
B
R
A
K
E
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
2
1
.
7
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
8
4
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
9
.
2
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
8
4
:
0
1

S
P
R
I
N
G
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
9
.
2
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
L
W
E
L
L
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
&
 
G
A
R
A
G
E
 
I
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
9
8
:
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
9
5
.
3
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
9
8
:
0
1

C
r
e
d
i
t
 
I
n
v
o
i
c
e
 
X
1
0
0
0
0
8
8
0
7
:
0
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
9
5
.
3
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
2
3
4
.
3
4

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
2
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
6
1
7
5
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
1
7
5
5
9

F
O
A
A
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
4
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
E
G
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
6
1
7
5
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
1
7
5
6
2

L
e
g
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
n
t



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
7
7
0
 
5
4
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
L
A
N
N
I
N
G
 
C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
6
1
7
5
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
1
7
5
6
1

L
e
g
a
l
 
C
o
u
s
e
l
 
V
e
r
s
a
n
t
 
b
i
l
l
 
d
i
s
p
u
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
4
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
E
G
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
6
1
7
5
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
5
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
1
7
5
5
8

P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
n
t
,
 
P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
a
r
d
,
 
P
u
b
l
i
c
 
W
o
r
k
s
,

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
7
7
0
 
5
4
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
L
A
N
N
I
N
G
 
C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
4
4
0
 
5
4
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
B
 
L
E
G
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
0
6
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
4
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
E
G
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
A
T
O
N
 
P
E
A
B
O
D
Y
 
A
T
T
O
R
N
E
Y
S
 
A
T
 
L
A
W
 
 
 
 
6
1
7
5
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
1
7
5
6
0

L
e
g
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
P
o
l
i
c
e
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
6
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
4
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
E
G
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
4
9
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
3
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
 
E
M
R
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
9
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
3
2
1
.
1
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
5
9
2
7

T
i
p
 
F
e
e
s
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
3
2
1
.
1
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
5
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
I
P
P
I
N
G
 
F
E
E
 
E
M
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
3
2
1
.
1
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
4
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
 
H
E
D
E
F
I
N
E
 
E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G
 
&
 
D
E
S
I
G
N
 
I
N
C
 
2
0
0
0
2
A
-
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
1
4
0
.
2
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
0
0
2
A
-
1
9

N
E
H
 
C
A
 
o
b
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
1
4
0
.
2
0
3
0
0
0
0
5
3
 
5
7
7
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
N
G
I
N
E
E
R
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
1
4
0
.
2
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
5
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
0
3
0
 
I
N
D
U
S
T
R
I
A
L
 
P
R
O
T
E
C
T
I
O
N
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
,
 
L
 
1
8
4
2
6
8
-
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
8
6
1
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
8
4
2
6
8
-
0
2

N
E
H
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
g
e
a
r
 
r
a
c
k
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
8
6
1
.
0
0
3
0
0
0
0
5
3
 
5
7
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
8
6
1
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
6
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
3
 
M
A
I
N
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
V
A
R
I
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
3
 
W
W
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
0
.
4
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
3
 
W
W

2
8
1
.
4
 
G
A
L
S
 
W
W
 
V
e
h
i
c
l
e
 
F
u
e
l
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
1
0
.
4
1
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
V
A
R
I
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
3
 
H
W
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
6
.
5
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
3
 
H
W
Y

6
8
.
4
 
G
A
L
S
 
H
W
Y
 
V
e
h
i
c
l
e
 
F
u
e
l
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
6
.
5
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
 
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
V
A
R
I
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
3
 
B
&
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
9
.
3
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
3
 
B
&
G

9
5
.
3
 
G
A
L
 
B
&
G
 
V
e
h
i
c
l
e
 
F
u
e
l
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
9
.
3
8
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
9
6
.
3
2

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
7
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
1
4
2
 
M
O
D
E
R
N
 
P
E
S
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
I
N
C
 
(
R
1
)
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
5
5
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
7
3
5
5
7
4

P
E
S
T
 
C
O
N
T
R
O
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
1
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
O
D
E
R
N
 
P
E
S
T
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
I
N
C
 
(
R
1
)
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
3
4
6
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
8
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
7
3
4
6
1
0

P
E
S
T
 
C
O
N
T
R
O
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
8
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
9
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
8
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
6
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
P
M
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
5
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
.
2
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
7
5
0
4

1
2
0
.
3
 
G
A
L
S
 
N
E
H
 
M
a
i
n
t
 
S
h
o
p
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
.
2
4
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
.
2
4

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
9
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
1
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
7
0
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
2
.
5
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
7
0
1
7

S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
2
 
f
u
e
l
 
o
i
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
2
.
5
5
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
4
3
2
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
-
S
2
 
S
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
8
2
.
5
5

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
0
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
7
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
8
3
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
2
9
2
.
4
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
8
3
4
9

O
N
 
R
O
A
D
 
D
I
E
S
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
2
9
2
.
4
5
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
2
9
2
.
4
5

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
1
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
3
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
5
3
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
1
.
2
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
5
3
3
3

1
5
5
.
8
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
1
.
2
3
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
5
2
6
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
8
.
0
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
5
2
6
8

1
1
8
.
7
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
8
.
0
6
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
5
9
.
2
9

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
2
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
9
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
8
2
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
3
.
3
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
8
2
3
2

1
6
6
.
7
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
S
V
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
3
.
3
0
1
5
5
0
6
6
7
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
3
.
3
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
3
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
4
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
8
5
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
2
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
8
5
0
8

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
2
.
9
7
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
5
2
.
9
7

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
4
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
1
0
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
8
2
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
.
3
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
3
8
2
3
1

1
6
4
.
9
 
G
A
L
S
 
#
2
 
F
u
e
l
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
H
e
a
t
i
n
g
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
.
3
5
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
.
3
5

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
5
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
1
 
N
O
R
T
H
E
A
S
T
 
E
M
E
R
G
E
N
C
Y
 
A
P
P
A
R
A
T
U
S
 
L
L
C
 
1
0
8
7
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
9
.
4
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
8
7
4
0

O
2
 
s
e
n
s
o
r
 
f
o
r
 
g
a
s
 
m
e
t
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
9
.
4
6
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
7
1
0
0
 
0
4
0
3
 

E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
-
 
F
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
9
.
4
6

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
6
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
8
 
A
N
T
H
O
N
Y
 
S
M
I
T
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3

C
o
n
s
u
l
t
a
n
t
 
P
a
r
t
 
T
i
m
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
0
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
1
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
W
 
D
I
R
E
C
T
O
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
0
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
7
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
6
9
3
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
5
7
6
2
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
.
9
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
3
5
7
6
2
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3

I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
.
9
6
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
1
6
9
3
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
-
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
4
.
9
6

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
8
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
8
3
1
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
1
2
7
4
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
4
1
2
7
4
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3

C
a
b
l
e
 
F
i
r
e
 
s
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
#
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
9
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
9
9

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
9
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
3
7
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
5
7
6
3
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
3
.
2
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
3
5
7
6
3
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3

I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
F
i
r
e
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
#
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
3
.
2
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
1
7
3
7
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
-
F
I
R
E
 
S
T
#
2
 
S
H
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
3
.
2
9

  



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
0
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
6
1
6
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
1
3
6
4
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
8
.
9
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
3
1
3
6
4
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3

I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
F
i
r
e
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
#
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
8
.
9
2
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
1
6
1
6
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
-
F
I
R
E
 
S
T
#
3
 
S
V
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
8
.
9
2

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
1
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
8
3
2
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
5
1
4
1
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
7
.
9
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
3
5
1
4
1
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3

m
a
r
i
n
a
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
e
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
7
.
9
6
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
7
.
9
6

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
2
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
7
3
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
2
2
3
5
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
9
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
4
2
2
3
5
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3

I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
H
i
g
h
w
a
y
 
G
a
r
a
g
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
9
.
9
8
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
1
7
7
3
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
-
H
G
W
Y
 
G
A
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
9
.
9
8

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
3
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
0
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
2
1
3
0
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
5
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
3
2
1
3
0
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3

t
v

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
5
2
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
5
2

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
4
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
0
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
1
3
3
2
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
3
1
3
3
2
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3

I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
B
e
e
c
h
 
H
i
l
l
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
1
7
7
1
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
-
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
D
E
P
T
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
5
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
1
1
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
1
5
7
0
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
3
1
5
7
0
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3

I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
J
o
y
 
R
o
a
d
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
1
7
7
1
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
-
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
D
E
P
T
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
6
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
7
0
 
C
H
A
R
T
E
R
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
0
2
3
6
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
1
6
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
3
0
2
3
6
0
1
0
3
0
1
2
3

I
n
t
e
r
n
e
t
 
T
o
w
n
 
O
f
f
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
1
6
.
9
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
5
0
 
1
7
7
0
 

C
A
B
L
E
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
-
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
1
6
.
9
9

    



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
7
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
5
6
 
T
E
R
R
Y
S
 
T
A
N
K
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
5
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
1

S
H
 
P
u
m
p
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
R
e
p
a
i
r
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
5
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
4
6
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
L
U
D
G
E
 
D
I
S
P
O
S
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
5
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
8
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
3
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
0
1
2
7
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
3
.
9
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
6
0
0
1
2
7
4
6

R
A
G
S
 
/
S
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
C
U
P
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
3
.
9
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
L
I
N
E
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
4
9
9
0
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
4
.
9
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
6
0
4
9
9
0
3
8

C
u
s
t
o
d
i
a
l
 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
4
.
9
3
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
3
 

F
D
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
8
.
8
6

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
9
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
6
-
2
 
0
2
1
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
7
.
7
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
6
-
2
 
0
2
1
5
2
3

2
2
3
4
 
K
W
H
 
S
V
 
F
e
n
c
e
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
7
.
7
8
1
5
5
0
6
6
7
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
9
-
8
 
0
2
1
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
3
.
5
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
9
-
8
 
0
2
1
5
2
3

1
9
8
2
 
K
W
H
 
B
a
b
s
o
n
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
3
.
5
4
1
5
5
0
6
6
7
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
7
-
4
 
0
2
1
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
9
.
6
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
7
-
4
 
0
2
1
5
2
3

2
1
6
3
 
K
W
H
 
S
V
 
L
i
b
r
a
r
y
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
9
.
6
7
1
5
5
0
6
6
7
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
4
-
7
 
0
2
1
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
7
6
8
.
1
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
4
-
7
 
0
2
1
5
2
3

2
0
1
2
0
 
K
W
H
 
S
V
 
W
W
T
P
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
7
6
8
.
1
2
1
5
5
0
6
6
7
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
1
-
9
 
0
2
1
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
2
.
1
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
1
-
9
 
0
2
1
5
2
3

3
0
7
 
S
 
D
R
I
V
E
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
5
2
.
1
6
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
3
2
1
6
4
-
0
 
0
2
1
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
2
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
5
3
2
1
6
4
-
0
 
0
2
1
5
2
3

3
0
6
 
R
T
E
 
3
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
2
5
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
5
-
8
 
0
2
1
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
0
.
6
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
5
-
8
 
0
2
1
5
2
3

2
1
 
S
E
A
 
S
T
 
4
0
7
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
5
0
.
6
3
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
4
-
5
 
0
2
1
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
.
6
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
4
-
5
 
0
2
1
5
2
3

S
E
A
 
S
T
 
U
N
I
T
 
4
3
5
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
4
.
6
5
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
0
-
7
 
0
2
1
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
9
2



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
0
-
7
 
0
2
1
5
2
3

T
R
A
F
F
I
C
 
L
I
G
H
T
S
 
1
0
2
-
1
9
8
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
9
2
1
4
4
0
6
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
F
F
I
C
 
S
I
G
N
A
L
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
6
-
1
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
4
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
6
-
1
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

B
a
r
t
l
e
t
t
 
p
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
4
6
6
0
1
0
3
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
5
8
3
1
5
-
3
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
2
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
5
5
8
3
1
5
-
3
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

m
a
r
i
n
a
 
p
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
2
5
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
5
8
3
1
6
-
5
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
5
5
.
4
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
5
5
8
3
1
6
-
5
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

m
a
r
i
n
a
 
p
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
3
5
5
.
4
5
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
3
-
3
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
1
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
3
-
3
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

y
a
c
h
t
s
m
e
n
 
p
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
1
6
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
2
-
2
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
.
4
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
2
-
2
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

m
a
r
i
n
a
 
p
o
w
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
.
4
7
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
5
4
5
1
9
6
-
3
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
.
7
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
5
4
5
1
9
6
-
3
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

U
N
I
T
 
C
H
A
R
G
E
R
 
4
0
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
D
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
.
7
8
1
5
5
3
0
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
-
E
V
S
E
 
C
H
G
 
S
T
A
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
8
-
4
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
4
.
8
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
8
-
4
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
L
I
G
H
T
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
4
.
8
4
1
4
4
0
6
0
0
 
5
5
0
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
L
I
G
H
T
S
-
L
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
7
-
3
 
0
3
0
6
2
3
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
6
.
2
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
7
-
3
 
0
3
0
6
2
3

1
8
7
5
 
K
W
H
 
B
r
a
c
y
 
C
o
v
e
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
6
.
2
6
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
4
-
6
 
0
3
0
6
2
3
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
2
5
.
1
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
4
-
6
 
0
3
0
6
2
3

2
7
9
5
 
K
W
H
 
S
e
a
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
2
5
.
1
5
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
2
-
3
 
0
3
0
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
1
2
0
.
5
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
2
-
3
 
0
3
0
5
2
3

2
5
8
0
0
 
K
W
H
 
S
H
 
W
W
T
P
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
1
2
0
.
5
7
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
9
-
7
 
0
3
0
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
6
5
.
1
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
9
-
7
 
0
3
0
5
2
3

4
0
0
0
 
K
W
H
 
O
t
t
e
r
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
7
6
5
.
1
3
1
5
5
0
6
6
9
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
5
-
9
 
0
3
0
5
2
3
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
4
.
1
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
3
5
-
9
 
0
3
0
5
2
3

1
1
9
0
 
K
W
H
 
S
H
 
L
i
b
r
a
r
y
 
P
S
 
E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
4
.
1
5
1
5
5
0
6
6
8
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
0
-
9
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
.
7
2



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
0
-
9
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

S
t
a
t
.
 
2
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
e
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
i
t
y
 
b
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
.
7
2
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
4
3
2
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
-
S
2
 
S
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
8
-
6
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
8
6
.
3
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
0
0
5
7
3
4
8
-
6
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

S
t
a
t
.
 
3
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
e
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
i
t
y
 
b
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
2
8
6
.
3
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
0
1
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
I
T
Y
-
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
,
8
2
7
.
5
0

  
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
0
0
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
7
4
5
 
W
A
G
E
W
O
R
K
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
4
8
3
8
0
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
N
V
4
8
3
8
0
3
1

H
C
 
F
S
A
 
A
d
m
i
n
 
F
e
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
8
0
0
 
5
4
5
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
D
M
I
N
-
S
E
1
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
0
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
 
5
9
7
3
0
 
0
3
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
W
I
R
E
 
 
 
1
4
6
5
 
U
 
S
 
 
B
A
N
K
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
4
9
5
1
6
5
5
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
7
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
9
5
1
6
5
5
0
8

S
c
a
n
n
e
r
 
l
e
a
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
7
4
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
E
A
S
E
-
 
S
C
A
N
N
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
5
9
7
3
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
7
4

  
 
 
 
 
5
9
7
3
4
 
0
3
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
W
I
R
E
 
 
 
1
4
6
5
 
U
 
S
 
 
B
A
N
K
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
4
9
6
1
1
9
4
6
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
9
6
1
1
9
4
6
2

C
o
p
i
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
i
n
t
e
r
 
l
e
a
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
0
.
0
0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
3
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
O
P
I
E
R
 
L
E
A
S
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
5
9
7
3
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
7
5
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
6
1
 
A
C
A
D
I
A
 
F
U
E
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
0
5
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
6
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
9
0
5
5
8

l
p
 
g
a
s
 
y
a
c
h
t
s
m
e
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
6
7
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

H
E
A
T
I
N
G
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
7
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
6
7

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
7
6
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
3
6
 
A
L
L
E
N
,
 
S
H
E
L
B
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
0
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
8
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
9
0
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
i
l
e
a
g
e
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
8
.
9
8
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
9
0
0
0
0

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
-
 
N
.
 
R
e
d
d
i
s
h
 
G
i
f
t
s
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
7
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
8
.
9
8

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
7
7
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
6
2
 
A
M
E
R
I
C
A
N
 
M
E
S
S
A
G
I
N
G
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
N
4
3
7
0
0
4
6
X
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
N
4
3
7
0
0
4
6
X
C

W
W
 
A
l
a
r
m
s
 
P
a
g
i
n
g
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
4
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
4
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
C
H
N
I
C
A
L
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
7
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
1
4

  



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
7
8
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
8
6
0
 
T
A
S
E
R
 
I
N
T
E
R
N
A
T
I
O
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
U
S
1
4
2
2
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
N
U
S
1
4
2
2
8
8

T
a
s
e
r
 
P
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
-
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0
4
0
4
0
1
0
0
 
2
4
4
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
D
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
R
e
s
v
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
7
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
7
9
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
7
9
 
T
H
E
 
F
.
A
.
 
B
A
R
T
L
E
T
T
 
T
R
E
E
 
E
X
P
E
R
T
 
C
O
M
 
4
0
8
1
7
5
7
9
-
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
0
8
1
7
5
7
9
-
0

T
r
e
e
 
r
e
m
o
v
a
l
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
7
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
0
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
1
5
 
B
E
A
U
R
E
G
A
R
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
B
4
5
9
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
2
4
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
B
4
5
9
6
5

S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
F
O
R
 
L
O
A
D
E
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
2
4
.
9
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
2
4
.
9
8

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
1
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
2
3
 
B
O
U
N
D
 
T
R
E
E
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
8
7
5
4
9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
.
3
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
4
8
7
5
4
9
9

I
V
 
c
a
t
h
e
t
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
.
3
2
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
4
 

E
M
S
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
O
U
N
D
 
T
R
E
E
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
8
7
3
7
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
3
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
4
8
7
3
7
3
6

I
V
 
c
a
t
h
e
t
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
3
2
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
4
 

E
M
S
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
O
U
N
D
 
T
R
E
E
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
8
6
2
0
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
5
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
4
8
6
2
0
6
5

F
a
c
e
 
m
a
s
k
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
5
8
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
4
 

E
M
S
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
8
.
2
2

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
2
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
3
4
 
B
R
A
D
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
L
A
W
N
 
&
 
G
A
R
D
E
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
6
0
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
2
2
.
4
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
7
1
6
0
9

E
N
G
I
N
E
 
R
E
P
L
A
C
E
M
E
N
T
 
Z
E
R
O
 
T
U
R
N
 
M
O
W
E
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
8
2
2
.
4
5
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
A
D
S
T
R
E
E
T
 
L
A
W
N
 
&
 
G
A
R
D
E
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
6
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
9
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
7
1
6
1
0

B
A
C
K
 
B
A
C
K
 
B
L
O
W
E
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
9
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
5
2
.
4
4

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
3
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
3
9
9
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
.
2
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
3
9
9
6

C
a
u
l
k
,
 
T
o
r
c
h
 
T
r
i
g
g
e
r
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
.
2
8
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
1
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
3
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
1
0
3

3
"
 
L
e
t
t
e
r
 
S
t
i
c
k
 
o
n
 
B
l
a
c
k
 
-
 
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
3
7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
1
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
6
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
1
1
8

K
e
y
s
,
 
H
o
o
k
 
S
n
a
p
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
6
1
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
1
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
.
3
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
1
7
4

T
r
a
s
h
 
B
a
g
s
,
 
1
3
 
G
A
L
S
 
9
0
C
T
 
A
c
e
,
 
S
p
o
n
g
e
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
.
3
1
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
2
8
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
5
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
2
8
2

F
l
a
s
h
d
r
i
v
e
 
3
2
G
B
 
D
u
r
a
c
e
l
l
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
5
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
2
5
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
0
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
2
5
3

M
e
n
d
e
r
h
o
s
e
,
 
5
/
8
 
x
 
3
/
4
F
M
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
.
0
2
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
3
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
3
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
3
4
6

T
r
a
s
h
 
B
a
g
s
,
 
1
3
 
G
A
L
S
 
9
0
C
T
 
A
c
e
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
3
9
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
3
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
.
2
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
3
5
2

C
e
n
t
e
r
 
P
u
l
l
 
T
o
w
e
l
s
 
4
P
K
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
.
2
9
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
3
8
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
5
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
3
8
1

P
a
d
 
V
n
y
 
P
r
o
t
 
1
/
2
"
 
C
L
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
5
9
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
4
4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
5
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
4
4
4

C
l
e
a
n
r
 
S
i
m
p
l
e
 
G
r
e
e
n
 
G
a
l
,
 
3
 
S
i
d
e
d
 
B
r
u
s
h
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
5
4
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
4
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
3
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
4
7
6

B
i
b
b
 
H
o
s
e
 
B
r
a
s
 
H
D
1
/
2
I
N
 
N
M
P
T
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
3
9
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
6
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
2
9
5

b
a
t
t
e
r
y
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
6
3
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
0
0
1

M
o
p

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
3
 

F
D
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
0
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
0
9
0

T
a
p
e
 
r
u
l
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
9
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
3
 

F
D
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
1
4
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
9
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
1
4
8

C
a
r
 
w
a
s
h
/
B
o
a
t
 
c
o
v
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
9
5
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
3
 

F
D
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
1
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
1
5
9

K
u
e
r
i
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
9
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
4
3
1
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
-
S
1
 
N
E
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
3
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
.
3
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
3
1
8

E
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
c
o
r
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
.
3
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
-
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
 
T
 
B
R
O
W
N
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
8
4
3
4
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
C
8
4
3
4
5

L
i
g
h
t
 
b
u
l
b
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
9
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
3
 

F
D
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
3
.
3
2

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
4
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
2
8
 
C
I
N
T
A
S
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
N
O
.
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
4
8
1
7
4
5
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
9
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
1
4
8
1
7
4
5
5
6

f
i
r
s
t
 
a
i
d
 
k
i
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
9
3
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
9
3

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
5
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
2
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
0
3
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
1
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
3
2
0
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
S
o
m
e
s
v
i
l
l
e
 
W
W
T
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
1
4
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
1
4

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
6
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
4
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
1
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
C
h
a
r
g
e
 
E
-
9
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
1
4
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
.
1
4

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
7
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
6
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
2
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
C
h
a
r
g
e
 
S
e
a
l
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
W
W
T
P

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
2
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
2
.
2
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
8
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
9
7
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
.
2
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
0
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
C
h
a
r
g
e
 
T
o
w
n
 
O
f
f
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
.
2
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
.
2
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
9
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
8
0
1
 
C
O
N
S
O
L
I
D
A
T
E
D
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
C
I
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
0
3
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
9
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
3
2
0
2
3

T
e
l
e
p
h
o
n
e
 
O
t
t
e
r
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
p
u
m
p
 
s
t
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
9
5
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
L
E
P
H
O
N
E
-
U
S
A
G
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
8
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
9
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
0
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
1
9
 
D
A
R
L
I
N
G
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
9
3
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
7
.
4
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
8
9
3
7
6

R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
2
0
1
3
 
R
A
M
 
5
5
0
0
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
7
.
4
1
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
7
.
4
1

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
1
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
0
4
 
E
A
 
A
C
Q
U
I
S
T
I
O
N
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
5
6
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
3
2
.
1
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
5
5
6
8
8

P
u
b
l
i
c
 
N
o
t
i
c
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
0
.
8
0
1
2
2
0
7
7
0
 
5
4
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
L
A
N
N
I
N
G
 
C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
3
7
.
1
0
1
2
2
0
4
4
0
 
5
6
2
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
U
B
L
I
C
 
N
O
T
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
.
2
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
6
2
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
U
B
L
I
C
 
N
O
T
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
9
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
2
2
0
 
5
6
2
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
U
B
L
I
C
 
N
O
T
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
3
2
.
1
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
2
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
4
1
 
W
O
R
K
I
N
G
 
F
I
R
E
 
F
U
R
N
I
T
U
R
E
 
&
 
M
A
T
T
R
E
S
S
 
4
9
1
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
1
4
6
.
4
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
9
1
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F
u
r
n
i
t
u
r
e
 
f
o
r
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
1
 
&
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
8
9
3
.
2
1
3
0
0
0
0
5
5
 
5
7
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
2
5
3
.
2
4
3
0
0
0
0
5
3
 
5
7
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
O
N
S
T
R
U
C
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
,
1
4
6
.
4
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
3
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
8
4
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
8
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
.
8
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
8
2
0
2
3

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
 
B
I
L
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
.
8
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
6
.
8
7

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
4
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
3
8
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
-
F
I
R
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
8
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
5
.
6
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
8
2
0
2
3

C
e
l
l
 
&
 
d
a
t
a
 
b
i
l
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
5
.
6
2
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
1
5
.
6
2

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
5
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
6
9
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
-
 
H
O
T
S
P
O
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
1
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
2
2
0
2
3

I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
H
O
T
 
S
P
O
T
S
 
T
H
R
O
U
G
H
 
0
2
.
2
2
.
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
1
5
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
M
A
I
L
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
6
.
1
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
6
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
9
8
5
 
F
I
R
S
T
 
N
E
T
 
-
 
N
O
N
 
P
U
B
L
I
C
 
S
A
F
E
T
Y
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
2
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
.
9
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
2
2
0
2
3

C
E
L
L
 
&
 
D
A
T
A
 
T
H
R
O
U
G
H
 
0
2
.
2
2
.
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
7
4
1
2
2
0
6
6
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
7
3
1
2
2
0
5
5
1
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
7
4
1
2
2
0
5
5
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
7
9
4
9

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
7
.
6
9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0
 
5
5
1
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
M
A
I
L
/
I
N
T
E
R
N
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
.
9
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
7
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
4
3
 
F
I
R
S
T
N
E
T
-
P
D
 
C
E
L
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
8
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
2
.
4
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
8
2
0
2
3

P
D
 
C
e
l
l
 
P
h
o
n
e
s
 
F
e
b
 
2
0
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
9
.
6
1
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
.
2
5
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
1
9
1
1

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
A
D
M
I
N
 
A
S
S
I
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
.
4
9
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
4
6
4
8

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
L
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
.
0
5
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
6
7
4
8

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
S
G
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
.
2
2
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
4
0
8
8

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
P
O
L
I
C
E
 
C
H
I
E
F
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4
2
1
4
0
1
1
5
 
5
5
1
3
0
 
8
4
0
8
8

C
E
L
L
 
P
H
O
N
E
S
-
B
A
R
 
H
B
R
 
P
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
2
.
4
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
8
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
1
8
 
F
I
S
H
E
R
 
S
C
I
E
N
T
I
F
I
C
 
C
O
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
5
7
5
5
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
1
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
5
7
5
5
6
3

C
i
d
e
h
o
l
 
7
0
 
I
P
A
 
7
0
%
 
1
 
G
a
l
l
o
n
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
1
0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
8
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
A
B
 
E
Q
U
I
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
1
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
9
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
 
R
 
H
 
F
O
S
T
E
R
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
3
0
.
2
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
2
3

7
5
6
.
7
4
 
G
A
L
 
3
.
2
1
 
A
V
G
 
F
E
B

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
2
9
1
2
2
0
7
7
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
2
7
0
2
 

F
U
E
L
-
C
E
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
C
h
e
v
 
C
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
.
2
8
1
2
2
0
6
6
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
2
7
0
2
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
-
1
8
 
C
H
E
V
 
C
O
L
O
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
.
0
5
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
7
.
5
0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
1
1
3
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
4
.
7
9
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
1
0
9
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
-
1
7
 
F
O
R
D
 
E
X
P
 
A
D
M
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
0
.
0
8
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
1
1
4
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
-
 
2
0
2
2
 
F
-
1
5
0
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
9
.
2
5
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
1
1
5
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
.
1
1
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
3
0
9
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
-
T
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
4
.
3
4
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
3
1
1
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
-
 
R
e
s
c
u
e
 
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
9
8
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
7
1
0
 
4
3
1
2
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
U
E
L
 
-
 
R
e
s
c
u
e
 
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
1
4
.
4
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
l
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
5
9
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
4
3
0
.
2
7

   



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
0
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
2
9
1
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
1
1
4
2
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
1
1
4
2
7
6

P
r
o
f
.
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
-
 
P
a
v
i
n
g
 
&
 
S
i
d
e
w
a
l
k
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
4
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
C
H
N
I
C
A
L
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
1
1
4
1
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
7
0
.
2
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
1
1
1
4
1
6
1

P
r
o
f
.
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
-
 
S
e
a
l
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
s
t
a
b
i
l
i
z
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
7
0
.
2
4
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
4
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
C
H
N
I
C
A
L
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
1
1
0
.
2
4

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
1
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
6
3
 
G
A
R
Y
'
S
 
M
A
R
I
N
E
 
+
 
T
R
U
C
K
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
9
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
4
1
2

l
a
u
n
c
h
 
b
o
a
t
 
b
i
m
i
n
i
 
t
o
p

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
2
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
O
A
T
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
-
L
A
U
N
C
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
2
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
5
9
2
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
3
2
8
5
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
4
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
5
4
3
2
8
5
9

T
R
A
S
H
 
C
A
N
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
.
9
8
1
5
5
2
0
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
1
5
3
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
9
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
0
1
5
3
0
7

T
O
O
L
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
.
9
6
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
7
3
1
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
7
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
7
3
1
6
4

2
x
6
,
 
1
x
6
,
 
1
x
3
 
P
i
n
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
7
7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
9
3
0
7
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
9
3
0
7
6

W
o
l
f
c
r
a
f
t
 
F
l
u
t
e
d
 
D
o
w
e
l
 
P
i
n
s
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
G
l
i
d
e
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
.
9
8
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
8
5
8
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
9
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
8
5
8
8
9

S
c
r
e
w
s
 
a
n
d
 
2
x
4
'
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
.
9
6
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
3
 

F
D
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
7
5
8
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
7
5
8
1
3

H
o
s
e
 
r
e
e
l
 
f
o
r
 
s
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
.
9
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
-
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
7
7
6
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
0
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
3
7
7
6
9
3

I
c
e
 
m
e
l
t
 
&
 
w
a
l
l
 
a
n
c
h
o
r
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
0
6
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
3
 

F
D
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
2
.
7
0

    



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
3
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
2
7
2
 
H
A
N
C
O
C
K
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
R
E
G
I
S
T
R
Y
 
O
F
 
D
E
E
D
S
 
 
0
3
0
7
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
3
0
7
2
3

D
i
s
c
h
a
r
g
e
 
2
5
3
2
 
2
0
2
1
 
&
2
0
2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
0
0
1
2
2
0
5
5
0
 
5
4
7
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
E
E
D
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
4
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
0
6
4
 
H
A
R
C
R
O
S
 
C
H
E
M
I
C
A
L
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
1
7
1
6
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
0
.
7
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
0
0
1
7
1
6
6
1

I
B
D
 
B
l
e
a
c
h
 
N
E
H
 
W
W
T
P
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
0
.
7
5
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
3
2
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
L
O
R
I
N
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
0
.
7
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
5
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
0
0
6
 
H
A
N
C
O
C
K
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
F
I
R
E
 
F
I
G
H
T
E
R
 
A
S
S
O
C
 
4
9
0
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
4
9
0
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
V
O
C
 
r
e
g
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
4
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
R
A
I
N
I
N
G
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
6
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
6
5
 
H
I
G
G
I
N
S
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
1
4
3
0
4
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
N
1
4
3
0
4
3

C
a
r
d
 
p
r
i
n
t
e
r
 
m
a
i
n
t
.
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
0
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
7
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
3
5
8
 
J
O
R
D
A
N
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
5
8
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
1
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
P
5
8
5
5
0

P
L
O
W
 
S
T
E
E
L
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
1
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
1
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
8
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
4
7
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
1
0
3
6
5
4
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
.
1
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
3
1
0
3
6
5
4
1
1

R
E
T
R
A
C
T
I
B
L
E
 
K
N
I
F
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
.
1
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
A
W
S
O
N
 
P
R
O
D
U
C
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
1
0
3
9
3
2
8
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
8
.
4
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
3
1
0
3
9
3
2
8
5

H
o
s
e
 
C
l
a
m
p
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
8
.
4
6
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
8
.
5
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
9
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
2
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
2
2
1

h
o
i
s
t
 
r
e
p
a
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
.
0
0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
2
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
2
.
8
6



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
2
5
7

h
o
i
s
t
 
r
e
p
a
i
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
9
2
.
8
6
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
2
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
4
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
3
2
5
6

T
R
A
F
F
I
C
 
L
I
G
H
T
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
4
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
6
0
0
 
5
4
2
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
E
C
H
 
S
V
C
S
 
-
 
S
U
S
T
A
I
N
I
B
I
L
I
T
Y
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
0
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
3
9
.
8
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
0
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
6
1
3
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
I
G
H
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
R
e
y
n
o
l
d
s
 
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
R
e
y
n
o
l
d
s
 
2
0
2
3

2
0
2
3
 
c
l
a
s
s
 
s
c
h
o
l
a
r
s
h
i
p
 
-
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
3
.
6
.
2
3
 
B
O
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0
.
0
0
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
n
v
-
R
e
y
n
o
l
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
I
G
H
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
2
0
2
3
 
S
t
a
n
l
e
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
0
2
3
 
S
t
a
n
l
e
y

2
0
2
3
 
c
l
a
s
s
 
s
c
h
o
l
a
r
s
h
i
p
 
-
 
3
.
6
.
2
3
 
B
O
S
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
0
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
n
v
-
S
t
a
n
l
e
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
1
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
6
9
 
M
D
I
 
R
E
G
I
O
N
A
L
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
r
-
2
3
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
8
,
9
3
6
.
6
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
M
a
r
-
2
3
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t

M
a
r
c
h
 
2
0
2
3
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
M
D
I
 
R
e
g
i
o
n
a
l
 
S
c
h
o
o
l

 
 
 
 
 
2
8
8
,
9
3
6
.
6
6
1
9
9
5
1
0
0
 
5
9
2
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
D
 
H
I
G
H
 
S
C
H
O
O
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
8
,
9
3
6
.
6
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
2
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
7
0
3
 
M
I
N
U
T
E
M
A
N
 
S
E
C
U
R
I
T
Y
 
T
E
C
H
N
O
L
O
G
I
E
S
 
I
 
8
4
7
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
3
.
1
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
4
7
2
6

H
e
a
t
 
d
e
t
e
c
t
o
r
s
 
i
n
s
t
a
l
l
 
a
t
 
s
t
a
t
.
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
3
.
1
6
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
-
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
3
.
1
6

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
3
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
8
6
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
B
O
N
D
 
B
A
N
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
2
1
4
7
1
1
2
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
0
2
8
.
4
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
N
2
1
4
7
1
1
2
1
0

2
0
0
3
F
F
R
S
 
d
s
 
p
m
t
 
d
u
e
 
4
.
1
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
9
2
6
.
0
0
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
5
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
n
t
-
M
M
B
B
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
S
H
 
2
0
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
2
.
4
1
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
6
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
O
B
 
F
e
e
s
-
M
M
B
B
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
S
H
 
2
0
0
3
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
B
O
N
D
 
B
A
N
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
2
1
4
6
8
2
8
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
9
6
.
1
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
N
2
1
4
6
8
2
8
7
1

2
0
0
8
F
R
 
d
s
 
p
m
t
 
d
u
e
 
4
.
1
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
9
6
.
3
3
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
5
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
n
t
-
M
M
B
B
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
S
V
 
2
0
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
.
8
1
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
6
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
O
B
 
F
e
e
s
-
M
M
B
B
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
S
V
 
2
0
0
8
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
B
O
N
D
 
B
A
N
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
2
1
4
6
6
5
7
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
,
8
2
3
.
8
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
N
2
1
4
6
6
5
7
6
7

2
0
1
3
F
R
 
d
s
 
p
m
t
 
d
u
e
 
4
.
1
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
2
4
7
,
7
9
7
.
5
0
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
1
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
r
i
n
-
M
M
B
B
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
N
H
 
2
0
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
4
1
5
.
7
3
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
5
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
n
t
-
M
M
B
B
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
N
H
 
2
0
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
6
1
0
.
6
6
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
6
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
O
B
 
F
e
e
s
-
M
M
B
B
 
S
e
w
e
r
 
N
H
 
2
0
1
4
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
2
4
7
,
7
9
7
.
5
0
7
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
o
n
d
-
2
0
1
3
 
W
W
 
S
R
F
 
N
E
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
-
2
4
7
,
7
9
7
.
5
0
7
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
3
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

F
B
 
D
e
b
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
B
O
N
D
 
B
A
N
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
2
1
4
6
5
7
6
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
6
1
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
N
2
1
4
6
5
7
6
9
0

2
0
1
6
F
R
#
1
 
d
s
 
p
m
t
 
d
u
e
 
4
.
1
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
6
3
.
3
3
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
5
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
n
t
-
M
M
B
B
 
B
r
a
c
y
 
C
o
v
e
 
P
S
 
2
0
1
6
-
2
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
8
.
1
7
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
6
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
O
B
 
F
e
e
s
-
M
M
B
B
 
B
r
a
c
y
 
C
v
 
2
0
1
6
-
2
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
B
O
N
D
 
B
A
N
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
2
1
4
6
5
7
6
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
7
.
4
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
N
2
1
4
6
5
7
6
5
1

2
0
1
6
F
R
#
2
 
d
s
 
p
m
t
 
d
u
e
 
4
.
1
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
0
.
4
6
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
5
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 

I
n
t
-
M
M
B
B
 
B
r
a
c
y
 
C
o
v
e
 
P
S
 
2
0
1
6
-
1
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
.
0
3
1
8
8
0
1
0
0
 
5
8
6
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
O
B
 
F
e
e
s
-
M
M
B
B
 
B
r
a
c
y
 
C
v
 
2
0
1
6
-
1
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
4
,
6
7
7
.
4
3

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
4
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
6
8
 
M
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
E
R
T
 
I
S
L
A
N
D
 
H
O
S
P
I
T
A
L
 
&
 
H
E
 
2
8
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
8
.
0
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
8
6
5

E
M
S
 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
8
.
0
3
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
4
 

E
M
S
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
8
.
0
3

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
5
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
1
0
2
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
4
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
1
0
2
6

H
E
X
 
 
K
I
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
.
4
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
0
4
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
1
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
0
4
9
3

U
-
B
O
L
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
1
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
0
6
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
2
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
0
6
8
9

U
B
O
L
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
.
2
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
0
1
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
1
.
9
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
0
1
9
1

B
A
T
T
E
R
Y
 
P
A
C
K
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
1
.
9
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
1
6
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
7
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
1
6
4
9

W
I
P
E
R
 
B
L
A
D
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
7
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
1
5
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
.
8
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
1
5
3
2

S
H
O
P
 
T
O
W
E
L
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
.
8
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
1
6
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
.
5
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
1
6
5
6

T
R
A
I
L
E
R
 
W
I
R
E
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
.
5
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
9
8
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
.
4
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
5
9
8
6
5

o
i
l
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
t
r
u
c
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
1
.
4
1
6
0
1
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
1
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
2
1
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
8
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
2
1
3
2

Y
O
K
E
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
.
8
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
2
1
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
1
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
2
1
2
8

L
I
G
H
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
.
1
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
2
6
3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
6
.
1
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
2
6
3
8

J
U
N
C
T
I
O
N
 
B
O
X
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
6
.
1
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
2
7
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
3
.
0
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
2
7
3
1

A
I
R
 
F
I
L
T
E
R
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
3
.
0
8
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
2
6
5
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
6
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
2
6
5
2

S
E
A
L
A
N
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
6
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
9
5
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
7
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
2
9
5
6
0

G
e
n
e
r
a
t
o
r
 
A
i
r
 
a
n
d
 
O
i
l
 
F
i
l
t
e
r
s
 
6
4
3
8
 
7
1
8
7
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
7
3
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
5
4
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
E
R
A
T
O
R
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
9
9
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
2
9
9
1
7

G
e
n
e
r
a
t
o
r
 
A
i
r
 
a
n
d
 
O
i
l
 
F
i
l
t
e
r
s
 
B
r
a
c
y
/
N
e
w
 
P
o
r
t
G
e
n
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
1
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
5
4
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
E
R
A
T
O
R
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
2
9
8
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
2
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
2
9
8
8
4

B
r
a
c
y
 
C
o
v
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
o
r
 
F
u
e
l
 
F
i
l
t
e
r
 
6
0
0
0
3
5
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
2
6
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
5
4
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
E
R
A
T
O
R
 
S
V
C
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
3
2
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
8
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
3
2
3
4

F
I
T
T
I
N
G
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
8
1
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
2
8
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
9
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
2
8
5
4

W
I
P
E
R
 
B
L
A
D
E
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
9
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
2
9
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
4
.
0
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
2
9
3
0

O
I
L
 
D
R
A
I
N
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
4
.
0
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
2
7
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
2
1
7
.
5
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
2
7
6
5

C
r
e
d
i
t
 
I
n
v
o
i
c
e
 
6
3
8
8
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
2
1
7
.
5
9
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
2
7
6
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
8
.
7
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
2
7
6
7

C
r
e
d
i
t
 
i
n
v
o
i
c
e
 
6
6
2
6
3
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
8
.
7
2
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
0

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
3
2
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
4
3
2
8

S
O
C
K
E
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
4
1
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
4
4
1
8

S
L
E
D
G
E
 
H
A
M
M
A
E
R
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
2
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
3
9
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
4
3
9
0

S
O
C
K
E
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
1
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
9
3

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
4
1
2
9

E
X
A
C
T
F
I
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
9
3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
3
8
8
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
.
5
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
3
8
8
8

B
U
T
A
N
E
 
T
O
R
C
H
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
.
5
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
3
5
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
4
.
5
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
6
6
3
5
1
9

F
r
o
n
t
 
B
r
a
k
e
 
R
o
t
o
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
P
a
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
T
R
K
#
1
6
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
4
.
5
5
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
5
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
7
6
6
.
6
8

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
6
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
8
8
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
5
3
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
7
0
5
.
6
4

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
8
5
3
9

S
A
L
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
7
0
5
.
6
4
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
A
L
T
 
&
 
S
A
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
7
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
9
7
3
.
9
6

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
8
7
1
9

4
 
L
O
A
D
S
 
O
F
 
S
A
L
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
9
7
3
.
9
6
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
A
L
T
 
&
 
S
A
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
8
9
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
0
6
.
3
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
8
8
9
3

S
A
L
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
3
0
6
.
3
2
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
A
L
T
 
&
 
S
A
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
C
L
I
S
H
A
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
8
8
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
4
7
.
0
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
8
8
3
2

S
A
L
T
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
6
4
7
.
0
8
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

S
A
L
T
 
&
 
S
A
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
6
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
,
6
3
3
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
7
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
4
7
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
4
2
1
4
1
6
3
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
4
2
1
4
1
6
3
0
0
1

C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
,
 
W
L
,
 
2
 
S
i
d
e
d
,
 
2
4
x
3
6
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
4
2
1
4
1
6
4
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
1
6



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
4
2
1
4
1
6
4
0
0
1

P
e
n
c
i
l
,
 
G
r
a
p
h
G
e
a
r
5
0
0
0
,
 
.
7
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
1
6
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
2
9
5
3
6
6
5
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
6
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
2
9
5
3
6
6
5
0
0
1

T
o
w
e
l
s
,
 
C
n
t
r
p
l
,
 
2
p
l
y
,
 
6
0
0
T
W
L
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
.
6
8
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
T
H
E
R
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
3
7
9
0
4
9
7
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
5
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
3
7
9
0
4
9
7
0
0
1

B
a
c
k
p
a
c
k
,
 
V
o
l
k
a
n
o
,
 
S
m
a
r
t
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
5
9
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
4
2
1
1
8
2
1
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
4
.
4
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
4
2
1
1
8
2
1
0
0
1

R
S
,
B
o
a
r
d
,
M
a
g
.
 
 
K
i
t
,
M
a
r
k
e
r
,
D
r
y
-
E
r
a
s
e
,
E
X
P
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
4
.
4
8
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
D
P
 
B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 
S
O
L
U
T
I
O
N
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
5
7
4
7
5
3
8
0
0
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
9
5
7
4
7
5
3
8
0
0
1

A
d
o
b
e
 
A
c
r
o
b
a
t
 
S
t
n
d
 
D
C
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
5
.
9
9
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
7
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
3
.
8
9

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
8
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
5
5
3
 
O
V
E
R
H
E
A
D
 
D
O
O
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
O
F
 
B
A
N
G
O
R
 
 
 
1
3
3
3
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
.
3
1

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
1
3
3
3
8
3

G
a
r
a
g
e
 
d
o
o
r
 
r
e
m
o
t
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
.
3
1
1
4
4
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
8
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
.
3
1

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
9
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
 
S
E
A
C
O
A
S
T
 
S
E
C
U
R
I
T
Y
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
2
7
3
4
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
8
2
7
3
4
2

S
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
3
 
a
l
a
r
m
 
m
o
n
i
t
o
r
i
n
g

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
4
8
2
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

F
I
R
E
 
A
L
A
R
M
 
M
A
I
N
T
-
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
1
9
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
0
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
8
7
4
 
S
T
A
P
L
E
S
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
P
L
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
4
0
4
8
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
7
2

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
2
4
0
4
8
3
2
1

C
o
f
f
e
e
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
.
7
2
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
A
P
L
E
S
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
P
L
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
4
0
4
8
6
4
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
2
.
0
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
2
4
0
4
8
6
4
1

C
o
p
y
 
p
a
p
e
r
,
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
i
l
i
n
g
 
l
a
b
e
l
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
2
.
0
7
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
A
P
L
E
S
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
P
L
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
4
0
7
9
4
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
6
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
2
4
0
7
9
4
1
1

P
r
i
n
t
e
r
 
c
a
r
t
r
i
d
g
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
0
.
6
7
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
4
3
3
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
-
S
3
 
S
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
A
P
L
E
S
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
P
L
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
0
8
4
0
3
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
2
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
3
0
8
4
0
3
1
1

P
r
i
n
t
e
r
 
p
a
p
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
.
2
9
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
4
3
1
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
-
S
1
 
N
E
H
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
T
A
P
L
E
S
 
C
R
E
D
I
T
 
P
L
A
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
8
7
4
9
7
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
9
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
2
2
8
7
4
9
7
7
1

D
r
o
p
b
o
x
 
f
o
r
 
H
R

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
.
9
9
1
2
2
0
9
0
0
 
5
3
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

O
F
F
I
C
E
 
S
U
P
P
L
I
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
0
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
4
.
7
4

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
1
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
2
3
 
D
A
V
I
D
 
T
 
B
U
R
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
7
9
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
3
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
9
2
7
9
4

B
e
n
 
M
o
o
r
e
 
A
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
S
e
m
i
 
G
l
o
s
s
,
 
B
r
u
s
h
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
3
7
1
5
5
0
6
6
6
 
5
5
2
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L
D
G
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
1
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
3
7

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
2
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
3
7
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
7
3
4
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
.
8
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
7
3
4
6

H
W
Y
/
M
S
W
/
P
&
C
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
9
5
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
9
5
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
7
3
4
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
7
3
4
7

W
W
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
 
a
n
d
 
M
a
t
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
8
8
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
8
8
5
0

W
W
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
3
.
9
7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
8
8
4
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
3
.
1
9

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
0
2
7
2
9
7
8
8
4
9

H
W
Y
/
M
S
W
/
P
&
C
 
U
n
i
f
o
r
m
s
-
E
M

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
.
0
0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
2
5
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
.
1
9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
3
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

U
N
I
F
O
R
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
2
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
4
.
0
0

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
3
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
5
3
 
J
A
M
E
S
 
W
 
W
A
D
M
A
N
 
C
P
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
5
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
1
6
.
2
5

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
2
7
5
0
2

A
u
d
i
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
1
6
.
2
5
1
2
2
0
1
1
0
 
5
4
5
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
U
D
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
3
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
1
6
.
2
5

  
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
4
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
1
4
 
C
E
N
T
R
A
L
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
V
C
1
2
5
5
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
0
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
I
V
C
1
2
5
5
7
3

P
O
S
T
E
D
 
S
I
G
N
S
 
B
J

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
0
.
0
0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0
 
5
5
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

G
E
N
 
R
E
P
A
I
R
S
 
&
 
M
A
I
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
4
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
0
.
0
0

   



   

0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 

|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t

|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L

|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
I
N
V
O
I
C
E
 
D
T
L
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
5
 
0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
8
7
6
 
Z
O
L
L
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
7
1
0
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
6
.
0
0

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
6
7
1
0
5
0

S
e
n
s
o
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
6
.
0
0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
7
1
0
0
 
0
4
0
4
 

E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
-
 
E
M
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
O
L
L
 
M
E
D
I
C
A
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
I
O
N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
6
6
7
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
3
.
5
8

I
n
v
o
i
c
e
:
 
3
6
6
6
7
0
5

P
e
d
i
 
p
a
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
A
E
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
3
.
5
8
1
4
4
0
3
3
0
 
5
3
1
1
0
 
0
4
0
4
 

E
M
S
 
S
u
p
p
l
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
3
1
8
6
2
5
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
3
9
.
5
8

  
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
8
8

*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
,
4
2
3
.
0
3

  
C
O
U
N
T

A
M
O
U
N
T

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

T
O
T
A
L
 
P
R
I
N
T
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S

 
 
 
 
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
5
9
,
1
6
2
.
8
6

T
O
T
A
L
 
W
I
R
E
 
T
R
A
N
S
F
E
R
S

 
 
 
 
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
4
.
7
4

T
O
T
A
L
 
E
F
T
'
S
 

 
 
 
 
3
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
4
,
7
7
5
.
4
3

   
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
,
4
2
3
.
0
3

                            



 
0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R

J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C

T
O
B

D
E
B
I
T

C
R
E
D
I
T

E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E

J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C

R
E
F
 
1

R
E
F
 
2

R
E
F
 
3

L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
5
7

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
2
,
5
7
6
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 

C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
,
4
2
3
.
0
3

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
0
9
.
8
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
1
4
7
.
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
2
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
5
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
,
4
2
3
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
,
4
2
3
.
0
3

  
A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 

D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
0
9
.
8
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
0
9
.
8
2

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 

D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
1
4
7
.
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
1
4
7
.
6
5

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 

D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
2
0
 

D
T
F
-
S
P
E
C
 
R
E
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
2
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
5
0
 

D
T
-
P
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
 
(
C
e
m
)
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
5
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
3
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
,
8
4
6
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
,
8
4
6
.
1
1

 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
3
/
0
9
/
5
7

T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
6
,
2
6
9
.
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
6
,
2
6
9
.
1
4

       



 
0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

  
F
U
N
D

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R

J
N
L

E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E

D
E
B
I
T

C
R
E
D
I
T

A
C
C
O
U
N
T

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

1
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
5
7

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3

1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 

C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
,
4
2
3
.
0
3

1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
2
,
5
7
6
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
2
0
 

D
T
F
-
S
P
E
C
 
R
E
V
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 

D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
1
4
7
.
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
4
0
 

D
T
-
T
R
U
S
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
5
0
 

D
T
-
P
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
 
(
C
e
m
)
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 

D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
0
9
.
8
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
,
4
2
3
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
4
,
4
2
3
.
0
3

 
2
0
0
 
S
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
5
7

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3

2
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

 
3
0
0
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
5
7

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3

3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
1
4
7
.
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
1
4
7
.
6
5

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
1
4
7
.
6
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
1
4
7
.
6
5

 
4
0
0
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
5
7

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3

4
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

 
5
0
0
 
P
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
~
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
y
/
S
c
h
l

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
5
7

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3

5
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
6
0
0
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
2
3
 
9

 
 
 
 
5
7

0
3
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
3

6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
0
9
.
8
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 

D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
0
9
.
8
2

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
0
9
.
8
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
0
9
.
8
2

            



 
0
3
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
1
2
:
1
4
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
2
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

  
F
U
N
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
U
E
 
T
O

D
U
E
 
F
R
O
M

 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

1
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
,
8
4
6
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2
0
0
 
S
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
.
8
4

3
0
0
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
1
4
7
.
6
5

4
0
0
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
-
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
7
5
9
.
8
0

5
0
0
 
P
e
r
m
a
n
e
n
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
s
~
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
y
/
S
c
h
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

6
0
0
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
5
0
9
.
8
2

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
 
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

T
O
T
A
L

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
,
8
4
6
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
,
8
4
6
.
1
1

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                         



23
58

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 8
, 2

02
3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
85

69
th

ro
ug

h
31

85
71

3,
27

9.
53

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
3,

27
9.

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



From: Geoffrey Wood
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2358 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
Date: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 11:37:15 AM

Hi Lisa,

I approve the attached warrant, #2358.

Geoff

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org>
Sent: Tuesday, March 7, 2023 11:33:05 AM
To: Geoffrey Wood <gwood@mtdesert.org>; jbmacauley3@gmail.com <jbmacauley3@gmail.com>;
marthadudman@gmail.com <marthadudman@gmail.com>; Rick Mooers-GMail
<rickmooers@gmail.com>
Cc: Jake Wright <financedirector@mtdesert.org>
Subject: Warrant AP#2358 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
 
 
Greetings,
 Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2358 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the amount of
$3,279.53 for your approval.                      
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or rejecting. 
I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have the one
required email approval.
Thank you!
Lisa Young,
Deputy Treasurer, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be
inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or privileged. This email is
intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are not the intended recipient or an
authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination or copying of this
email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error,
please immediately notify the sender by return email and delete this email from your system.
 
 
 

mailto:gwood@mtdesert.org
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Faka.ms%2Fo0ukef&data=05%7C01%7Cfinanceclerk%40mtdesert.org%7C36d4b099a8c249f2b28408db1f2a3386%7C7924fd9aa79444c2a93a55fe168ba123%7C0%7C0%7C638138038345799395%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pE1jB4GYIEO7g05jolXqDHRjmp6EBon3Cz8I%2FgJb%2F5Q%3D&reserved=0


23
59

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 1
5,

 2
02

3

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

31
85

72
th

ro
ug

h
31

85
74

1,
93

8.
79

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

59
73

2
an

d
59

73
3

43
,5

85
.6

3
$ 

   
   

  
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
45

,5
24

.4
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



23
22

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 1
7,

 2
02

3

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
14

99
6

th
ro

ug
h

15
04

8

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
65

98
7

th
ro

ug
h

65
99

5

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
14

7,
44

6.
74

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2359 & PR#2322 Approval Request
Date: Tuesday, March 14, 2023 11:23:42 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved!

Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 14, 2023, at 11:19 AM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:


 
Greetings,
 
Attached are the following warrants for approval:
                                    Accounts Payable                #2359     total of          $45,524.42
                                    Payroll                                   #2322     total of          $147,446.74
 
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving
or rejecting.
 
 
I will “will reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we
have the one required email approval.
Thank you!
 
Lisa Young,
Finance Clerk, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
<4- AP2359.pdf>
<10- PR2322 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org




19

lyoung
Highlight


	Minutes
	MINUTES Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -2
	Blank Page

	BOS Special Meeting Minutes - 2023-02-27 (1)

	Unfinished
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -5
	Blank Page

	MRC Hampden Facility Update

	New
	NEW BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -6
	Blank Page

	Utility Pole Permit Application
	Fire Dept CO # 11- Underground Service
	Owner Change Order # 11- Underground Service
	Elec. CO
	Est_202311A_from_MCM_Electric_Inc._16336

	Fire Equipment Reserve
	Personnel Policy Change
	Original and revised language recommendation.pdf
	5.2.1 PROMOTIONS
	5.2.1  PROMOTIONS


	Ordinance Certification
	MEMO BOS warrant signing
	Town Meeting Warrant 2023-03-16 SHORT TERM Rentals incl
	2023 Warrant Committee Report
	Warrant Committee 2023
	Greeting
	Election of Moderator
	Article 1. To elect a Moderator by written ballot.
	Election of Municipal Officers

	Article 2. To elect two members to the Selectboard for a term of three years, one member to the Mount Desert Elementary School Board for a term of three years, and one trustee to the Mount Desert Island Regional School District for a term of three years.
	Non-Voter Recognition

	Article 3. To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to speak during the 2023 Annual Town Meeting.
	Article 4. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert Alewife Ordinance” be enacted?  The ordinance reads, in its entirety, “Regulations for the taking of alewives and blue back herring shall be as follows:  For the year J...
	Article 5. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted?
	Article 6. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Ordinance Regulating the Building and Street Numbering in the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted?
	Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum election.
	Article 7. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Dog Ordinance” be enacted?
	Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum election.
	Article 8. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Harbor Ordinance” be enacted?
	Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum election.
	Article 9. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert Public Water Supply Protection Ordinance" be enacted?  See Appendix A (pgs.43 - 45) for language
	Article 10. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Public Road Acceptance Ordinance” be enacted?
	Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum election.
	Article 11. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Rural Wastewater Treatment Support Program Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted?
	Article 12. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted?
	Explanatory Note: This amendment eliminates the sunset provision in the ordinance to be consistent with amendments to the Town Charter dated May 2, 2022 referendum election.
	Article 13. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Town of Mount Desert Use of Public Places Ordinance” be enacted?
	Article 14. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance Regarding Lots within the Village Commercial District in the Village of Northeast Harbor” be enacted as set forth below?
	Explanatory Note:  This Article amends Section 3.5, footnote P to clarify that the minimum lot size of 1000 square feet only applies to lots within the village of Northeast Harbor.
	Article 15. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023, entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to change the Land Use District designation of Tax Map 003: Lot 026 and Map 003: Lot 027” be enacted as set forth below?
	Explanatory Note:  This Article changes Tax Map 003, Lot 26 and Map 3, Lot 27 from Shoreland Residential Two (SR2) to Residential Two (R2).
	Article 16. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify the dimensional requirements for one-Family and two-family dwellings” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 17. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to add Residential Storage Building/Shed as permitted uses in Section 3.4” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 18. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to remove the air landing sites” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 19. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance regarding the definition of Marina and Expansion of Use” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 20. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to amend the deadline for establishment of use” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 21. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to correct the date for when a lot was be created for purposes of applying the access provisions in 6B.11(2)” to be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 22. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to clarify where the setback is measured from a road or right-of-way” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 23. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance regarding the footprint limitation for principal and accessory structures in the shoreland zone” be enacted as set forth below?
	Article 24.  Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Amendments to the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to allow exceptions to the height limitations consistent with State Shoreland Zoning Laws” be enacted as set forth below?   See Appendix B (pgs...
	Article 25. Shall an ordinance dated May 2, 2023 and entitled “Short-Term Rental Licensing Ordinance” be enacted as set forth below?  See Appendix C (pgs.49 - 53) for language
	Gifts

	Article 26. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654), Unconditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A §5655), equipment, proceeds from sale of fire equipment or f...
	Leases, Agreements, Sales

	Article 27. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to the Ticket Booth operators for a term of one (1) year ...
	Article 28. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen, to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the Northeast Harbor Marina to the Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce for a term of on...
	Article 29. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter in to a ten-year (10) lease with the Town of Cranberry Isles, for 123 parking spaces in the Town Office Municipal parking lot, under terms...
	Article 30. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the Board of Selectmen, to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the Neighborhood House Club, Inc. for management and maintenance of the municipal swimming pool, for...
	Article 31. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert (Town) will vote to sell a surplus emergency standby Kohler 80 kW Generator to the Mount Desert Island Regional School District (MDI High School) for a lump sum cost of $12,500 on an as...
	Article 32. Shall the voters of the Town of Mount Desert authorize the Selectboard to negotiate and complete the sale of the 2013 ambulance received by the Town by gift of the Northeast Harbor Ambulance Service (“NEHAS”) on or about April 26th, 2022 b...
	Article 33. To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept Patterson Hill Road (exclusive of Clubhouse Way) serving the Patterson Hill Subdivision, as it is defined below and subject to the conditions set forth below.
	Section 1.  Patterson Hill Road (the “Road”) is a private road located in the Village of Somesville off State Route 102, approximately 1,800 feet in length, including a cul-de-sac.  The owners of the Road have offered voluntarily to transfer their int...
	First, the said owners shall deliver their deed to the Town, duly executed and in proper form for recording, conveying in fee simple, without condition, exception, or reservation, the full title to the land underlying the Road, being a strip of land 5...
	Second, the said owners shall have provided to the Town Manager, on or before April 30, 2024, evidence of good title to the Road, as set forth in item “First” above, allowing use of the Road as a Public Road.  Such evidence shall be in the form of a c...
	Third, the Town Manager shall have been able to obtain a letter from an attorney satisfactory to the Town Manager, certifying that said commitment for title insurance is sufficient to protect the Town’s interests.
	Section 2.  The Board of Selectmen or its designee is authorized to execute and undertake all documents and actions necessary or convenient to facilitate the transfer of ownership of the Road to become a Public Road as set forth in this Article.
	Section 3.  The acceptance of the Road shall occur and be effective only when the Board of Selectmen has made the determination of satisfactory completion of all conditions, as set forth above.  Said determination may be made at any date on or before ...
	Article 34. To see if the Town of Mount Desert will vote to accept the existing private sanitary sewer collection and conveyance system serving the Patterson Hill Subdivision, as the same is defined below and subject to the conditions and requirements...
	Section 1.  Patterson Hill Subdivision is served by an existing private sanitary sewer collection and conveyance system (the “Sewer System”) located in Patterson Hill Road, Clubhouse Way, and State Route 102, all in the Village of Somesville, includin...
	Fiscal Policy

	Article 35. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will amend the policy adopted March 1986 and amended May 4, 2010 and May 3, 2016 and entitled Town of Mount Desert Investment Policy as described and deleted through strikethrough marki...
	Article 36. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to establish a new Debt Service Operating Reserve Account. The Selectboard shall be authorized to use funds appropriated to the Debt Service Operating Reserve Account to meet ...
	Article 37. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer the balance held in the Police Training Cost Reserve account 4040100-24405 to the Police Capital Improvement Reserve account 4040100-24405.
	Article 38. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer the balance held in the Assessor Capital Improvement Reserve account 4020500-24206 to the Assessor Revaluation Reserve account 4020600-24207.
	Article 39. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $50,000.00 to pay for professional technical services including, but not necessarily limited to, topogr...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Article 40. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $210,000.00 to pay for professional technical, and construction services including, but not necessarily...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Article 41. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $780,000 to pay for professional, technical, and construction services including, but not necessarily l...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Article 42. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $900,000.00 to pay for professional, technical, and construction services including, but not necessaril...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Article 43. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $360,000.00 to finance construction contract administration, inspection, and construction services asso...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Article 44. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $250,000.00 to finance construction related services, including but not necessarily limited to, constru...
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
	FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	(If Articles 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, and 44 are Approved in Total)
	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
	Article 45. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional state, federal and other funds (including gifts and grants, as well as funds received under ...
	Article 46. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to approve   July 1, each year, as the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable providing that all unpaid taxes on September 1, of each year, shall be charged interest...
	Article 47. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers whereby: (1) the taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town base...
	Article 48. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to accept pre-payment of property taxes not yet committed, not to exceed the estimated amount to be committed in the subsequent year, with no interest to be paid on same.
	Article 49. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to set the interest rate to be paid by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid at the rate of 4% (percent) per year.
	Article 50. To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize expenditures to pay any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of Assessment Review, or Selectboard together with any interest due thereon from the Town, d...
	Article 51. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other than real property, with a value of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000.00) or less under such...
	Article 52. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and to convey titles obtained under tax deeds and under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabita...
	Article 53. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to contract for services, in amounts not to exceed appropriation for same, under such terms and conditions as it deems advisable.
	Municipal Revenue

	Article 54. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to transfer Seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($750,000.00) from the Undesignated Fund Balance Account #100-38300 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 tax commitment.
	Article 55. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to authorize the Selectboard to transfer up to two hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) from the Capital Gains Reserve Account #400-24202 to reduce the 2023 – 2024 ta...
	Article 56. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and/or appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, Service Fees and miscellaneous sources for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Municipal Appropriations

	Article 57. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the overdraft that occurred in Public Works for the year ended June 30,2022, in the amount of $42,183.37. Said overage was primarily caused by expenditures in Depart...
	Article 58. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the overdraft that occurred in Debt Service for the year ended June 30, 2022, in the amount of $2,381.09. The overdraft was charged to the Undesignated Fund Balance....
	Article 59. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to amend appropriations for department 801 Debt Service within the general operating fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 from $1,736,705 to $1,746,000. The differenc...
	Article 60. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 200 through 221 General Government – Governing Body (Selectboard), Municipal Management, Town Clerk, Registrar, Elections, Planni...
	Article 61. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 62. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 63. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 406 Street Lights for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 64. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 401, 405, 407, and 408 Public Safety – Police, Shellfish, Animal Control, and Communications (Dispatch) for the 2023 – 2024 Town ...
	Article 65. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 403,404, and 409 Public Safety – Fire Department, Hydrants, and Emergency Management for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 66. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 501, 515, 520 and 525 Public Works - Roads, Waste Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530 Environmental Sust...
	Article 67. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 505 and 506 Sewers (Wastewater Treatment) for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 68. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool ~Utilities & Maintenance) for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 69. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 70. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 801 Debt Service for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 71. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 851 Third Party Request Agencies for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget:  Village Organizations, Recreation, and Public/Social Service A...
	Article 72. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for the 2023 – 2024 Town Budget.
	Article 73. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to increase the property tax levy limit by $565,775.00.  See Property Tax Levy Limit Worksheet (pg. 77).
	Article 74. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote to ratify the Selectboard’s approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget.
	Article 75. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Regular Instruction for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 76. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Special Education for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 77. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Career and Technical Education for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 78. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Other Instruction for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 79. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Student & Staff Support for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 80. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for System Administration for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 81. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for School Administration for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 82. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Transportation & Buses for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 83. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Facilities Maintenance for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 84. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Debt Service and Other Commitments for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 85. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for All Other Expenditures for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024.
	Article 86. To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will appropriate for  the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act (Recommend $2,090,710.00)...
	Article 87. To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will raise and appropriate for the annual payments on debt service previously approved by the legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects, non-state funded porti...
	Article 88. To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will raise and appropriate in additional local funds for school purposes (Recommend: $2,587,458.00) for the period July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024, which exceeds the State’s Esse...
	Article 89. To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the School Board to expend for the fiscal year beginning July 1,2023 and ending June 30, 2024 from the Town’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education ...
	Article 90. In addition to the amount in Articles 75 – 89, shall the School Board be authorized to expend such other sums as may be received from state or federal grants or programs or other sources during the fiscal year 2023-2024 for school purposes...
	An underline indicates an addition and a strikethrough indicates a deletion.
	Appendix A (Article XX; pg. XX ) Public Water Supply Protection Ordinance
	TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
	Appendix B (Article XX; pg. XX ) Non-conforming structures (roof height)
	Appendix C (Article XX; pg. XX ) Short-Term Rental Licensing Ordinance
	Appendix D (Article XX; pg. XX ) Cranberry Isles Lease
	Appendix E (Article XX; pg. XX)
	Appendix F (Article XX; pg. XX)
	Appendix G (Article XX; pg. XX)
	Appendix H (Article XX; pg. XX)
	Appendix I (Article XX; pg. XX)
	Appendix J  (Article XX; pg. XX)
	Appendix K  (Article XX; pg. XX)
	Appendix L (Article XX; pg. XX)
	Estimated Tax Rate
	Tax Levy Worksheets



	Warrant
	TREASURERS WARRANTS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -7
	Blank Page

	Treasurer's Warrant
	0- Exception Report.pdf
	######

	1- AP2360 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP Cover Sheet

	2- AP2360 GL DISTRIBUTION JOURNAL.pdf
	3- AP2358 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	4- Re_ Warrant AP#2358 State Fees_Payroll Benefits.pdf
	5- AP2359 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	6- PR2322 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	7- Re_ Warrant AP#2359 & PR#2322 Approval Request.pdf
	8- MDES PR19 BOS & Upload.pdf
	Blank Page


	Selectboard Meeting Agenda 2023-03-20.pdf
	Regular Meeting
	Monday, March 20, 2023

	Blank Page



